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COMES NOW the Iowa Board of Medicine (“Board”) and Patrick Kin-Yee

Chau, M.D. (“Applicant”) on Fﬂ‘_’)\” Uar U—\) |4, 2020, and enter into this Consent
Agreement for the issuance of a permanent lowa medical license subject to the following

conditions:

1. Applicant is hereby granted Iowa license no. ﬂ\D -H30Y |

2. On July 23, 2019, Applicant submitted an application for a permanent Iowa
medical license.

3 2006 Washington Discipline: Applicant was issued a license to practice
medicine in the State of Washington in 1992. Between March 2004 and July 2005, the
Washington Medical Quality Assurance Commission (“Washington Commission”)
received six complaints involving Respondent’s treatment of eight patients relating to
patient care and improper prescribing. On May 25, 2006, the Washington Commission
summatily suspended Applicant’s license pending further investigation on the grounds
that Applicant inappropriately prescribed amphetamine and/or methamphetamine for

weight loss and/or depression, failed to properly monitor patients while on these
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medications, failed to maintain accurate medical records for these patients, and failed to
conduct appropriate testing and evaluations, resulting in a substantial threat of harm to his
patients. See Attachment A. On November 8, 2006, the Washington Commission
reinstated Applicant’s license, but placed Applicant on probation for a period of two
years after finding that Applicant’s treatment of the patients at issue in the complaints fell
below the standard of care. See Attachment B.

4, 2009 Washington Discipline: The Washington Commission received
additional complaints about Applicant in 2008. On July 15, 2008, the Washington
Commission found that an immediate danger to the public health, safety, or welfare
existed if Applicant’s medical license remained unrestricted, and entered a summary
order restricting Applicant from prescribing any benzodiazepines, thyroid medications, or
stimulants pending final resolution of those complaints. See Attachment C. On October
15, 2009, the Washington Commission found that Applicant engaged in unprofessional
conduct and violated the terms of his probation by prescribing large doses and large
amounts of addicting medication, failed to obtain necessary medical records for his
patients, failed to document patient pain complaints, failed to appropriately monitor his
patients, and failed to produce records in response to the Washington Commission’s
investigation. The Washington Commission again placed Applicant’s license on
probation indefinitely, until he completed the terms of his probation. See Attachment D.

. 2012 Washington Discipline: On November 15, 2012, the Washington
Commission found that Applicant again engaged in unprofessional conduct and violated
the terms of his probation by improperly prescribing medications and failing to record his

treatment of two patients. The Washington Commission again placed Applicant’s license
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on probation. See Attachment E. On November 3, 2017, Applicant completed the terms
of his probation. See Attachment F.

6. California Discipline: Applicant was issued a license to practice medicine
in the State of California in 1990. On December 27, 2006, the Medical Board of
California (“California Board”) filed an accusation based on the 2006 action by the
Washington Commission. See Attachment G. On January 30, 2007, Applicant and the
California Board entered into a stipulated agreement whereby Applicant surrendered his
California medical license, see Attachment H, which the Board accepted as final on
March 1, 2007, see Attachment I.

7 CITATION AND WARNING: Applicant is hereby CITED for failing to
meet the minimum standard of care with respect to the care of his patients in Washington,
as described above in paragraphs 3-5, and for the resulting discipline against his
Washington and California medical licenses, as described above in paragraphs 3-6.
Applicant is hereby WARNED that engaging is such conduct again may result in further
disciplinary action against Applicant’s lowa medical license.

8. Applicant voluntarily submits this Order to the Board for consideration.

9, Applicant agrees that the State’s counsel may present this Order to the
Board for consideration.

10. By entering into this Order, Applicant understands that he has the right to
legal counsel in this matter and waives any objections to the terms of this Order.

11.  Applicant shall obey all federal, state, and local laws, and all rules

governing the practice of medicine in Iowa.



15. The Board’s approval of this Order shall constitute a Final Order of the

Board.

Qﬁwkﬂ R P

Patrick Kin-Yee Chau, M.D., Applicant

— "
Subscribed and sworn to before me on | < by et - B Y , 2020.

Notary Public, State of M)f-’*b 2 W‘T{\‘O & RYAN HUGHES

Notary Public

State of Washington
/ Commission # 181928
o~ / ’7 My Comm. Expires Aug 19, 2023
i Sl e

e —

Notary Signatiite
V4

This Consent Agreement is approved by the Board on _FIO/UQY 4 5 , 2020,

K YL

Kyle G. Ulveling ., Chair
Iowa Board of Medicine

400 S.W. 8t Street, Ste. C
Des Moines, IA 50309




(M achment A

STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH |
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

In the Malter of the License to Practice Docket No. 06-04-A~1014MD
as a Physician and Surgeon of

PATRICK CHAU, M.D., STATEMENT OF CHARGES
~ License No, MD00030053

Respondent.

The Health Services Consultant, on dasignation by the Med|cal Quallty Assurance
Commisslon (Commission) makes the allegations below, which are'supported by the
evidence cantalnad in program file numbers 2004-03-0048MD, 2004-03-0078MD, 2004-
06-0035MD, 2004-08-0001MD, 2004-11-0026MD, and 2008-07-0030MD. The patients
refarred to in this Statement of Charges are identified in the attached Confldentlal

Schedule.

£

Sectlon 1: ALLEGED FACTS
1.1  Patrick Chau, M.D., Respondent, was Issued a license to practice as a
physician and surgeon by the state of Washington In 1992, Respondent's license

is currently active. Respondent Is board ce rtiflad as a psychiatrist,

1.2 Six complaints involving Respondent's treatment-of eight patients were
flled between Mareh 2004 and July 2005. Respondant diagnosed thyrold dysfunction
and/or obasity for all eight patlents.

1.3 All complaints also involve Respondents pattern of prescribing Armour
Thyrold {deslccated thyrold), Adderall (amphetamine), and/or Desoxyn '
(methamphetamine) as therapy for hypothyroldism (hormonal deficiency) and or welght
foss, Itis not clear from some patlent records whether Respondent prescribed
desiccated thyroid for thyrold dysfunction or for weight loss, or for both, Further, it {s not
clear from some patlent records whether. Respondent prescribed am phetamine or
methamphetamine for welght loss or for depresslon‘, or for both,
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1.4 Respondent's patlent records are disarganized, partially lllaglble, and
incomplete for Patlents A, D, E, F, and G. Respondent was unable to produce any
records for Patlents B and C, and two diffetent sats of records exist for Patient D.

1.6 Armour Thyrold Is the trade name of a presoription medication and Is
made from deslocated (drled) pork thyrold glands, Deslccated thyrold (s prescrlba‘d to
treat thyrold dysfunction knawn as hypothyroldism that occurs when there ls a hormonal
deficlancy. There are two malor thyrold hormones secreted from tha thyrold gland:

thyroxine (T4) and L-trllodothyronine (Ta).
' 1.6 Adderall Is the trade name of a pregeription medication contalning
amphetamine and dextroamphetamine, which are stimulants. Addarall s prescrihed to
treat Attention Deflcit Disorder with Hyperagtivity (ADHD), Amphetamine |s not an
appropriate medication for walght loss, and may produce serlous and lIfe-threatening
tachyoardia or‘myﬂcardlal Infarctlon, especially when prescribed In tandem with
deslecated thyrold,
T . Desoxyn Is the trade name of a prescription medication containing
methamphetamine hydrochloride, which Is a stimulant. Degoxyn s prescribed to treat
Attention Deflclt Disordsr with Hyperactivity (ADHD), Desoxyn Is not highly regarded as
a treatment of obeslty even as a shortterm (l.e., a few weeks) adfunbt in a reglmen of
welght loas based on calorle restriction. Nelther is the use of Desoxyn highly regarded
for patients In whom obaesity |s resistant to altemative therapy (e.¢., repeated diets,
group programs, and other drugs), Methamphetamine has never been shown to be an
effeotive adjuvant for treatment of obesity resulting In sustalned welght loss of more
than six months duration, Methamphatamine, furthermore, has an unaccéeptable
risk/beneflt ratlo since this drug may produce serlous and life-threatening tachyeardla or
myocardial Infarctlon, especlally when prescribed In tandem with desiccated thyrold,
without significant sustained benefit.

1.8 Well-astablished and rellable clinical testing Is availabsle to assess thyrold
function. Treatment of patients with thyrold hormones requires the perlodic assessment
of thyrold status by means of appropriate laboratory tests besides the full clinloal
evaluation performed at the time of dlagnasis.
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1.9 Armour Thyrold therapy Is usually Instituted [n low doses, with Increments
that dap'end on the cardlovascular status of the patient, The usual starting dose Is 30
mg/day Armour Thyrold, with Increments of 16 mg every two weeks, Most patients
require 60 to 120 ma/day. Malntenance dosages of 60 to 120 mg/day: usually result In
normal serum T4 and Ta levels, Adequate therapy usually results In normal TSH and T
levels after 2 to 3 weeks of therapy,

1.10 Poses of Armour Thyrold within the range of dally hormonal requirements
are Ineffectlve for weight reduction. Larger doses may ptoduce serlous or aven life-
threatening manlfestations of toxiclty, partioularly when glven In association with
sympathomimatic drugs such as those used for thelr anorectic effeots. Amphetamine Is
a classlc sympathomimetic drug. The use of thyrold hormones to effect weight lass In
the therapy of abaslty, alone or combinad with other drugs, has baen shown to be
Ineffactive, '

1,11 Patlent A was traatad by Respondent from on or about January 23 to
March 8, 2004, Respondent's treatment records for Patlent A are lllegible, '
disorganized, and Incomplete. Respondent diagnosed Patient A ag “little low thyrold
Induced wt, and energy problem.” Respondent based hls dlagnoses on physleal
obsarvations and a patlent Interview, and he did not conduct laboratory testing or
monltoring.

1.12 Respondent prescribed Desoxyn 10 mg twice dally to Patlent A.
Respondent also prescribed Armour Thyrold to Patlent A. The Initial dose of deslccated
thyrold was 90 mg/day for two days, then Increased to 180 mg/day for one week, After
one wask, the doseage was Inoraased to 270 mo/day for one waek, and then Increased
to 360 mg/day for two weeks. Patlent A mistakenly Increased her doseage to 720
. mg/day. Respondem directed that Patient A could continue at that level on or about
March 8, 2004, :

1,18  On or about March 11, 2004, Patlent A consulted with other providers’
regarding slgnifleant swelling In her ankles, a condition that had existed for three weeks.
Patlant A was tested and dlagnesed with hyperthyroldism (excessive hormones) and
congestive heart failure with tachyoardia (mild left ventricular diastollc dysfunction)

4
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caused by the high dosages of methamphetamine and desicoated thyroid prescribed by
Respondent,

1.14 Patlent B was treated by Respondent from about February through March
2004. Respondant searched for but could not locate treatment records for Patlent B.
Patient B raported to her primary care physician that Respondent prescribed deslceatad
thyrold to her without conducting laboratory testing. Respondent also prescribad
Pesoxyn to Patlent B for welght loss, Paflent B reported that ghe falt agitated and
tremulous while laking deslccated thyrold and methamphetamine. One waek later,
Patlent B réported that she had abandonad those medications and felt better.

1.15  Patlent C was treated by Raspondent from about February through March
2004. Respondent searched for but could not looate treatment records for Patlent C,
Patlent C reported to his primary care physiclan that Respondent prascribed Desoxyn
to him for welght loss. Patlent B reported that he abandoned that medication after
learing that Desoxyn was methamphetamine.

1‘.16 Patient D was treated by Respandent from on or about November 26,
2008 to February 11, 2004, Respondent's treatment records for Patlent D are illegible,
disorganized, and Incomplete. One verslon of Respondent's treatment records for
Patlent D was produced by Respondent, and another varslon was produced by Patlent
D's primary care physlelan. Respondent based his dlagnoses on physical observations
and a patlent interview, and he dld not donduct Iaboraton'r teating or monitoring.

1.17 Respondant prescribed Armour Thyrold to Patlent D on or about
November 26, 2008, The Inltlal dose of deslccated thyrold was 90 mg/day for two days,
then Increased to 180 mg/day. On or about December 16, 2003, Aespondent
Increased Patlent D's dosage of desiceated thyrold to 360 mg/day, On or ahout
January 14, 2004, Respondent Increased Patlent D's'dosage of desiccated thyrold to
450 mg/day for one weak, then to 640 rmg/day. Between November 2003 and Fabruary
2004, Patient D's waight dropped from 248 to 208 pounds,

‘ 1,18 Patlent D developed symptoms conslistant with hyparthyroldlsm, inoluding
agitatlon and lack of concentration. Patlent D had normal thyrold functlons prior to
being treated by Respondent, On or about March 8, 2004, Pailent D's primary care
physiclan obtalned a thyrold function tast that was consistent with hyperthyroldism. On
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or about Aprll 27, 2004, Patlent D's pulse rate was 104, conslstent with
hyperthyroldism,

1,19 Patlent E was treated by Respondent from oh or about March 26, 2004 to
June 1, 2004. Respondent's treatment records for Patlent E are llleglble, disorganized,
and Inpcomplets, Respondent diagnosed Patlent E as thyrold dysfunction and walght
problem. Respondent based his diagnoses on physical observations and a patient
interview, and he dld not conduct laboratory testing or monitoring. Haépondant
Instructed Patlent E not to tell other health care providers about her treatment plan.

1.20 The Initlal dose of deslocated thyrold was 90 mg/day for two days, then
Increased to 180 ma/day for one week. After one week, the doseage was increasad to
270 mg/day for one week, and then Increased ta 360 mg/day. On or about April 23,
2004, Respandent Increased the dosage of daeslecatad thyroid to 460 mg/day for two
waeks, then to 640 ma/day,

1.21  On or about May 28, 2004, Patient E consulted with another physielan
with complaints of tachycardia. The physiclan obtalned laboratory test results
conslstent with hyperthyroldism and advised Patlent E to stop taking desiccatad thyroid,

1.22  OnJune 1, 2004, Patlent E complained to respondent about her
tachycardia attack and reported that she was stlll experlencing a fluttering heart rate.
Respondent recommended that Patient E decrease her dosage from 540 mg/day to
450 mg/day, and if that doasn't resolve the tachycardla, then to 360 mafday. When
Patlent E called Raspondent back and informed him about her laboratory test results
and the advlce that she stop taking desiccated thyrold, Respondent told her that being
overwalght distorted the test results and fo just decrease her dosage untll she falt

comfartable.
1,28 Patlent F was lreated by Respondent from on ar about Qctober 18, 2004

to Decomber &, 2004, Respondent's traatment records for Patiant F are lllegible,
disorganized, and Incomplete. Respondent dlagnosed Patlent F as hypothyrold and
overwelght, Respondent based his dlagnoses on physlcal observations and a patlent
Interview, and he did not conduot laboratory testing or monitoring.

1.24 Respondent prescribed Adderall XR 30 mg twice dally to Patlent F to
control her appetite, Respondent also presoribed Armour Thyrold to Patient F, The
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Initlal dose of deslccated thyrold was 90 mg/day for two days, then Increased to 180
ma/day for one weak, After one waek, the dosage was Increasad to 270 mg/day. After
another weel, the dosage was Increased to 360 mg/day. Between Oclober 19 and
December 3, 2004, Patient F lost 17 pounds, On or about December 8, 2004,
Hespondent decreased Patlent F's Adderall dosage to 16 mg twice daily.

1.26 Pallent G was treated by Respondent from on or about August 31, 2004
to December 3, 2004, Respondent's treatment records for Patient G are lileglble,
disarganized, and Incomplete, Respondent dlagnosed Patlent G as hypothyrold and
overwelght. Respondent obtalned laboratory test resulis that did hot support a
dlagnosis of hypothyroldism, and Respendent disregarded the rasuits as Incanclusive,
Respondent based his dlagnoses on physical observations and a patient Interview,

1.28 Raspondent prescribed Armour Thyroid to Patlent G on or about August
81, 2004, The Inltlal dose of desiccated thyrold was 80 mg/day for two days, then
increased to 180 mg/day. On or about September 8, 2004, the dosage of deslccated
thyrold was Increased to 270 mg/day, Respondent also added Adderall XR 30 mg once
dally. On or about September 24, 2004, the dosage of deslccatad thyrold was
Increased to 360 mg/day.

1.27 Patient G lost fourtesn pounds batween September 8 and Octobar 15,
2004. Howaver, she galned six pounds by Novamber 12, 2004, and Respondant
Increased her dosage of Adderall 30 mg to twice daily, Patlent G gained another seven
pounds by December 3, 2004, and Respondent approved an Increase In her dosage of
Adderall 30 mg to three times dally. ‘

1.28 Patlent H consulted with Respondent on Septamber 21, 2004.
Respondent’s treatment records for Patient H are illegible, disorganized, and
incomplete, Respondent diagnosed Patlent H as hypothyrold and overweight,
Respondent basad his diagnoses on physical obgervations and a patient interview.

1,29 Respondent prescribed Armaur Thyrold to Patlent A. Thea Inltiel dose of
desiccated thyrold.was 90 mg/day for two days, then Increased to 180 ma/day,
Respondent also prescribed Adderall 30 mg twice dally to Patlent H. Respondent
instructed Patlent H not to tell other health cara providers about her treatment p
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Patient H did not trust Respondent after her conauitatron'. and she did not fill the
prescriptions or revisit Respondent, |

' Sectlon 2: ALLEGED VIOLATIONS
2.1 Based on the facts in Sectlon 1, Respondent has committed unprofessional
conduct In violation of RCW 18,130.,180(4), which provides In part:

RCW 18.130,180 Unprofesslonal conduct. The following conduct, acts,
or conditlons constituta unprofessional conduct for any lloensa holder or
applicant under the jurisdiction of Ihls chapter:

W W

(4) Incompetance, hegligence, or malpractioe which results in Injury to a
patlent or which creates an unreasonable rlsk that a patlent may be
harmed, Tha use of a hontradillonal treatment by Itself shall not constitute
" unprofessional conduot, provided that It does not result In Injury to a :
patlent or create an unrsasonable risk that a patlent may be harmed;

* W W

2.2 The above violation provides grounds for Imposing sanctions under
RCW 18.130.160.
i

f
’
1
It

!
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Soctlon 3: NOTICE TO RESPONDENT
The charges In this document affect the publlc health, safety and welfare. The
Health Services Consultant of the Commisslon directs that a notice be lasued and
served on Hespgndant as provided by law, giving Respondent the opportunity to dafend .
agalnst these charges. If Respondent falls to defend against these charges, Respondent
shall be subject to disclpline pursuant to RCW 18,130,180 and the Imposition of sanctions
under RCW 18.130.160.

DATED; ﬂ%ﬁ 3 2006,

STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

b
ﬂm&““’/’“‘mﬂ
SA NOONAN

HEALTH SERVICES CONSULTANT

A L ' H'NL
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

FORTNTERNALUSEONLYT —~ PROGHAW 1105, 2002-03-0048MD, 2004-03-0076MD, 2004-00-0036MD,
'5004-00-0001MD,. 2004-11.0026MD, 2008-07-0030MD
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CONFIDENTIAL SCHEDULE

This information Is confidential and is NOT to be released without the consent of
the individual or Individuals named herein. RCW 42.17.310(1)(cl)

Patient A
Patlent B
Patient C
Patient D
Patient E
Patient F
Patient G

Patient H
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STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH .
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSI ...

In the Matter of the License to Practice
as a Physlclan and Surgeon of;

PATRICK CHAU, M.D.,
Licanse No. MDO00S00ES,

Docket No. 06-04-A-1014MD

EX PARTE ORDER OF
SUMMARY SUSPENSION

)
|
Respondent, ' g

PRESIDING OFFICER: L. Farrls, Senlor Health Law Judge
BOARD/COMMISSION PANEL: Chelle Moat, M.D., Panel Chalr
; Hampton trwin, M.D.
Cabell Tennls, J.D. '
This matter came bafore the Presiding Officer, Senlor Haalth Law Judge L. Fartls,
on delegation from the Medical Quality Agsurance Commiaslon (Commlission), on May 24,
2008, on a (Votion for Order of Summary Restriction brought by the diseiplining authority
(Medical Program) through the Offlce of the Attorney General. The Program Issued a
Statement of Charges alleging the Respondant violated RCW 18,180,180(4). The
Commisslon, after raviewlng the Statament of Charges, Motlon and supporting
avidence, grants the motion. LICENSE SUSPENSED pending further action.
. FINDINGS OF FACT

1,1 Patriok Chau (Respondent) is a physiclan and surgeon, credentialed by
the state of Washington at all timas applicable to this matter.

A
N
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1.2 The Medical Program Issued a Statement of Charges alleging the
Respondent violated RCW 18,130,180(4). The Statement of Charges was
accompanled by all other documents requirad by WAC 248-11-250, .

1.3 Asset forth In the allegations In the Statemant of Charges, as well as the
motion for summary action, the Respondent routiely diaghosas thyrold dysfunction
without proper clinloal and laboratory evaluations and moﬁitaﬂng. The Respondent
preseribes Inappropriate medication In excessive dosages for hypothyroldism and obesity.
Well-estahlished and reliable clinical testing Is available to assess thyrold function.
Treatment of patlents with thyrold hormoneé requires the parlodlo assassment of thyrold
status by means of approptlate laboratory tests besldes the full elinlcal evaluation
performed at the time of diagnosifs, See Lipkin Declaration, para, 8, Daslocated thyrold
therapy Is usually instituted In low doses, with Incrémenta that depend on the
cardlovascular status of the patient. The usual starting dose Is 30 mg/day Armour
Thyrold, with Increments of 16 mg avery two weeks. Most patlents requlre 60 to 120
mg/day. See L!pkfn-ﬂao!&rquon, para, 10, The Respondent routinely prescribed a
starting dose of 90 mg/day desiccated thyrold, [ncreased to 180 mg/day after two days.
Thereaftet, the Respondent Increased 'prescrlbad dosages of deslocated thyrold for six
of his patients from 180 mg/day to between 360 and 540 mg/day, See Lipkin
Declaration, para, 13.” Fallure to properly monitor the administration of deslocated thyrofd
and the adminlstration of large doses may produce sarlous or even life-threatening
manlfestations of toxiclty. See Lipiin Declaratlon, para. 9-11.

1.4 The Respondent Is tralned as a psychiatrist, and his letterhead describes
his practice as "Genaral and Child Paychlatry". Medical records on several patients

EX PARTE ORDER OF
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Indlcate primary dlagndses of psychiatric disorders and a history of and current use of
psychiatrle madications. See Exhibit 2 (E), Exhlblt 2 (G) and Exhiblt 2 (). Patlents
seelng the Respondent for psychlatric advice are started on desslcated thyrold, with
simultaneous discontiiuation of or a rapld taper of psychlatrlc medications. The
decumentation shows no avidence of a comprehensive psychlatrio evaluation, the use
of standard DSM (American Psychlatrlc Assoclation; Diagnostic and Statistical Manual
of Mental Disorders) criterla to make a dlagnosis, nor clinlcal justification or rationale for

il

medication or diagnosis changes,

1,6  The Respondent also prescrihed desiccated thyrold, amphatamine, and
methamphetamine, often in comblnétlon. to effect welght loss In the therapy of abeslty,
See Lipkin Declaratlon, para. 12 and 14. The use of thyrold harmones to effect weight
logs In the therapy of obeslty, alone or combined with other drugs, s unjustified and has
baen shown to be Ineffective. Se;a Lipkin Declaration, para. 11, Amphatamine |s not an
appropriate medication for welght loss, and may produce serfous and life-threatening
tachycardia or myocardial Infarction, especlally when prescribed In tandem with
desicoated thyrold, See Lipkin Deolaration, para. 6, Methamphetamine has never been
shown to be an effective -adjuvant for treatment of obesity resulting in BU&talm:'sd welght
loss of more than six months duration, Methamphetamine, furthermore, has an
unacceptable risk/bensfit ratlo since this drug may produce serlous and life-threatening
tachycardia or myocardlal Infarction, espacially when prascribad In tandam with
deslceated thyrold, without signlficant sustalnad benént. See Lipkin Declaration, para. 6.

1.6 The serlous risks Inhetent In the Respondent's substandard diagnostic and

prescribing practlce have manifested Itself In the care of his patients. Onhe of the
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Respondent's patlents developed serious complicalions, Including hypetthyraldism and
congestive heart fallure with tachycardla, oaused by the Respondent's regime of -
excessive and medically unjustifiable prescribing of deslceated thyrold and
mathamphetamine,

1.7 The allegations and evidence presented establish that there Is & risk of
Immedlate danger to the public health, safety, and welfare. The Respondent's pattern
of making dlagnoses without ordering laboratory tests and his presoriptive practice are
below etandard, Patlents dlagnc?sad with thyrold dysfunection and/or obesity are at risk
for serllous health complications caused by Inappropriate and excessive prascription
.medications. The Respondent's practice creates a risk of life-threatening toxicity.

1.8  Inlhe Ex Parte Mc;tlon for Summary Action, the Department requested
that the Commisslon restrict the Respondent's practioe from preseribing any
medilcations for treating thyrold dysfunctlon, thyrold preparation and/or stimulants for
welght loss, bellaving that to be the least restrictive ‘agency action justifled by the
danger posed by the Respondent's continued practice as a physlotan. Howaever, the
Commlisslon concludes that the evidence (ndicates that any practice as a physiclan by
the Raspondant at this time Is an Immediate danger to the public health, safety and
welfare. The Commission concludes that a summary suspension of the Respondent
license to practice as a physlelan In the state of Washington is the least restrictive

agenoy actlon justlfled by the dangaer posed by the Respondent's continued practice as

a physiclan and surgaon,
i

Hinin
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Jl. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

2.1 The Commisslon has Jurlsdiction over the Respondent's credentlal to
practice as a physiclan and surgeon, RCW 18,180,040, ,

2.2  The Commisslon has authority to take emergency adjudloative action to
address an immadiate dangar to the public health, safety, ot welfare.

RCW 34.05,422(4); RCW 34,06.479; RCW 18.130.060(7); and WAC 246-11-300,

2,3 The Medlcal Quaiity Assurance Gommission may use Its own expertise in
reviewing the testimony and materlals before it. RCW 34,06.461(6), Johnston v.
Washington State Madical Disclplinary Board, 99 Wn.2d 466 (1983); Brown v. State
Department of Health, Dental Discipiinary Board, 94 Wn, App, 7, review denled 138
Wn.2d 1010 (1899).

24  The Findings of Fact establlsh the exstence of an Immediate danger to
the publlc health, safety, or welfare If the Respondent continues to practice as a
physlolan. The Findings of Fact establish that the requested summary suspension Is
necessary and adequately addresses the danger to the public health, safety, or welfare,

| lil. ORDER

Basad on the Findings of Fact and Concluslons of Law, It s ORDERED that the
Respondent's credential to practice as a physiclan and surgeon is SUMMARILY
(i
HHi
i
Hiiiny

Wit
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SUBPEMOED panding turllor disslplinary proceadings by the Commlsslon, The
l‘h:rsppprlwnl sduall inmardiatoly deliver all Ieenaes, noluding wall, display, and/or wallt, (f -

a1 o Gonumigsion.
e .
Datad thls ;{ 5 day af May, 2008,

GHETLE MOAT, M.D., Pajel Chair

lnmn\ SOINAL S I‘T”%I% Il‘tlwnultrcm[t'l L
'munm Iv.m.P 604 09 H074, UM:{)G-OME, £004-08+0001, 20044 11-0028, &
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; STATE OF WASHINGTON APPLICATION
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE CDMMIﬁWl\TAC}'a MENT “

In the Matter of the License to Praotlca )
as a Physiclan and Surgeon of: ) Docket No. 06 04 A-1014MD
)
PATRICK CHAU,M.D, ) _FINDINGS OF FACT, CDNCLUSiONE
License No, MDOD030053, ) OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER
, ) -
- Respondent. )
: )

APPEARANCES:
. Respondent, Patrick Chay, M,D,, by
Hoffman Hart Wagner LLP, par .
Michael Hoffmar'\, Attorney at Law
' Departmem of Health'Medlcal Program, by
OHflce of the Attomey Genaral, per
Susan L. Plerinl, Assistant Attorney: General
PRESIDING OFFICER: M|chae|1_'. Concannon, Health Law Judge -~
* COMMISSION PANEL! Judlth Tébin, Public Member, Panel Chalr
Everardo Esplnosn M.D. i
William Gotthold, M.D.
. Janlce Paxton, PA-C
The.Medical Quality Assurance Oo;*nrnlssion (the Gorhmis's.lon) converied a
| hearlng over a two-day period In Saa’l‘ac, Waahlngton on Saptembar 29-30, 2008, The
Departmant of Hoealth (tha Deparlmam) had Issued a Stﬂtementof ‘Charges alleging that
. the Respondent had violated tha Unlform Dtsclpllnary Act with respect to elght patlents
named in a confldential schedu\a (hereafter, Patlants A, B, C...H) andthe
Reapondent had been summarny luspandad as ol May 25, 2006, pendmg this hearing.
" The Commission finds unprofessional oonduct with respect 1o several patients and,
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ordes the Impasition of PHdBA‘[IDNAI.’IY CDNDIT"!ONG on the Respondent lloense
" to prastioe medloine, - S L
ISSUES

Whaiher any of tha Haapundant‘a treatment of elght patients cnnatltutas
unprofassfonal condlet within the meaning of RCW 18,130, 180(4),

If.the Department provas unpruieaslcnar conduet, what aro the approprlate
) sanctlona under HGW 18,130,1607

SUMMARY OF THE PROCEEDING
. The Dapanmantpresented testlmony from the fallowing threa wl‘measas
1, The' Hespondant
2. Dr, Edward Lipkin (Expert) .
8/ Dr Jnseph Bloom Expert)—vtdeo parpatuation deposlnon
D'agar_tmant's Exhl bits, T‘hta fonowlng numberad exhlblts by tha Dap;artmant
I, wéra admlrtéd ,to'beoc‘:mq-;?a'rt of the' raoord at the haarlng. -
D, - .Madloal Recérds.— Pat[ant A
D2, M-dlaal Records — Faﬂam B,
© D8, Medlcul Records Paﬂamc
| 0-4. Medical Hecords- F’aua}jt D
1 D6, Medloal Haoo}da; Fatfan't E
| 08, Medioal Records — Patient F.
D7, Medioal Reoords ~ Patlerit &,

D-8. Madical Records — PatientH,
D-9. . Medlogl Records - Patlent H (exhlbil numbered pgs, 713 only).

FINDINGS OF FAOT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
3 AND FINAL ORDER 3 ‘ Page 2 of 22

y Donl(ﬂl No, 06-04- A-1014MD




Ll

D10, Assossment of Dr, Edward thil<ln, dated Dctc}t;;vr 21, 2006, .
D11, Assassment of Dr, Edward Llpkln, dafed March1 2005

D12, Additlonal Medioel Rocorda ~ Patant B, rovalved on July 7. zooe.
0-13. Additional Mad\e&l Rocords ~ Patlentc racalved on July? 2008.
The Haapondent presanled lestlmony from the followlng 4 wltneasaa.
1. . The Happondant ' , (.

‘g, F‘aul Laung. M.D. (Expert) vldao parpqtuatlon depasltlon"
3., Abraham Perlsteln, M D..(Expert) —Video perpetuatlon depoaltion*

4 Lahcg Brigman, M D - parpatuatlﬁn dapositlon - tran$cript road: Into {he-
1BEOK : : ‘

Bgmsig_n_ﬂ}s_mtg_ The followlng numbared exhiblls by tha Haapondant
were admlttad !c: beooma pan of the reoord at the hearlnw
| R-1, Medloal Hacorda - Patients A through H (ona axhlblt)

R-2, Journal Amale Gaby. Alan, Alternative Mad!r;!ne ﬁev(ew, Vol, B Na, 2
pgs. 167-179an Hypo!hyroidlam. .

~R3. ILeﬂerirum D, Abraham Parlsleln | | | By 4.
R-4, Letter from Dr, Davld Lea
R+, Letter from Dr, Danlel Moynihan,

: F*.*.'Ei.. ' Lotter from Dr, Lance Brigman. . s N '

. R-Z. Latterfram Dr, Eﬁalna Tolby.:

: A8,  Letter from Warran Cowell,

B-9, Letter from Brenda Nilson

* The video, and the' written transoripl of the deposition, ars part of the tesord n thls prosoeding
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| R-10. Latter from éh'artaé Maslo‘n
A1, Lettar from Fihonda Hansaon,
: AH-1'2 Lat\ar from Jamla Huff,
. F-13, Lefter from Sharw MchnaId._
R-14, Latter from L.G. Parry. ML , !
FHB: Letter from, Pamela Graham, | ‘ |
R-16. Letler from Katherlne Kiser,
R-17. Letter from Dldne Howlait
. R-18, Letter from Kathi H!gh
R-19, Letter from Chawl Royal,
R-20, Letiar from Tom Botna,
B-21, Letter from Evan Gummings‘ ;
R-22, Redactad emall, dated May 26, 2008, from Mr. Barg to Dr. Biomm.
' Basad upun the avldanca prasenl.ed the Gommlaslon makes lha folloW!ng
+ findings t_ay clear and cﬂnylr!clng avtdenca. - ,
- I meuas OF FACT’
= 1l Tha Respondent was jssued a licerse to praotloe as a phya!clan and
‘ :adrqeon 'by the State of Waehington In 1682, His license Is active, but has bae_n rsub]ao'c !
to & summary suspension since May 26, 2008, -The Respondent |s imar'd cerl?ﬂéd as a
psyohlatrleltt. a'nd wals.most recently re-gertified In Seplember 20086, '
12 . The Respondent did his resldency at the Univraln'/ of South Alabama
’ Hospltal In Mobile, Alabama In the late 1930'9. The residenacy Included & comblined
FINDINGS OF FACT,
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‘ program In géneral and adult psychlatry over & four year period and he Wwas the clhlefl
't reatdent ln ohitd payohlatw. Aﬂer varlous contract or nther posltiond into, the mid+{980's .

In the VancouveranrtlandiLonngew arau momly lnvolv[ng uhlldren and oh\id

paychlmry. the Respondent has had a full-time offica pramlua asa psynhIatrIst slnoa

1988. Pregently, his maln office ls In Vancouver, Washington with a satelllts office

" practioé In Longilew,., A i |

18 Asa payahlatrist, the Respondent does not take patients that praaant wlth
phys(cai almenits anly. Hls ourrent patlent population Is approximately 50% chlldran :
All of ths Respondent's patlents have paychlatrlc or mood dlaordars. and h1s pa‘r.iant
'populaﬂon consist of word-of-mouth'referrals and {moaﬂy) feferrals by primary care ki
physlolans, In addttlon 1o the many diffloull mental health symptoms preaantad by
patisnts for his payohlairla trealmant many of the Raspondant’s paﬂanta also have
pressing physfcdl allmentﬁ They ara uaually on medlcations prior to aselnu the
| Hespondant end many. hcwe axcass{w wa1ght or suffer from obeslly.

14 The Hespundant has adopted a sometlrnas unlque, but generally
accepted, alternative tmﬂtmam reglmen with some of hlg patlents. With other
practitioners, these. pa\léms may receive only the standurd or "front ling" range of .
medloatlona for depression, In the Reapondent's practice, bacauaa of the difficulty of
- tha 0R§ES ha traats ha may be more |[kely to try atmrnatlvsa ifha cohcludes that
' a!andard antl- daprassant treatment has not been totaﬂy able lo reduoe the patierit's

depressiva symptoms, Most significant, for purposes of this disclpllnary action, Is the
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- ‘Respondent's usa 0! thyrold madloatlona. Inoludlng Armaur Thyrold. and s'flmuianla as
' an adjunct fo his psychlatrlc treaiment’ of particular patlants '
18 The Commisslon does not flnd the Respondent to ba aWalgm loas or “dlat
. docfoﬁ'; rather, the Respondent s a praotiolng psyuhlatrlat. and any 'Welght I‘c:as "benefll’
to a particular patlant s Incidental to the Hespondenl G prlmary treatment goal, Le. the
psychiatrlo weil belng of the pallent ‘
| 1.8 Armour Thyrold ls the tradé name uf a preucrlpilan medluatlon and Js. '
* . made from deslccated (dried) pork thyrold gianda. Daalocaied thyrold ta prascribed to
treal thymld dyafunctlon known as hypothyraldiam Armour'rhyroid 1herapy la usually
-Instltutad In low doses, with lncramsnts that depend on clinical avaluatlons. the
.cardlovasnular statua of the pafient, and perlodio Iaboratory: teallng. The uaual
maxlmurn recommended doaa of Armaur Thyrold Is 180 mgfday
. 1.7, Adderall |s the trada name of a preseription médlcailon contalnlng
amphatamlne wh!ch ls & stimulant. Amphetamine I8 not an apprnprlate me.d!aatlon lor"
.'walght Ioaa. u may pruduae serloua arid Iifa-ihreatenlng cardlao erfacts The usual
maximum racommendad dusa of Adderall ls-60 mglday I prescribed In con]uncﬂon Y
wllh Armour Thyrold, Lhe pauenl'a progress and reaotlon fosucha stlmulant must ba
clossly monitored. - | | L
1.8 Dyslhymla s a long-ierrp. ohrunln-dépreaalon thal I8 not disabling as an

acute/major depreasion, but can result In a notable decrease of functional aotivity,
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m | 8 « 8 S "
. 1,8 . Patient A was A ao year old female, seen by the Respondenton three
N oocaalons over afive waak parlod from January 23 to Marah 3, 200# On het 1n1tlal
) lsil the F{aspondﬁnt dtagnnsad Fatlent A as parhapa having’ "Dyathyrnla ;nd a little low
thyrold ” The Haspondant tuok a hlstoryirom Patlant Aon. the flrst visit and hla
dlagnosls 1lows from hlg mtervlew, symptorns, and his own analysla
: 334 The F’taspondent prescribad Armour Thyrold to Patlent A on January 23,

. 2004, "The “irlal" dose of Armour Thyro'ld was 80 mgfday for two days and if-the patlem
" folt 'OK," then Patlent:A wes. dlreotacl 10 take 180 mg/day for one etk Aitar one

_ waak. the dosage was to be Increaaad to 270 me/day WIth a return vislt of Patient A

5 ‘eohadulad for February 6 2004, On Fabruary 6, 2004, tha Flespondent confirmed fna
270 mg/day dosage for anothar weak and, If "OK," to 360 mgh:lay. on: ]’-‘abruary 6,

. 2004, the Responderit also prescribed Desoxyn 10 mg twlna dany to Patlant A A return

Tyl WHS schaduied for March 3, 2004

' 141 Aslt tumed out, Patiant A mlstalcenly Increased her dosage bafore the.
Maroh 32004 office vish to TEO mg/day of Armour Thyrold and rapurted thsd fo ma
Flaapondant “The Hespundent dld not note any adversa eﬁ‘ecta frum the 720 mg/day
J regiman Patlent A had pui harsau on, and tharelore the Respondant did not radommend
& deerease In lha dosage. In fact, since Pallent A reporied no desired Increaaa in her -
enargy level betwaan tha morning and 4 p.m,, the Respnndenl contemplated whether
anothar 90 mglday of Armnur Thyroid would furthar assist Patlent A. The Hespondanl
die_:i not see Patlent A agaln aftar the March 3, 2004 visit, -

.FINDINGS OF FACT,
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1 12 Onor about March 11 2004 Patfam A cunaulted Wlth her prlmanf 0are
physlalan, Dr Susan Hughaa, tor her annual physical, Noting that Palilnt A was on an
"‘extrémely hlgh dose of 1hyrold med|oation,” Dr. Hughes orda;ad b work, an
‘!mmodlatq consult with a cardiologlst, and further stated tha!' Pa_aﬂam A wagin
"‘oongesilve heart feil\urs.wlth lauhycﬁrg:lia and Is at high risk for 8 myopathy axla well as
thythm disturbance.” L : R

118 Based on the reporta of the oardiologlat (Dr. BhaUn o Harpai‘)
Dr, Hughes, and the dosaga levels of Armour Thyrold apprnusd by the Haspondant for
. “Patlent A, the C‘-umrnlsaion finds the prescrlbtng of Armour Thym1d far ln axcess of the
maximum reoommended dally dosage caused a hvpanhyrold stata In Patlent A, Th-
. Haapondent’a Armour Thyrold reglmen with Patient A pianad her in graat rigk of harm
As such the Haspandant’s traatment of Patlenit A falls below iha standard of care of a
| ralaspnably prudant physiolan practleing in Waghlln.gton. '
 PationtD ' ' ‘ |
' 044 Patiefit D was a 22 year old male'who prasented fo the Aespondenton .
November 26, 2008, havlr'uél had multiple ﬁoapifali,zatlons for, psychlatrlo !réatmant,
< reourram dapraaalon and auloldal Ideatlon daung baok lo cthhood. The Hsspondant
ln his cﬂpaclty as aohlld payohlatrlat had seen Patinnt D ai some time In the past when
. Patient Dlwas a child and the Respondent was at Golumbia River Assoclates Olinie,
Hia.most reoant. huapltallratldn for dpregslan was for a two week périéd that had ended
in mid-November, 2003 On Nowmber 26, 20083, prlot to any treatment by the
; ;Hespondant Patlen! D was taklng Lamlmal Laxapro, and A1Ivan. Qver the years, he
FINDINGS OF FACT,
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had been lreated with Prozac, Paxll, Oalexa. Lithium, Zyprlxa, ant other madicallons n' _
an aﬂempt to deal with his daprasalunlpdychlatrlo ilness,, o |

1.16 On Ncwarnbar 26, 2003, the Responden! diagnosed Patlent D as balng
bi~P0|ar. with depreaslon and panlo disorder, The Raspondent altarad some of Patlent
D's laﬁlhdapra‘asanl medications’ prascribed .°”. ﬁls recent.hospltal .,disuﬁsiirga. substjtuted
" Xanaxona trlal basla for the Ativan, and alsb prascribad 30 rﬁg!d_l;y of Addérall, Ho
also preseribed Seroqual (which 15: an atypleal antipsyohotic agent or mood stablilzer)
for Patlent D on Novamber 26, 2003. e

1,16’ Furthar. In that Inlial November 26, 2008 vlslt the Haspondant prescrlbsd‘
Armour Thyrold to Patlent D. The Inltlal dose of Armour Thyrold was 80 mglday for two
i _ days, and then to be Inoraased fo 180 mg/day.. Thara war& Ihterlm weekly oﬁice vigits

' pr!or to December 16 2008, On December 18, 2003, tha Hespbndant Increaaed |
' ‘_Pauam D's dosage of Armour Thyrold to 360 mg/day. Thara wero several o,nangaa

% auballtuﬁons and aharattons to Patlent D's anth- dapressam medloaﬂons In the weeks
" botwen November 26,2003 and Janry 14, 2004. | |

117 Oh January 14, 2004, ma Heapondant Incraased Patlent D's dosage of
Armour Thymid to 450 mg/day for-one Week, than lo 540 mglday Paﬂant D devaloped. '
symptoms nona!s;ent with hyperthyroldsm (excessive hormones), Inaluding agilatlon
and lack of conoentration, There aro ;p:'atiant records indloating normal thyrold functions |
for Patient D In 1'5‘IQB. On Mareh 8, 2004, Patlent D's primary card provider, Physiclan
Agslstant Mich’aa! Pastiok, obtalned a TSH test (Exhiblt D-4, p. 83) that was conalstent
Wit overdoses of thyrold hofmone, A TSH test shows a plultary hormone secreted 1o |
FINDINGS OF FAGT,
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stimulate thyrold Iunctlon and Is Important for analyzlng putenﬂal hypa rthyrold ocmd!tlun
beoause & low TSH indloatea BN ex0686 of thyroid hormone in the syster.
118 The dosage levels of Armour Thyrold approvad by the He;pondent for
Patlent D, bayend the 1§Dmglday ;reecmmende’ﬂ maximum, causad a h{:parthyruld state
(l.e. an excass of thyrold h'c;rmona) In Patlent D, The Fleapondapt‘ Aral*nc:ur -Thyrold
' reglmen wlth'-F‘atllent D plac,e.ld him at a slgnificant rlsk of harm. ITha HBBpOHC!Bnt'a
treatment oleétlant D falls balow the standard of care oi‘.e'u réaéohablyll prudent
| - physlofan prt_amtt'clng In Wasﬁ!qgton. ‘, . ’
opsemg . T T
: 1,19 Patient E w:aa a 48 year old female on har Initial vls!t lu the Respondent
for traatmant on March 26 2004 Tha Respandent diagrmaﬂ F‘atiant E with dystthla
: ‘(lnng term, chronlo deprasslon), basing hla diagnosls op phyalnal nbsawatlons.

‘patient Intervléw anda mental status exam. On the first vislt, the Aespondent startad

N Patlent E on Armour Thyrold at 90 mglday fnr two days, with. an antlnipatsd Inoraasc fo

130 mglday for one week, than 270 mg!day for one weak and then 360 mgfday Ona

rnonlh |ale| afler en April 23, 2004 uﬁlc:e visit, the Respondent further inoreased tha

dosage of Armour Thyrold to 450 mg!day for two- Weeka. then to 540 mgfclay
1.20 ./On or about May 2E| 2004 Patlent E consulted with Dr Mary Shepard al

- Kaléar_Foqndguon Health P]an with a comp!alm, of tachycardia (fapkd heart boat),

or, Sheparq'érdewd lahoratory tests thal resulted In a repart of TSH so low Itfs almost

not detectable (I.e. Less than 01 with a normal range of .28 =5,00), Such a lab result
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ls consfstent with hyperthyroldism, Dr, Shepard ads:rlsad Patlenl:E fo Qtup‘i;klng Ar:nour J
Thyrold. ‘ . i
_ 1.21 Three days Ia.tar. an Juna 1 2004. Patient E complalned. o the
Hespondam abuut her tachyuardla atlaok and symptoms of hyper!hyrold and reported
that she was still exparlencing & fiuttering heart rate, The Hagpondent recummanqad |
: 1.l:1at Patient E decrease her dosage from 640.mg/d ay lo 450 mg/day, and i ihat'_doasn’t
resolve the tachycardia, then to 380 mg/day. Patlent E again called the Respundeni on
June 1 2004. to raport the Iabor‘aldry test rasults previously noted ﬁy Df Shepard The
Haapﬂndant “assured" Patlent E that “the Armour Thyrold rnlght have dlstonad tha TSH .
results and for her to dacreaae the Armour Thyrold untll pomfortabte" ’ :
'(Exhibu D-6, pg. 4); .
1,22 Tha mega- duaage lavsts of Armour Thyrold approvad by the Rospondenl '

. for Patlent E.of 540 mg!day cauaad 1 hyperthyrqld stale In Pailent E Evan with the
- Irepc:rt of the 1abnratory test, the Haapondam fallad to racognlze the tast‘a cons|atancy

" with the cllnlcal symptoms than prasehtin Patiant E. The Haspondent‘a Arrru:aur Thyrolcl

-ragimen wlth Ratient-E plaoad her at & Blgnmcant risk of harm. Aunurdlngly. tha .
' Haapondam s freatment of Pa!ient E 1a||a ba!ow the standard of oare af a reasonably

prudant physiclan practioing In Washlng’mh. ' - - F
Patient F '

1,28 Patlent F was 4 46 ydar old female when presenting for treatment by the
. Respondent on Qctober 19; 2004, Intake notas by the Respondent on the patient’
Interview Indloated & ﬁrlor. dlagmosls of depression of “mild-to moderale severity” In
FINDINGS OF FACT.
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years past, significant walght ge;ln over the years, prlor'uae of Prr.;z'ao", 'Fia:iil anc'i L
) Wellbutiln for dapraaslon wlthuut effsctive results, and a fﬂmlly hiatow ot obaslly‘ i
dlﬂbaias, and Hypathyroldlam ’
i 24 Qn Ootobar 19, 2004, the Hlasponclant dlagnoa&d Patlent leth .
"dysthym1a and 7 borderline hypothyrold but has not baen datectéd by ourrent lab,"
" There s no record of the F!espondeni urdarlng any Iaboralury laats to aasial It a
hypothyrold diagnosis of Patlent F, "
| 25 The Hespondent kept Paﬂant Fon Waubutrln and Zoloﬂ whloh are
©antl- depreasants. He then praacrlbad Addaratl XH 30 my twice daily (o] t:.omrn! Patlant
| .F's appet\te Tha Respondent also praaorlbad Armour Thyrold to Patient F .on
: "Dclobar 19, 2004, The Initiéy dose of Amour Thym\d Wes 90 mgidav for two days, then -
- lncrnased to 180 mg!day for one week, then' 270 mg/day mr another weak and then to
. 360 mg/day. “ PR ¥ A '
126 As opined by an'exﬁert (or. Laﬁng) for the Filaspor{dalht"Fétlant Fwas a
“dlﬂlcull pailant" gWen her twelve yeer history of deprassion varlous madlcatlons that
; had not b@en offeotive, slesp daprivation, ofc, ‘The Haspondant i} attampting In hls
" ana!yala and preaorlbing. In the opinion of Dr, Leung. "o do someihmg to help Patlenl
F. Airhough there fs no 1ndtcallon of actual harm to PatlentF from the Armour'rhyrold
dosage, he excess Armour Thvrnld placed Patlent F ata rlak of harm As such. the

. Respondent's’ treatmem ot Patient Ftaus below the st&mdard of care of-a reaaanabiy

prudent phys&clan praolioing In Washlngmn
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| 27 ‘Patlent G was a 23 year old Iem ale when traated by the Haapundam
baglnnlng August 31 aoo4 The Haspondam diagncmad Paliant a wlth "mood dlsorder..
npn-apac:%llc. mayba lrom aub slinloal hypothyrold:” Tha Hespondenl ordarad laboratory
testa khat Indloaled normal |hyrald function and cnmrnanted thay were not conolusive,
He datermined that Patlent a should be treated based o his dlinical ubsawaﬂona and
'patlant intawiaw '
1 25 The Hespondant presoﬂbecl Armouwr Thyrold to Patlent G on Augustm
' '2004 The Initlal dose of Armour Thyrold was 80 mg/day ror two daya and 1han
_ Ihoreased to 180 mg/day. One wqek ater, on Septembar 8, 2004, the Armour Thyr;:ld
+ dosage was Increasad to.270 mgldéy The Hespc;ndant noled on September-8, 2004,
that Patlent G had only then baen on ArmourThym\d for 4 days as the pharmaoy had to-
order Bl but there Had bean no advaraa aﬂ‘acts Also on Saptembar 3 2004. the
lHespondent added Adderall XR 30 mg onca dally
. 1,20 On Septembqr 24, 2004, the dosage of Armour Thyrold was 1noraased o
. séo mg!day On Novembar 12, 2004, tha-Haapnndam incre asad Patlent G’a dnsgga of
Adderall 30 mg lo twioe dally, and then on Decenber 3, 2004, the Respondet '
l approved an Innrease In her dnsage of Adderall 30 mg 1o three \imes dally, perhaps as
a result of welght galn by Patont @, ' |
: ' 1.30 Wlth respect to the last dosage recommanded for Adderall, tha ‘usual

- mﬁxlmum recommended dose of Adderall Is 60 mg/day, and by December 3, 2004 the'
Be:"apondant was recommending up to 90 mg/day of Adderall, With such a dosage, the
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patlent Is at risk fénr central dew&ua 'a'yalamj ovar stimulation, t'auhyca'rél'a, _anld'

hybar_tenstnn. The excees Addfe'rall dl‘d place PatlentQ ata sk of harm. Simllarly, thé'

380'mg/day @osape of Armour Thyrold placed Patlont G at a risk of harrr\: as |t exceeds

" the recommended maximum of 160 mgfday ‘With ;as;:aot to the He‘s';p'c;ﬁd'ém'

prasoribing raglman for both of these medications, his freatment of F‘atlent C-; fails below

1ha standard of oare of a reasonabiy prudent physlolan praotlolng in Washlngton.

© Other Findlngs ‘

- 131 Although there can be dlﬁlpuln} In readlnlg't%:ia Respondent's haﬁc}wﬂﬂn

I-apt;tla il r.addrtig' In terrs of lagibllity, the G;bminiaalon doss pof find t'ji'o;a re:oorgls befow

: the standérd of care glven the difﬂomty In deciphering many physlclans' 'ha.ridwrllinq. |
The Commisslon also does not find thé completeness ur organization of the examlnad
patlent records in this matter to create a slandard of care issua. Given s own |
axpariance and the tesllmnny of the paychlatrist expana on the pracﬂoa of psychlatrlals
in \helr record—kasping. especlaﬂy In non- !namutlonal Eatllngs onh es the

' Hespondent‘s. the Oommisaion doea not find thelr Iormat or complel&nass ial1 below 1ha
standaid of care.

1,82 Based on the tastlmony of the Haspondant the expert wltnasaea, and the
record, the Commylssion recognizas and finda that there may be appmpglata . '
clrcumstances to- uael stlmqmnts and thyrold madlball‘on in a treatment regimen

. Incorﬁorated py psychlatriats, especially In those clreumstances whare the traditional,”
“tfon,tvllne," drugs have beer tried and nol been suocessful with long-term, chronleelly .
dopressed patlents, Claarly, the Respondent ls a ballever In such altarnative
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gpprbaohas for ao'mg of his {:atlénté. IBut' thyrold n;adinatioﬁ andcatlmdlarl'lta can not be
used without the naocessary fouﬁdatlun 'and monitoting for thé"elfeuia ihat cl:an ooour,
siich as cardlumyopathy. cardlac rhythm dlaturbanam;. tremora, and hypartansion, The
use Of these medlcatfona raqmraa a more caraful and vlgorous approach, and
_ laboratory tesling, than what cmuumad In tha Respnndant’s care of the patlants noted In
these findings., While thyruld supplementation to antldepressant madicatlon lsa
' recugnizadl treatment, the doses of thyrold medlcatlc;n used by the Haap'bnéant ware
grsaﬂy In excess of what Is usually consldared safs
g CONGLUSIONS OF LAW
+ 3.9 At all tlmea matarlal fo the 8t aiamant of Ohargaa, the Hespondent has
. been licensed to praauce med!clne Inthe atata of Washlngton. The Commlssior has
Jurisdiotlon to hear this matter, pursuant lo ‘Chapter 18 'r"l HCW Phyalelana. and
 Chapter 18.130 ROW.- the Unlfpr Disclplinary ASt
' 2.2 The Washlngtan Supreme Gourt has held that’ the standard of prnnf n "
dlsctp!lnary proceedings agalnst physlulans before the Commlss!on ls proof by clear and
convinalng evidence. Nguyen 2 Dﬂpartmant of Haa!m 144 Wn, 2d 516. 534. gorl,
.+ denled, 535 U 8. 904 (2002), In all ﬂndlngs (orming the baala of this urdar, the '
Commlsslon has applied the olear and nnnvlnclng standard
2,3 ' The Commisslon reviewed the admitted exhiblts and oonsldered the
testimony, Including thl:; de:m'ea‘nor of all winesses, Further, thé Commisslon usqd Its .
'B};pariqnoe. compatency, and aj'::aolatized knowledge to evaluate the evidence
presented In this casée, F!OW’34..(}5.4331(6)'. There was substantlal expert leslimeny on -
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this ma&erfmm both the Fiaspondant and the Depariment. Expertteatlmony Is
' snmetlmsa helpILil. but not egsentlal, for the Commlsslon In consldering a casa and 1n
datarmlnlng the standard of dare, .Johnston v. Washfngron State Msdical Dfsafpimary
Board, 69 Wn.2d 466 (1983), Brown v, Stats Daparfmenro! Haa!th Medical Dlsofpﬂna!y
Board, 94 Wn, App. 7, roview denled 13 wh. 201010 (1600),
2.4 Thl Unlform Dlaclpllnary Act (the UDA) defines what onnduat ama, or
condltiona constitule unprofessional conduct, Wlth respect to his cura of eaoh of the
~elght patients noted In the Statement of Oharges. the: Raspondant has been charged
" with violating RDW 18,180, 130(4) Any such vlolatlon gonstitutes unprofesslonal
conduct undet the UDA. RCW 18.130. 1&0{4} provides as fOl[OWS.
(4) Incompetence, negligence; or malpractice which, rasults in Injury‘to
a patlent or whioh creates an unreasonablarisk thal a patient may be
harmed, The use of a nontraditional traatment by Itaalf shall not constitute *

unprofessional conduct, provided that It does not resuit In Injury to a
patlent or oreate.an unreaaonable tisk that & patlant may be harmed,

' ‘2.6 Based on Finding of Faut 1,32 which Is generally applloabla o the
. Haspondent‘s practice. and Findlngs of Fact: (I) Paragraphs 1.9 through 118 for -

" Patlent A, () Paragraphs 1, 14lhmugh ( 1aiorPatlantD (lli) Paragrapha*l 19 thtcuph 4t
1,22 for F'atlam E; (iv) Paragraphs 1.23 through 1 26 for PatiemF and (v) Paragrapm '

1,27 lhruugh 1,80 for Patient @, the Depariment proved by nllar and oonvinolng

* avidence that the Respondent's conduqt constitutes Unprolelslona! conduat as daﬂnad '

In RCW 18,180,180(4), The Respondents conduct In those cases, for tha 1easons
stated, does not meet the standard of oare of a reasonably prudant physlolan prpotlclng
in IWae;;h!ﬁgion State, .
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28 Upen a'finding of unprofessional conduct, the Cpmmlaélbn may lasue an
order'pi'ovidlng for one or a combinatlon of sanctions including, inter afia, fevocation of ,
the phyalolan'a lleense, suspenslon, prebation,-oensure, and fines, See generally
ROW 18,130,160, | |

In determining what action Is appropriate, the disciplinary authorlty must

firat conelder what sanctions are nacessary fo profect of compensale rha

public. Only after such provislons have been made may the disclplining: -

authority consider and Include In the arder requirements designed to
'rehablluata the license holder, /d, (emphasis added) '

2,7 The Hespondant requested the Commission not to find unprotaaaional
conducl After concading on mu}tlpte ocvaslons:during the hearing the reed for
laboratory teating on a golng forward basls to asslst In monltoring the ‘potentially harmful
effects (Inclyding & hyparthyrollcl state) of Armour Thyrold dosages, the Respondent
daslred io'a;fold the at]:;ma and fihanclal effect whlc‘n could be |mpo'sacl by tﬁird-pérty
payers (managad cara, lnaurahce gompanles) on his practlue in the event oI a finding of
' unproieaelonal conduct and aanotlona The Respondent clalms the Statemenl of

Gh arges, the summary- suspanalon Imposad on hla practloe on May 26, 2006 and tha
'Dapartment's casa at hsarlng are mlaguided (bayond the naad for lab testlnu) Inany
event. the- Heapondent olalms to havé bacome mare enllghtenad since the 20032004
' paﬂanl dare that was the subiac:t of this proceadlng, and he should be truated without
requlred.sanetion or monitoring at this' stage. Glven his dangerous use af Armour
Thyrold, at times, the promise of the Respondent 10 do better In the futura dnﬂa not:

gddress tha Commisslon's tfequirement to arrive et a sanotlon that can protect the

publlc.'
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2. 8 {';)'n the olfwr Ha'nd. the bapa.rtment raquaétad one or. more of.a varlety of )
poaslh!a aanctluna. Includlng a full assassment by Ihe Ganter for F'arannallzed ' |
. 'Eduoatlon for Physlaiana (CPEP) In Oo!ora.do, other in!anslva tralning, a manlor' of the |
Ftespondgnt's practioe for SOme porlod, fines, and preacrlptlva .praouca mon_uorlng.

29 The c::mmléalon concludes a cortain degreé of mdnlln'ring by and
raportlng o tha Gommlsﬁ!on durlng a proballonary period, espaoially onthe
‘ Hespondant'a prescriptive practioes, Is nacessary to arrlve at a just sanction thal
protacts the public, H.OWEW’ tha Commission doas-not belleve a OPEP assossment of
other Intensiva tralning Is necessary b assura the ﬁaspondaﬁi'é cbmpet@ﬁby ‘ ‘.

= 210 In additlon, RCW ‘IB 180,160(B) providas thp Oommlsalon may levy aflne .
for aaoh unprofessional oonduot vlolat\on not to exceed $E 000 per: v1u|atlon, and Ihis
gddressas what sann!ion is naoassary to compsansata the pubu ; The Commisslon flnds
' theit & somewhat minimal flna agalnat the Heap::ndent of §2, 500 ls appropriata. Glven

the numbar of violations wlth raspeot | to the noted pallanta the law wnuld parmlt a more

ejubstgntlal ﬂna than the $2,500 lmpasad.

. DFIDERS ;

Based on he foregolng, the COmmtsalon hareby laauas 1n thls case tha falloWlng
ORDERS: |

| 8,1 The lloense of the Hespondant Patrick Chau, to practice as a physiclan

‘and surgeon Is hereby REINSTATED FROM THE BUMMAHY SUSPENSION, and Is

1ns,\sad plaoad on PF\OBATIDN for two years subject to the following requirements: -
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‘(A) If ﬁqt aquady In place, the Reaponr;i qnt n;ué;tllnatll;.xta ﬂ‘l'ld te
cbnt[nuausly lmplemehl appropri'a!e ptesoribing p‘racllcs fo'r his 'thyrdid e dloa‘lloris lo
Inolude but.nof be limited to perludlc labura!onr tasling to ewoid hypﬂrthyroimam and
other hammiful affests of such thyrold use, ' |

(B)  Noless than threa practice reviews shall be performed 'bvltha

' Commlsslon or Its designee on the Respondant's practice, vilth th'a,ﬂrét one to occur

. within six montha of the date of this Order, and then at the twelve month and twenty-four

month lntawa[a dating from this Order Each auch revlew ahall provlda A uaneral

overview of lhe Haapondent's ptact\ca ‘with spaclal emphasls on the Respondent's

'prasurlptlnn protooal 1or thyrufd rnadicallons and stimufants, and the documentatlon of .

thyrold Iab tea{lng, In his payohlatrlc praoﬂca Further, the Oommlsslor\ representative
shall inapaut ofﬂoe raoords madloatkan |oga and medical raonrds as naaded and
Intarvlaw the F\Bapondam, any’ prafesalunal steff or pnrtners, and uffic\a slaff,

(C)  Upon written tequest from the Cnmmlsslon. the Respondent shell
appear before the Commiselon at six month Intervals durlpg the flirst year oi this Order
'(aﬂer' the required praotloe ravlaw(s) hava been cnmple'ted} fo demonstkata his -
compliance wlth the terms of thls Drdar. wlth the first c:ornpllance appearance in

May 2007 or as soon theraartar as the Commisslon's séhedule parmlis. At any umaa

* beglhning aﬂer lha aeonnd praatice reviaw regulred by this Order has ocnurred {i:8. after
' approxlmataly 12 manths from the date hereof), the Fleapqnden\ may flle a wrlllt_en

" petition to appear bafore the Commission to request a modification or terminalion of the

probatlanary conditions of this Order, Any modiiieation or early termination of this Qrder

FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

. AND FINAL ORDER . _ Page 18 of 22

Docket No. 08-04-A-1014MD




. ghall onuur atthe Commlas!on & sole digcretion, The lhird praotloe revlaw shall aoour

-+ afer the Haspondanthaa baen under probation for twio yoars (If not earller terminatéd), ©

3, 2 Tha Flaapondanl Is hareby finad tha amount of $. 2, 600,00, payelma on or 1

bafore May 1, 2007, The fine ahail ba pald by certlfled or cashler's chaok or money

arder, mada payable 1o |ha Dapartrnent of Health and mal!ad to the Dapanmanl of

-Health Madlcal Quallty Aasuranoe Commission, PO Box 1088, Dlympla Washlnqtdn'
9350? 1098,

83 The charges In this matter with respact to Patlents B, C, and H,'as sef

“forth In'the Siatemﬂnt of Ohargaa Paragraphs 1, 14 1.15, and1 28 29 (respectivaly),

are haraby DISMIBBED '
34 The Respondent shall be responsible and shall pay for any'and all costs

|I'WDWBC| In his compllance with any and all conditions In thls Orﬂar, and cc:mp'uy with all

federat atate and local laws, and- all admlnlatratlve ules governlng the praatlca of the -

i medlcal prolasalon in Washlngton

3.6 Tha Hospondant sh&ll inform the Curnmisslon I wrlting. of any changes

In hls resldenilal or profasaional praol[oa(s) addressos within twenty (20) days of the

change.
3 8 Parlods of elther residenay (without a pra.cuca] or praoticlng outside the

" state of Waahington shall not apply tu the reduction of tha wo year ‘perled of probaﬂon
oonismplataq By thls Order,, :
F  *

I}

'
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" V. BAILURE.TO COMPLY °

* & Pfolecllun of lhe pbllo requires practioe undsr the turms and umndlnnns Impoaed

in this.Qudar, FaJiure o comply with the lerms und oondltluna of thia G\rder may rasull in

* . suspenalon of the aredantlal after n ahow cause haaﬁnq. If the Ftespondnnt falls to

comply with the lerms and conditions of this Order, the Gomm)sslon may hold a, hearlhg

‘to'réqulre the Respondent 1o show caliso why the oredpritlal should not be suspended. .

Allernalivaly, the Commission. may bring additional oharges of unprofessional conduol

undsr REGW.18.180,180(8), Irl oifher aaso, the ﬂaspnndant }Nlli bé nf[urdad nu'lloa und -

" t"

an uppurtunﬂy for & hoaring on 1he Isaua of non- compllange Ao

Dated thlg __g/_ tay ol Navembar. 3006,
Mﬂfﬂﬂﬂ[ Quality Assurance C-‘nmmlaa!arv

EQEJNIEEL@HE.QEL! (nternal baoldng numbaru}
Program Moo, 2004-03-0048, 2004-03-0078, 2004-08-0045, 2004-00-0001, 2m4-11-onza ! T
2006-07-0030 - .

GLERK'S SUMMARY

Charges . Aotlon ‘
RCW 18.130,180(4)  Violated
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: ‘ . NOTICE TO PARTIES : g s 5
This order [s subjact 1o the reporting requiysments of RCW 18,130;110, Section E

+ 1128E of the Soclal Ssourity Adt, and any ather applleable Interstate/national reparting

requirements, |f adverse actlon is taken, It mus! be reported to the Healthcare Inte :
Proteotion Data Bank. S 1o ; heare Integrity :

Ellher party may file a petition fof reconsideration, RCW 34.05,461 (é);

- 94.06,470, -The petltion must be flled wilhin 10 days of service of this Order with:,

Adjudioative Servica Unit
P.O, Box 47879 _
Olympla, WA 98604-7879 .

and a oopy must be gent to:

Medical Quallty. Assurance Commlsslon
P.O, Box 47866
Olympla, WA 98504-7856

The petillon must state the s]laeclllo grounds u'pnn which reconslderation Is requested
and the rellef requested. . The petltion for reconsideration |a consldered denied 20'days

. " alterthe Cratltiun Is filed if the Adjudicative Service Unit has not responded fo the pefition
. or serve

writtan notice of the date by which attion will be taken on the pefitian,

" Apetitlon for Jutlicial review must bo flled and sarved within 30 days difter
sarvice of this order, RCW 84.06.642, The proceduras are dentified in.

. chapter 84,06 RCWV, Part'V, Judlclal Review and Civll Enforcément, A petition far

reconsideration ls not required before seeking judiclal review. If & petition for
reoonsideration Is flled, however, the 30-day perlod wii begin to run upon the resolution
of that petition, RCW 34.06.,470(3), : e S

~ Thils order remalns In affect even If a petition for reconsidaratlon or petilion for-
review s filed, “Filing" mearis actual recelpt of the document by the Adjudloative
Servioe Unit’ RCW 34:05.010(6), This order was “gerved" upon you on the day It was
deposited In the Unlted States mall, RCW 84.06.010(18).

FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONGLUSIONS OF LAW

' AND FINAL ORDER . Page 22 of 22

Docket No, 06-04-A-1014MP




STATE OF WASHINGTON
. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH :
EDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION _
In the Matter of - E No. M2003-117387 :
PATRICK K. CHAU, MD STATEMENT OF CHARGES

Credential No. MD00030053

'Respondent

The Health Services Corisultant of the Medical Quality Assurance Commission
{(Commission), on.designation by the Commission, makes the.allegations below, which
are supportad by the evidence contained in program file number 2007-59025 The
patient referred fo in this Statement of Charges is identified in the attached Confidential

Schedule.

. 1. ALLEGED FACTS
1.1 On August 13, 1992, the state of Washrngton issued Respondent a
credential to practice as a physician and surgeon. Respundant’s credential is currently
| active.
12 Respondentis a board-certified psychiatrist who treated Patisht A irom Aprl
to July 2007. In treating Patient A, Respondent violated the standard of care in the
_ following ways: : '
‘ A.  When he first saw Patient A on April 2, 2007, Respondent diagnosed her
with a severe anxiety disorder, for which he prescribed Xanax a benzodiazepine
also known as alprazolam in its generic form. Respondent staited the patient on
six mIIIigrarr'rs per day. Thl'_s dose is well beyond the usual starting dose of
alprazolam and is in Itself a highly addictive dose of this medir:.atlbn, which is
addictive at fhrea milllgramé Respondent has alsc demonstrated a hattern of
" prescribing excessive, addictive amounts of benzodiazepines for oiher patients.
B. Respc:ndant next saw Patient. A'on April 30, 2007. At that time, he
.. diagnosed her with bipolar disorder and started her on Topamax for the purpnse of
mur:d stabilization. Topaméx ‘has no proven effects as a mood stabilizer. In
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" addition, Respondent noted that he was starting the patient on Armour Thyroid and
Adderall as an alternatwe therapy for depresslon stating that the patient had a
failed history with standard antidepressants. Armouir Thyroid and Adderall act as
stimulants. Respondent started the patient on sixty milligrams per day of Adderall,
an unduly high ataﬂing dose for that medication, and therefore below the standard
of care. He also started her on 90 milligrams of Armour Thyroid, to be increased
to 180 milligrams per day if “OK" after "2 or & days’, nhich is a dosage tnai is -
extremely high, potentially toxic, and therefore below the standard of care. At the
‘same visit, Respondent noted that Patient A had self-reduced the amount of
Xanax she was taking, and he insisted that she take five milligrams a day, which is
an addictive dose.’ Respondent has also domonstrated a pattern of proaoriblng
excesgive, dangerous amounts of stimulants and thyroid medication for other
patients, | ' '

C. ' .ByJuly 2007, Patient A was oxporienomg some very ooncemlng symptoms

' that were the result of hyperthyroldism including a hand tremor, issues with
speech, bugged ouf eyes, sweating, and nausea. According to Patient A,

| Respondent dismissed these symptoms and denied they could result from the
medications he had preocnbed her, Patient A reports certain symptomatlo
episodes, starting on July 12“‘ during which hor symptoms of sweating, nausea,
and vomitlng worsonod and she exporlenced difficulty owallowlng -and breathing,
felt her heart racing, and oxperlenood confusion and disoﬂentatlon When she
called Respondent with her concerns oyor these symptoms, Respondent
répo_rted!y discouraged Patient A from going to the emergency room, and he
instead had her discontinue Topamax. When that alleviated some, but not all, of -

* the symptoms, Respondent reportedly denied that the rnedioaﬂono could be'the
cause, and he tried to get the patient to re-start Topamax. Within a few days,
Patient A was In the emergency room, and she was ultimately diagnosed with
hyperthyroidism, tachycardia, and possible thyroi& toxioity Respondent should '
have heeded the warning signs of hyperthyroidism and potentlal toxicity when his

: patlont first reported her symptoms to him. lnstoad ho mlnlmlzed her complaints '
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t

: a_nd discouraged her from going to the hospital. As a resdlt, he placed Patient A at
risk of severe harm and. quite likely caused her perma'nent ihjury.

'f.3 Respondent went to a hearing before the Commission in September-2006
based on allegations that he was prescribing high dtﬁsas of Armour Thyroid without
monitoring thyroid levels and was also prescribing high doses of stimulants. In its
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Final Order of November 8, 2006 (2006, Order),
the Commission determined that Respondent did not meet the standard of care of a
reasonably prudent physician practicing in Washington State. The remedies included that
Respondent was to “continuously implement appropriate prescribing practices for his
thyroid medications". 2006 Order, :

A. Respondent has violated that order by continuously prescribing high doses of

thyroid medication. | | a

2. ALLEGED VIOLATIONS '
2.1 Based on the Alleged Facts, Respondent has committed unprofessional conduct

in violation of RCW 18.130.180(4) and (8), which provide:

RCW 18.130.180 Unprofessional conduct. The following conduct, acts,
or conditions constitute unprofessional conduct for any license holder or
applicant under the jurisdiction of this chapter: '

(4) Inconipetence, negligence, or malpractice which results in injury to a.
patient or which creates an unreasonable risk that a patient may be-
harmed. The use of a nontraditional treatment by itself shall not constitute
unprofessional conduct, provided that it does not result in injury to a
patient or create an unreasonable risk that a patient may be harmed;

(9) Failure to comply with an order issued by the disciplining authority or a
" stipulation for Informal disposition entered into with the disciplining

authority; -

2.2  The above violations provide grounds for imposing sanctions under
RCW 18.130.160. . g i

i
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~ 3. NOTICE TO RESPONDENT |
The charges in this document affect the public health, safety and welfare. The
‘Héalth Services Consultant of the Commission directs that a notice be issued and
served on Respondent as provided by law, giving Respondent the opportunity to defend
- against these charges. If Respondent fails to defend against these charges, Respondent
shall be subject to discipline and the imposition of _sant:tiuns under Chapter 18.130 RCW,

DATED: Qio&; .. .'lzooa.

STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE

COMMISSIDN

f A C\Bw&m&_

ERIN OBENLAND
HEALTH SERVICES CONSULTANT

- SAN L. PIERINT, WSBA # 17714
. ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
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.CONFIDENTIAL SCHEDULE
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'STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

In the Matter of:

' Master Case No. M2008-117887
PATRICK K. CHAU, M.D.,
Credential No. MD00030053, ; EX PARTE ORDER OF
s SUMMARY RESTRICTION
Respondent.

PRESIDING OFFICER:  Laura Farrls, Senior Health Law Judge

COMMISSION PANEL:_ Richard Brantner, M.D., Panel Chair
Theresa Elders, Public Member
Hampton W, Irwin, M.D.

'I_'hls matter came before the Medical Quality Assurance COmmlsslonl(Commisson)
on July 15, 2008, on a Motion for Order of Summary Restriction brought by the Medical.
Program of the Department of Health.(Department) through the Office of the Attorney |
General. The Debartmant issued a Statément of Charges alleging Respondent violated
RCW 18.136.1 80(4) and (9). -After reviewing the Statement of (‘.‘.harges. Motion, and
supporting evidence, the Commission grants tha'motic;n. Respondent’s credantla].to " e

practice as a physician and surgeon is RESTRICTED pending further action.

I. FINDINGS OF FACT : {
1.1 Patrick K. Chau, M.D. (Respondent), is a physician, credentialed by the

" State of Washington at all times applicable to this matter.

| 1.2 The Départment issued a Statement of Charges alleging. Respondent |

~ violated RCW 18,130.180(4) and (9). The Statement of Charges was accompanied by
all other documents required by WAC 246-11-260.
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1.3  As sst forth in the allegations in the Statement of Charges, as well as the
motion for summary action, Respondent, a psychiatrist, treated Patient A from
- April 2007 through July 2007, for what he initially dlagnoéed as banlc and anxlety

disorder, subsequently adding a diagnosis of bipolar disorder, Exhibit A (Respondent's

e THEE o R

chart for Patient A).. ﬁespondent started the patient on a daily regimen of six milligrams
of Xanax, a benzodiazepine also known by its generic n'ama. alprazolam. He later
adjusted the désae to five milligrams. After he diagnosed the patient with bipolar
disorder, Respondent started her on Topamax as a mood stabllizer. He also started her
'on a daily rggimen of 60 rnilllgrafns of Adderall, an amphetamine, land 160 milligrams of
Armour Thyroid, ostensibly to treat her depresslon.- Exhibit A, progress note for.

April 2, and.30, 2007. |

1 4  Benzodiapines such as Xanax are addictive in doses of three milligrams
per day. By prascrlblngkﬂva or six mllligrahs per day to Patient A, Respondent plac.jéd
her 6_n a highly addictive dose. Declaration of David L. Dunner, ] 5(A-B). In addition, a
. pharmacy profile from 2007, reflects that Reépondant often prescribes his patients |
benzodiazepines such as alprazolam, clonazepam, and lorazepam in highly addictive
amounts, sometimes as high ag'etght or ten mllllgrﬁms p;ar day. Exhibit B
(K-Mart pharmacy profile).

1.6 Respondent also prescribed Patlent A an unduly high Startlng dose of
Adderall, and a dose of Armour Thyroid that was “exiremely high, potentially toxic, and
therefore bétow the standard of care.” Dunner declaration, Y 5(B). The K-Mart pharmacy
profile reflects that this is also a paittern. ﬁespondant frequently prescribes high doses

of amphetamine and Armour Thyraid. See Exhibit B.
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16 In Junalaoo?, Patler)t A developed symptoms of hyperthyroidism,
iﬁclﬁdlng a hand tremor and poor speech, and her eyes Were “bugged out.” Exhibit C
(Patient A's complaint). Ftespondlnt dismissed these symptoms as unrelated to the
medlcatlons he prescrlbed !d

1.7 Bymid July. Patient A was sufferlng from severe symptoms of
hyparthyroldism, including severe nausea, vomiting, confusion, dlfﬂculty swallowing,
difficulty breathing, profuse sweating, dizziness, confusion, and disorientation, and a
racing heart beat. Exhibit C. On or about July 16", she called Respondent 1o tell him
she was headed to the hosﬁﬁal d[za to these symptoms. Exhibit C; see also, Exhibit A,
progress note for ;:'116/07. Ftespohdent told her not to go to the hospital, and he
instructed her to discontinue Topamax to alleviate the symptoms. Exhlbft C.

1.8 | Although some of the symptoms subsided, they did not resolve.
'Hespundent told Patient A that she could not have been suffering side effects from her
. medications. Exhibit C. PatlaﬁtA subsequently experienced another. exacerbation of
her symptoms, and, on Jﬁly 19", she.went to the arﬁargancy room, where she was
tachycardic. See, Exhibit D (chart from Patient A’s emergency room stay) at
pages 4-8 of 34. In addition, her T4 level was high and her TSH level was abnormally
Jlow. Exhibit D, page 10 of 34. She was subgaque ntly seen in The Vancouver Clinic,
where she was diagnosed with hypeﬁhyroidisrﬁ and iatrogenic thyrotoxicosls. Exhibit E,
(The Vancouver Clinlc charl). |

1.9 Respandarit has failed and refuséd to acknowledge that Patient A suffered
from hyperthyroidism or that Respondent's prescription for Armour Thyroid caused that

condition. See, Exhibit H (Respondent's 10/15/07 letter to Department of Health
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investigtor). Together with Respondent’s failure to appreciate the emergent situation
when Patient A was exhl‘btﬂng the signs of hyperthyroidism, Hespond_ent‘s prescribing
practices pose a consl&erabie risk to the pul;;lic. | Exhiblt C; Dunner decl.aration, 1 5(C).

1.10 Respondent's prescriblné practices reflect a fundamental lack of .
understanding of appropriate polypsychopharmaceutical practices. In the case of

Patient A, he prescribed high doses of stimulants {Armour Thyroid and Adderall), then

tried to counterbalance the stimulating effect wi.th Xanax and Topamax. As Dr. Dunner
indicates, "i‘hls Is a simplistic, inappropriate, and potentlally dangerous way to prescribe

~multiple medications.” Dunner declaratlori. 1 5(E). .

1.11  In September 2006, Respondent went to hearing before the Commission
on 'nha@eé that he was excessively dosing patients with Armour Thyrold and Adderall.

' The‘ Commission found that Hes;ionﬂent _vidlatad the standard of care in treating five
pat!enlts. and ordered him, among other things, to “institute and continuously implement
appropriate prescribing practices for his thyroid medications . . . ." Exhibit F (Findings of '
Fact, Conc\ﬁsions of Law and Flnél Order, dated November 8, ?.DDB), 13.1(A). Inthe

‘case of Patient A, and with respect to ot‘her- patients listed on the pharmacy profile,
Héspo‘ndent continues to prascﬂba large and Inappropriate amounts of Armour Thyrold
to mental health patients. Exhibits B and C; Dunner declaration, 1 5(D).

| Il. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW |
2.1  The Commission, has jurisdiction over Respondent's credential to practice

as a physician and surgeon. RCW 18.130.040,
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22 The Commission has authority o take emergency adjudioative action to
address an Immediate danger to the public health, séfety. or welfare,
RCW 84.05.422(4); RCW 34.05.479; RCW 18.130.080(7); and WAG 246+11-300,
2.3 - The Findings of Fact establish the a;clshanoa of an immediate danger {0
the public health, safety, or ﬁa}fare It Respondent has an unrestricted cradental. The
Findings of Fact establish that the requested summaQ action Is necessary and

 adequately addresses the danger 1o the public health, safsty, or welfare. As Dr. Dunnier

opines, “Respondent poses an imminent danger to the public and will continue to

. Tepresent a threat to public safety unless he Is preciuded from prescribing any thyrold: _
' madldaﬂoﬁs. stim ulants of any kind, and bemudlazeplnaé." Dunner declaration, 9 6.

' Iil. ORDER | o

" Based on the Findings of Fact and Concluslons of Law, It 's ORDERED that
Respondent's practics is RESTRICTED. Respondent may not prescribe ary
ﬁanzodlazéplnas. thyrold medications, or stimulants pending final resolution of this

case.
g‘ "
 Dated this __/ /D =day of July, 2008,
" [ ¢ Aenctaze 7 WL é « 2
;" FHICHARD BRANTNER,
: Panel Chalr i
. EXPARTEORDEROF !
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STATE OF WASHINGTON F]z: E
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MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION 7 ;
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In the Matter of No. M2008-117887 %Q
%
PATRICK K. CHAU, MD AMENDED STATEMENT OF
License No. MD00020053 CHARGES
Respondent

The Disciplinary Manager of the Medical Quality Assurance Commission
{Commission), on designation by the Commission, makes the allegations below, which
are supported by the evidence contained in program file numbers 2007-59025,
2007-50024, 2008-127206, 2008-128752, 2008-128936, 2008-1 28964 and 2008-131732.
The patients referred to in this Amended Statement of Charges are identified in the
attached Confidential Schedule.

1. ALLEGED FACTS

141 On August 13, 1992, the state of Washington lssued Respondent a license
to practice as a physician and surgeon. Respondent's license is currently subjectto a
summary restriction.

12 Respondent is a board-certified psychiatrist who treated Patient A from April
to July 2007. In treating Patient A, Respondent violated the standard of care in the
following ways:

A. When he first saw Patient A on April 2, 2007, Respondent diagnosed her

with a severe anxiety disarder, for which he prescribed Xanax, a benzodiazepine

also knéwn as alprazolam in its generic form. Respondent started the patient on
six milligrams per day. This dose is well beyond the usual starting dose of
alprazolam and Is in itself a highly addictive dose of this medication, which is
addictive at three milligrams. Respondent has also demonstrated a pattern of
prescribing excessive, addictive amounts of benzodiazepines for other patients.

B.  Respondent next saw Patient A on April 30, 2007, At that time, he

diagnosed her with bipolar disorder and started her on Topamax for the purpose of

mood stabilization. Topamax has no proven effects as a mood stabflizer, In
addition, Respondent noted that he was starting the patient on Armour Thyroid and
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Adderall as an alternative therapy for depression, stating that the patient had a
falled history with standard antidepressants, Armour Thyroid and Adderall act as
stimulants. Respondent started the patient on sixty milligrams per day of Adderall,
an unduly high starting dose for that medication, and therefore below the standard
of care. He also started her on 80 milligrams of Armour Thyroid, to be increased
to 180 milligrams per day if “OK" after "2 or 5 days", which is a dosage thatis
extremely high, potentially toxic, and therefore below the standard of care. Althe
same visit, Respondent noted that Patient A had self-reduced the amount of
Xanax she was taking, and he insisted that she take five milligrams a day, which is
an addictive dose. Respondent has also demonstrated a pattern of prescribing
excessive, dangerous amounts of stimulants and thyroid medication for other
patients.

C. By July 2007, Patient A was experiencing some very concerning symptoms
that were the result of hyperthyroidism, including a hand tremor, issues with
speech, bugged out eyes, sweating, and nausea. According to Patient A,
Respondent dismissed these symptoms and denied they could result from the
medications he had prescribed her, Patient A reports certain symptomatic
eplsodes, starting on July 12", during which her symptoms of sweating, nausea,
and vomiting worsened, and she experienced difficulty swallowing and breathing,
felt her heart racing, and experienced confuslon and disorientation. When she
called Respondent with her concerns over these symptoms, Respondent
reportedly discouraged Patient A from going to the emergency room, and he
instead had her discontinue Topamax. When that alleviated some, but not all, of
the symptoms, Respondent reportedly denied that the medications could be the
cause, and he tried to get the patient to re-start Topamax. Within a few days,
Patient A was in the emergency room, and she was ultimately dlagnosed with
hyperthyroidism, tachycardia, and possible thyroid toxicity. Respondent should
have heeded the warning signs of hyperthyroidism and potential toxicity when his
patient first reported her symptoms to him. Instead, he minimized her complaints
and discouraged her from going to the hospital: As a result, he placed Patient A at
risk of severe harm and quite likely caused her permanent Injury.

T
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13  Respondent went to a hearing before the Commission in September 2006
based on allegations that he was prescribing high doses of Armour Thyroid without
monitoring thyroid levels and was also prescribing high doses of stimulants. In its
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Final Order of November 8, 2006 (2006 Order),
the Commission determined that Respondent did not meet the standard of care of @
reasonably prudent physiclan practicing in Washington State. The remedies included that
Respondent was to “continuously Implement appropriate prescribing practices for his
thyroid medications”. 2006 Order, §13.1(A). Respondent has violated that order by
continuously prescribing high doses of thyroid medication.

1.4 Respondent started seeing Patient B in February 2002 for medication
management and psychotherapy. Patient B suffers from panic and anxiety disorders,
He was 40 when he started treatment with Respondent and had a history of alcohal
dependency requiring detoxification. Patient B had been in treatment with another
mental health provider, who had tried Patient B on a variety of psychotropic
medications. When he started with Respondent, Patient B was taking a
benzodlazepine, Klonopin (generic name clonazapam), for anxiety. Because the
Klonopin gave Patient B severe headaches, he was also taking the oploid Norco
(hydrocodone and acetaminophen).

‘ 1.5  Intreating Patient B over the next several years, Respondent prescribed
increasingly high doses of benzodiazepines and oplolds. He replaced Patlent B's
Kionopin with Xanax (alprazolam) a few months after he started treatment, and he
added a second hydrocodone-based opioid (at first Lortab, and later Viocoprofen) to the
Norco the patient was already taking, concluding that the opioids helped control the
patient's anxiety as well as his benzodlazepine-induced headaches. This was in
addition to other medications Respondent had Patient B try without any success. By
the time Respondent had to stop treating Patient B due to a summary suspension the
Commission irnpbsed in May 2006, he was prescribing dally doses of 28 milligrams of
Xanax, twelve 10/325 milligram tablets of Norco (he had previously prescribed up to 15
Norco tablets per day), and nine to twelve 7.5/200 milligram tablets of Vicoprofen per
day (up to 210 milligrams of Hydrocodone per day).

1.6' During the time Respondent's license was suspended (May through
November, 2006), Patient B saw a different provider, who discontinued Norco and
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reduced the Vicoprofen and Xanax prescriptions. Patient B returned to treatment with
Respondent in March 2007, after the suspension was lifted. Respondent continued the
patient on a daily dose of twelve tablets of Vicoprofen 7.5/200 and 24 milligrams of
Xanax per day, and he added 0.9 milligrams of Catapres (clonidine) to the daily
regimen.

17 Intreating Patient B, Respondent violated the standard of care in the
following ways:

A. Patient B was on adEii‘cting doses of benzodiazepines and opioids when

he started seeing Respondent. At that point, Respondent should have had

Patient B detoxified rather than continue to support his treatment and, over time,

increase the prescribed amounts of addictive medications.

B. Respondent increased Patient B's already addictive and dangerous doses

of opioids and benzodiazepines. In addition, there is no evidence of much, if

any, resulting improvement to the patient's condition. ’

C. Respondent's prescriptions of large amounts of oploids likely caused

Patient B to become addicted to narcotics, Respondent failed to consider and

try Patient B on non-addictive alternatives to treat his headaches. Respondent

also failed to pursue a recommendation that Patient B see a neurologist

regarding his headaches. '

1.8 As aresult, Respondent harmed, or created an unreasonable risk of
harm, to Patient B.

19 Respondent treated Patient C for depression from August 2005 through
May 2006, when he stoppe'd because the Commission suspended Respondent's
license. Patient C returned to Respondent in May 2008 and continued In treatment
through August 2008.

110 When he stopped treating Patient C in 2006, Respondent was prescribing
a daily regimen of 60 to 90 milligrams of Adderall, and one to two milligrams of Niravam
(quickly absorbed alprazolam). The patient transferred his care to another provider,
who weaned him off of his medications, including Adderall although the physician soon
raturned the patient to a daily regimen of 30 milligrams of Adderall in addition to two
anti-deprassants.
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1.11 When Patient C returned to Respondent's care in May 2008, Respondent
changed the regimen by prescribing only Adderall and increasing the dose. By the end
of the month, Patient C was taking 120 milligrams of Adderall per day.

112 On July 15, 2008, Patient C notified Respondent that he had undergone a
spell of weeping and crying. Respondent called in a prescription for Prozac (fluoxetine)
to improve the patient's mood. Patient C called again that day to report a “panic ke
epl-sode", including numbness and tingling in his hands, and feelings of fear and
nervousness. Respondent responded by calling in a prescription for Xanax.

113 On August 7, 2008, Respondent charted that the patient's Adderall
prescription was excessive and that he needed to taper it down, Because Respondent
was, at that time, subject to a summary restriction which prohibited him from prescribing
such medicationﬁ, he suggested Patient C seek the care of another provider for
medication management. Patient C went to the emergency room on August 14, 2008,
suffering from panic attacks which likely resulted from the large amount of
amphetamine Respondent had prescribed,

114 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient C. He failed
to recognize that Patient G was clinically deteriorating due to the amount of -
amphetamine he was taking. In addition, Respondent failed to consider other
{reatments for the patient's resistant depression, such as the addition of atypical
antipsychotics to the Prozac.

1,15 On August 28, 2008, the Commisslon's investigator requested that
Respondent produce his complete medical chart for Patient C. Respondent failed to
produce records from August 2005 through May 2006.

1.16 Respondent has engaged In a pattern of prescribing high doses and large
amounts of addicting medications, particularly benzodiazepines, to new patients who
claimed to need ongoling treatment at such doses, but who also provided rationales for
transferring their care to Respondent, such as that they recently moved from another
state or part of this state, or that they changed or lost their insurance. Specifically:

A, Respondent saw Patlent D on July 11, 2008. Patlent D reported that he

suffered from anxiety, moved from another state three months befere, and was

stable on a daily regimen of ten milligrams of alprazolam that his previous
provider prescribed, Respondent planned to prescribe at that dose for three
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months before seeing the patient again. He did not obtain any records or
otherwise verify Patient D's treatment history. Patient D did not return as
requested.

B. . Respondent first saw Patient E on March 21, 2008, Patient E reported
that he suffered from anxiety, was stable on a daily regimen of up to eight
milligrams of Xanax that a psychlatrist in another state prescribed, but that he
needed to change psychiatrists due to a change in Insurance coverage.
Respondent gave Patient E a prescription for a three-month supply, and he
asked the patient to return in three months. He did not obtain any records or
otherwise verify Patient E's treatment history. On July 7, 2008, Respondent
provided Patient E with three more one-month pre'scriptions for Xanax.

C. Respondent first saw Patient F on June 11, 2008. Patient F reported that
he suffered from anxiety, had moved from another state the month before, and
was stable on a daily regimen that his previous provider prescribed of up to ten
mitigrams of Xanax and up to 1,400 milligrams of Soma, the latter for muscle
spasms and panic control. Respondent gave Patient F a prescription for a three-
month supply, and he asked the patient to return in three months, He did not
obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient F's treatment history. When
Patient F returned In September 2008, Respondent prescribed Xanax and Soma
for another three months, along with two other medications.

D, Respondent first saw Patient G on March 11, 2008. Patient G reported
that she suffered from panic attacks, had recently moved from another state, and
was stable on a daily regimen of eight milligrams of alprazolam that her previous
provider prescribed. Respondent gave Patient G a prescription for a three-
month supply, and he asked the patient to return in three months. He did not
obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient G's treatment history. When
Patient G returned that June, Respondent prescribed another three-month
supply of Xanax.

Ei Respondent first saw Patient H In early May 2007. Patient H reported that
she suffered from panic, anxiety and depression, that she had recently moved
from another area, and that her anxiety and panic symptoms were sta blecona
dally regimen of up to ten milligrams of Xanax that her previous provider
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prescribed. She was also taking Soma for back pain and an anti-depressant,
which she reported was not effective. Respondent gave Patient H a prescription
for a four-month supply of Xanax and had her continue on Soma. He had her
wean off of the anti-depressant, and he started her on a daily regimen of 180
milligrams of Armour Thyroid (after taking 90 milligrams per day for two days)
and 60 mifligrams of Adderall. Respondent did not obtain any records or
otherwise verify Patient H's treatment history. He continued to see the patient
and prescribe Xanax and Soma, among other medications.

F. Respondent first saw Patient | on May 28, 2008, Patient | reported that
she suffered from depression and panic attacks, was referred to Respondent
after her pravious prescribing physician retired two months before, and was
stable on a daily regimen of ten milligrams of Xanax that her previous provider
prescribed. Respondent gave Patient | a prescription for a three-month supply,
and he asked the patient to return in three months. He did not obtain any
records or otherwise verify Patient I's prescription history. Respondent
prescribed another three-month supply on August 28, 2008.

G. Respondent first saw Patient J on Februafy 22, 2008. Patient J reported
that she suffered from panic attacks, had been in treatment with another
psychiatrist for the preceding eight years, which was intermittent due to the
patient's limited ability to pay for treatment, and had been stable on a daily
regimen of six milligrams of Xanax, plus up o an additional one and a half
milligrams for breakthrough panic, that her previous provider prescribed. She
also reported that Respondent treated and maintained her on Xanax the
previous year, but Respondent was unable to locate her chart. Respondent
gave Patient J a prescription for a three-month supply and asked her to return in
three months. Me did not obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient J's
treatment history. Reépondent continued to provide the patient with
prescriptions every three months. He increased the daily dose of Xanax to ten
mitligrams at Patient J's second visit on May 23, 2008,

H. Respondent saw Patient K on August 20, 2008. Patient K reported that
he suffered from panic symploms, stopped seeing his previous provider two
months before for insurance reasons, and had previously been stable on a daily
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regimen of six milligrams of Xanax and six milligrams of Klonopin that his
previous provider prescribed. The patient also reportedly ran out of his
medications and had experienced withdrawal symptoms, Respondent gave
Patient K prescriptions for three-month supplies of each benzodiazepine, and he
asked the patient to return in three months. He did not obtain any records or
otherwise verify Patient K's treatment history. -
l. Respondent first saw Patient L on June 12, 2008, The patient reported
that she suffered from anxiety, panic attacks and depression, stopped seeing her
previous provider three months before for Insurance reasons, and had previously
been stabie on a daily regimen of six milligrams of Klonopin and up to four
milligrams of Xanax for breakthrough panic, that her previous provider
prescribed, although the Klonopin reportedly made her sleepy. She also
reported having run out of her medications. Respondent gave Patient L
prescriptions for three-month supplies of eight milligrams of Xanax per day and
two mitligrams of Kionoplin at night, and he asked the patient to return in three
months. He did not obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient L's treatment
history. He re-prescribed the same regimen on September 5, 2008.

J, Respondent first saw Patient M on February 22, 2008. Patient M reported
that he suffered from Panic Disorder, had recently moved from another part of
the state, and was stable on a daily regimen of eight milligrams of Xanax that his
previous provider prescribed. Respondent wrote Patient M one prescription for a
three-month supply of Xanax. He also wrote for a two-month supply of
OxyContin, 80 milligrams twice a day, even though Respondent did not chart
anything about pain in his intake note (the chart does contain evidence that the

patient suffered from chronic pain as recently as September 2006). Respondent
did not obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient M's prescription history.
On February 26, 2008, Patient M returned, stating he had lost the prescriptions
that Respondent wrote four days before, and indicating he needed another
three-month supply because he worked on a fishing boat out of Alaska and was
about to. leave for three months. Respondent gave Patient M another three-
month supply of Xanax. Respondent did not chart any other visits with
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Patient M. Respondent continued to write prescriptions to Patient M for eight’
milligrams per day of Xanax. On May 6, 2008, Respondent wrote for another
90-day supply of Xanax, even though the prescription Respondent wrote on
February 26™ should have lasted through late May, and, according to the
patient's statement, he should have been away at sea in early May. On May 30,
2008, Respondent gave Patient M a five-month supply of Xanax. In Just aver
three months, Respondent wrote Patient M prescriptions for a one year and two
month supply of Xanax.

K. Respondent first saw Patient N on July 2, 2008, Patient N reported that
she suffered from panic symptoms, stopped seelng her previous provider two
months before because she lost her insurance, and had been stable until her
insurance lapsed on a daily regimen of eight milligrams of Xanax. Respondent
gave Patlent N a prescription for a one-month supply of Xanax, which he
renewed monthly, and he asked her to return in three months., Respondent also
started her on Norco 10/325, two tablets three times dally, even though the
patient did not report pain symptoms and did indicate that she had previously
obtained complete relief from her panic symptoms with Xanax. Respondent did
not obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient N's treatment history. In
October 2008, someone reported to Respondent that Patient N was selling her
“nain killers" for profit and that her husband was a “meth”.

L. Respondent saw Patient © on July 25, 2008. Patient O reported that she
suffered from back pain and related anxiety, lost her health coverage and moved
from a different state two months before, and that she had relief from pain with
the narcotic Vicodin (hydrocedone and acetimenophen) 7.5/700 that her
previous provider prescribed. Respondent prescribed a three-month supply of
Vicodin 7.5/700, four times daily, and asked the patient to return in three months.
Respondent did not obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient O's treatment
history.

M. Respondent first saw Patient P on June 10, 2008, Patient P reported that
she suffered from chronic pain and anxiety, discontinued treatment six months
before when she lost her insurance, and had experienced refief with Xanax, five
milligrams per day and hydrocodone/acetaminophen 10/325. Respondent wrote
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prescriptions for a three-month supply of Xanax, five milligrams per day, and
Norco 10/325, up to three per day as needed. Respondent did not obtain any
records or otherwise verify Patient P's treatment history. In the ensuing months,
through October 16, 2008, Respondent increased Palient P's Norco prescription
to up to six tablets per day, although he refused her request to increase it further
to eight tablets. He also decreased her Xanax to three milligrams per day as she
was taking less than the prescribed amount. Respondent also accommodated .
Patient P on September 29, 2008, by authorizing an early refill of a 15-day
prescription for Norco that had been filied on September 22™ pased on the
patient's representation that she had travel plans. He again accommodated her
on October 2™ by writing another 15-day prescription for Norco after Patient P
told him someone else had picked up the prescription that was filled on
September 20", On October 18, 2008, Respondent wrote a 16-day prescription
for six tablets per day of Norco with four refills. He also wrote a 15-day
prescription for 1,050 milligrams of Soma per day with four refills. Respondent
never verified Patient P's treatment history.

N. Respondent first saw Patlent Q on May 20, 2008. Patient Q represented
that he suffered from Panic Disorder, had moved from another state two months
before, and that his symploms were stable on ten milligrams of Xanax per day
that his previous provider prescribed. Respondent gave Patient Q a prescription
for a three-month supply of Xanax and asked him to return in three months,
Respondent did not obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient Q's treatment
history. Patient Q did not return as requested.

0.  Respondent first saw Patient R on September 23, 2006. PatientR
reported that she suffered from anxiety, panic disorder, and obsessive
compulsive disorder, that she had lost her insurance, and that although she
generally did well on a daily regimen of 10 milligrams of Klonopin, eight
milligrams of Xanax had not helped with breakthrough episodes of panic.
Respondent prescribed a dally regimen of 10 milligrams of Klonopin and up to
four milligrams of Niravam for panic breakthrough symptoms. Respondent did
not obtain any recolrds or otherwise verify Patient R's treatment history. He has
continued to treat Patient R, changing the Niravam to Xanax, and adding Soma,
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As of September 2008, Respondent was preseribing a daily regimen that
included ten mingrérns of Xanax, four milligrams of Klonopin, and 1,050
milligrams of Soma.

117 Respondent violated the standard of care with respect to Patients D
through R by:

A. Failing to recognize that the patients were on addicting doses of

medications and refer them to an approprlate}detoxification facility.

B. Repeatedly providing new patients with three-month supplies of high

doses of addictive medications without planning to see the patients for three

months.

C. Ignoring possible drug-seeking and diversion behaviors, and not

requesting medical records from other providers or otherwise substantiating the

patients' reported treatment and prescription historles. ‘
As a result, Respondent placed these patients at an unreasonable risk of harm.

1.48 Respondent also violated the standard of care in treating patients J, K, L,
N, and R by prescribing high doses of benzodiazepines and other medications even
though, by the patients' reports, they had been drug free, rather than starting them at a
lower dose and titrating up if warranted. By restarting them at high doses, Respondent
out them at risk for adverse effects, such as sedation. |

149 In addition to the standard of care violations described in Paragraphs 1.16
and 1.17, Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient H by staring her
on an unduly high starting dose of Adderall (60 milligrams per day) and an extremely
high and potentially toxic dose of Armour Thyroid (180 milligrams per day after two days
at 90 milligrams) in violation of the 2008 Order. '

1.20 In addition to the standard of care violations described in Paragraphs 1.16
and 1.17, Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient K by prescribing
two benzodiazepines, both at addicting doses.

121 In addition to the standard of care violations described in Paragraphs 1.16
and 1.17, Respondent violated the standard of care in prescribing OxyContin to Patient
M and Norco to Patient N because he did not document that they suffered from current

pain complaints.
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1.22 Patient S first saw Réspondent on January 23, 2008. Patient S reported
that he suffered from Post Traumatic Stress Disorder and insomnia and that his
symptoms improved when he tried two milligrams of Xanax supplied by "other people”.
Respondent prescribed a daily regimen of eight milligrams of Xanax, wrote for a three-
month supply, and asked the patient to return in three months. The patient returned
one month early, on March 25" at which time Respondent increased the prescription to
ten milligrams per day and again wrote for a three-month supply. On May 30, 2008,
Patient S told Respondent that he was leaving the area for a summer job in Alaska and
that he needed a 90-day supply of Xanax to last him for that period. Respondent
provided the requested prescription.

1.23 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patlent S. He started
the patient on an unduly high and addictive dose of Xanax instead of starting at a safer,
lower dose and titrating up if warranted. He also disregarded signs that the patient was
drug-seeking and possibly diverting. In accepting the patient's claim that he needed a
90-day supply of Xanax because he was going to work in Alaska for the summer,
Respondent accepted at face value a brief note-to that effect that the patient provided.
The note was purportedly written by another of Respondent's patients.

1,24 Respondent provided records indicating he resumed treatment of Patient
T on December 29, 2006, after having previously treated her from March 2005 through
May 2006, Despite the Commission's investigator's request, Respondent did not
provide records from the earlier treatment period. Patient T complained of depression,
fatigue, sluggishness, and poor attention and concentration. Respondent had
previously treated her with a daily regimen of 180 milligrams of Armour Thyroid and 30 |
milligrams of Adderall. Respondent returned the patient to those médlcations at the
previous doses, and he continued to 'treat her, eventually increasing her daily Adderall
to 60 milligrams.

1.25 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient T and placed
her at an unreasonable risk of harm. Respondent reinstituted a high dose of thyroid
medication without titration. He aiso has failed to clinically monitor her for symptoms of
hyperthyroidism. Respondeni's treatment of Patient T constitutes a violation of the
2006 Order,
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1.26 Respondent first treated Patient U from January through May 2006.
Patient U reported that she was depressed, tired, and lacked energy, was slow thinking,
had thinning hair, brittle nails and puffy eyes, and she had a history of abnormal weight
gain since childhood. She also reported a family history of borderline hypothyroidism.
Respondent started Patient U on 90 milligrams of Armour Thyroid, to be Increased to
180 milligrams after two days. Less than two weeks |ater, he increased the dosage to
270 milligrams. He also started the patient on 30 milligrams of Adderall. The patient
stopped seeing Respondent while he was summarily suspended from practice in 2000.
After the Commission entered the 2006 Order and Respondent returned to practice,
Patient U returned to see Respondent in February 2007, and he re-started her on
Armour Thyroid, this time on a daily regimen of 180 milligrams, as well as 30 milligrams
of Adderall, Patient U then stopped éeaing Respondent and discontinued medications
until September 8, 2008, when she returned to Respondent's care. Respondent re-
started her on 180 milligrams of Armour Thyroid and 30 milligrams of Adderall per day.

1.27 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient U, and he .
placed her at an unreasonable riek of harm, Respondent started the patient at an
unduty high dose of thyroid medication, and increased it to an even more dangerous
level. Respondent never screened Patient U for a thyroid disorder, even though her
gymptoms were consistent with hypothyroidism and she reported a family history. He
also failed to clinically monitor her for potential hyperthyroidism during the time he was
treating her. Respondent further violated the standard of care by starting Patient U on
high doses of Armour Thyroid when she retuned to his practice in February 2007 and
again in September 2008, .after she had been drug free, without any attempt at titration,
and without checking her baseline blood levels for possible thyroid dysfunction.
Respondent also violated the 2006 Order by providing substandard care in prescribing
Armour Thyroid to this patient.

128 Patlent V first saw seen Respondent from 2006 to 20086, although
Respondent did not produce any records from that period despite a request from the
GCommission's Investigator. Patient VV complained of depression, fatigue, lack of energy,
poor attention and concentration, and reduced memory. She also reported that her
primary care provider had checked her thyroid function and advised her that it was,
“borderline normal,” and she had a family history of hypothyroidism. During the initial
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period of treatment, Respondent prescribed Armour Thyroid and Adderall, 30
milligrams. Respondent did not order any labs to check her thyroid function. Patient V
ran out of medication after she stopped seeing Respondent in 2006. When she
returned on March 27, 2007, Respondent prescribed a daily regimen of 180 milligrams
of Armour Thyroid and 60 milligrams of Adderall. He again did not first order blood
work to check her thyroid function. Respondent did have the patient obtain lab work for
thyroid function four months later, in July. Since then, Respondent has continued
Patient V on high doses of thyroid medication, yet he has not clinically monitored her for
possible hyperthyroidism. Respondent has continued to see Patient V, who increased
her daily Adderall to 90 milligrams in May 2008 “to cover the awaking period of a day"
during the summer,

1.29 Respondent violated the standard of care In treating Patient V, and he
placed her at an unreasonable risk of harm. In March 2007, he started her on high,
dangerous doses of Armour Thyroid and Adderall without any effort to start at a lower
dose and titrate up if warranted. He falled to assess her thyroid function before starting
her on high doses for thyroid medication, and he did not check her blood levels before
starting her on thyroid medication despite the possibility that she suffered from
hypothyroidism. He has not clinically monitored her for possible hyperthyroldism.
Respondent's substandard practices In prescribing Armour Thyroid constitute a
violation of the 2006 Order. In addition, he increased the patient's Adderall to an even
more dangerous dose without a valid basis for doing so.

1.30 Respondent first saw Patient W on June 9, 2008. Patient W complained
of panic attacks, depression, extreme fatigue, sluggishness and lack of energy. She
also reported rapid weight gain and that her hair was "falling off fast.” Respondent
started Patient W on a dally regimen of 90 milligrams of Armour Thﬁlrold, to be
increased to 180 milligrams after three days if tolerated well, and 60 milligrams of
- Adderall. He also had the patient try Xanax, three to four milligrams per day.
Respondent did not order lab work at that time to check Patient W's thyroid function.
Respondent has continued to treat Patient W, decreasing her Xanax in October 2008.

1.31 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient W, and he
has placed her at an unreasonable risk of harm. Respondent started the patient on
high and potentially dangerous doses of Armour Thyrold and Adderall without any effort
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to try lower doses and titrate up if warranted. He did not check her thyroid function
before starting her on thyroid medication even though she exhibited clinical signs of
possible hypothyroidism. He has not clinically checked her for thyroid dysfunction on a
regular basis, Respondent violated the 2006 Order by providing substandard care in
prescribing thyroid medication to Patient W.

1.32 Respondent initially treated Patient X from March 2003 until Respondent’s
license was summarily suspended in May 2006. During that period, Respondent
dlagnosed Patient X with Attention Deficit Disorder, Mood Disorder, and Anxiety
Disorders, and he prescribed a daily regimen of a benzodiazepine, Valium (diazepam)
50 milligrams, and 60 milligrams of Adderall, which Respondent later increased to 180
milligrams per day. Respondent did not produce records from this time period to the
Commission's investigator when asked. Following the 2006 Order and Respondent's
return to practice, Patient X returned to Respondent on December 7, 2006. Patlent X
had run out of his medications, and Respondent noted that he suffered from depression
symptoms when not taking Adderall. Respondent restarted the patient on Adderall, 60
milligrams, and Valium, 30 milligrams, per day.

1.33 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient X, and he
placed him at an unreasonable risk of harm. During the initial phase of treatment,
Respondent started Patient X at high and dangerous doses of Valium and Adderall, and
he eventually increased the Adderall to an extremely dangerous dose of 180 milligrams
per day. When Patient X returned to Respondent's care in December 2006,
Respondent restarted him on a high daily regimen of Adderall, 60 milligram, without any
effort to titrate from a lower, safer dose.

* 2, ALLEGED VIOLATIONS

21 Based on the Alleged Facts, Respondent has committed unprofessional

conduct in violation of RCW 18.130.180(4), (8)(a), and (8), which provide:

RCW 18.130.180 Unprofessional conduct. The following conduct, acts,
or conditions constitute unprofessional conduct for any license holder or
applicant under the jurisdiction of this chapter:

(4) Incompetence, negligence, or malpractice which results in injury to a
patient or which creates an unreasonable risk that a patient may be
harmed. The use of a nontraditional treatment by itself shall not constitute
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unprofessional conduct, provided that it does not result in Injury to a
patient or create an unreasonable tisk that a patient may be harmed;

(8) Failure to cooperate with the disciplining authority by:

(a) Not furnishing any papers, documents, records, or other items,

(9) Failure to comply with an order Issued by the disclplining authority or a
stipulation for informal disposition entered into with the disciplining
authority;

22 * The above violations provide grounds for imposing sanctions under

RCW 18.130.160.
3. NOTICE TO RESPONDENT

The charges in this document affect the public health, safety and welfare. The
Disciplinary Manager of the Commission directs that a notice be issued and served on
Respondent as provided by law, giving Respondent the opportunity to defend against
{hese charges. If Respondent fails to defend against these charges, Respondent shall be
subject to discipline and the imposition of sanctions under Chapter 18.130 RCW.

DATED: 47-{;&/}4 mAj [ 1 2009

STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE
COMMISSTON

DANI NEWMAN
DISCIPLINARY MANA

AN'E PIERINI, WSBA # 17714
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
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CONFIDENTIAL SCHEDULE

This information is confidential and is NOT to be released without the consent of
the individual or individuals named below. RCW 42.56.240(1)

Patient A Patient M
Patient B Patlent N
Patient C Patient O
Patient D Patlenl; P
Patient E Patient Q
Patient F Patient R
Patient G Patient S
Patient H Patlent T
Patient | Patient U
Patient J Patient V
Patient K Patient W
Patient L Patient X
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 Aftachment D .

STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

In the Matter of No. M2008-117887 t
PATRICK K. CHAU, MD STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT,

License No. MD00030053 CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND

| AGREED ORDER
Respondent

The Medical Quality Assurance Commission (Commission), through Peter J.
Harris, Department of Health Staff Attorney, and Respondent, represented by counsel, |
Scott T. Schauermann, stipulate and agree te the following:

1. PROCEDURAL STIPULATIONS

1.1 OnJuly 16, 2008, the Commission issued a Staternent of Charges against :
Respondent, alleging that Respondent violated RCW 18.130.180(4) and (8). .

1.2  The Commission filed the Statement of Charges with an Ex Parte Motion for
Order of Summary Action. On July 15, 2008, the Commission granted the motion and
restricted Respondent from prescribing benzediazepines, thyroid medications, or

stnmulants pending final resolution of the case.
1.3 Following service of the Statement of Charges and the summary restriction

order, Respondent requested a show cause hearing under RCW 18, 130.135(1). On l
August 13, 2008, based on evidence presented at the show cause hearing, the .
Commission revised the summary restriction of Respondent's license to require: (a)
Respondent, in treating patients with benzodiazepines, thyroid medication and stimuianis,
to prescribe the lowest medically effective doses; (b) Respondent to prescribe to only one
pharmacy (c) each patient receiving such medications to sign a contract with terms that
the Commission specified; and (d) the Commission to perform an unannounced practice
review within three months to assure compliance.

1.4 On February 10, 2009, the Commission issued an Amended Statement of
Charges against Respondent, alleging that Respondent violated RCW 18.130.180(4),
(8)(a) and (9).
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- 1.5 Respondent understands that the State is prepared to proceed fo a hearing
on the allegations in the Amended Statement of Charges. '

16 Respondent understands that if the allegations are proven at a hearing, the
Commission has the authorlty to impose sanctions pursuant to RCW 18.130.160.

17 Respondent has the right to defend against the allegations in the Amended
Statement of Charges by presenting evidence at a hearing.

1.8 Respondent waives the opportunity for a hearing on the Amended
Statement of Charges provided that the Commission accepts this Stipulated Findings of
Fact, Conclusions of Law and Agreed Order (Agreed Order).

1.9 The parties agree to resolve this matter by means of this Agreed Order.

1.10 Respondent understands that this Agreed Order is not binding unless and
until it is signed and accepted by the Commission.

111  If the Commission accepts this Agreed Order, it will be reported to the
Heaith Integrity and Protection Databank (45 CFR Part 61), and it may be reported to the
National Practitioner Databank (45 CFR Part 60) and elsewhere as required by law. Itis
a public docurnent and will be placed on the Department of Health's website and '
otherwise disseminated as required by the Public Records Act (Chapter 42.56 RCW) and
the Uniform Disciplinary Act, RCW 18,130.110.

1.12 Ifthe Commission rejects this Agreed Order, Respondent walves any
objection to the participation at hearing of any Commission members who heard the
Agreed Order presentation. .
2: FINDINGS OF FACT

Although Respondent maintains that he would present evidence to refute some of
the following facts at hearing, Respondent and the Program acknowledge that the
evidence s sufficlent to justify the following findings:

21  OnAugust 13, 1992, the state of Washington issued Respondent a license
to practice as a physician and surgeon. Respondent'é license is currently subject to a
summary restriction.

22 Respondent is a board-certified psychiatrist who treated Patlent A from April
to July 2007. In treating Patient A, Resp_on'dent violated the standard of care in the '

following ways:
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221 When he first saw Patient A on April 2, 2007, Respondent diagnosed
her with a severe anxiety disorder, for which he prescribed Xanax, a
benzodiazepine also known as alprazolam in its genaric form. Raspondent
started the patient on six milligrams per day. This dose is well beyond the
usual starling dose of alprazolam and Is in itself a highly addictive dose of
this medication, which is addlctive at three milligrams. Respondent has also
demonstrated a pattern of prescribing excessive, addictive amounts of
benzodiazepines for other patients.

2.2.2 Respondent next saw Patient A on April 30, 2007. At that time, he
diagnosed her with bipolar disorder and started her on Topamax for the
purpose of mood stabilization. Topamax has no proven effects as a mood
stabilizer. In addition, Respondent noted that he was starting the patlent on
Armour Thyroid and Adderall as an alternative therapy for depression,
gtating that the patient had a failed history with standard antidepressants.
Armour Thyroid and Adderall act as stimulants. Respondent started the
patient on sixty milligrams per day of Adderall, an unduly high starting dose
for that medication, and therefore below the standard of care. He also
started her on 90 miliigrams of Armour Thyroid, to be Increased to 180
milligrams per day if "OK" after “2 or & days", which is a dosage thatis
extremely high, potentially toxic, énd therefore below the standard of care.
At the same visit, Respondent noted that Patient A had self-reduced the
amount of Xanax she was taking, and he insisted that she take five
milligrams a day, which is an addictive dose, Respondent has also
demonstrated a pattern of prescribing excessive, dangerous amounts of
stimulants and thyrold medication for other patients.

2.2.3 By July 2007, Patient A was experiencing some very conceming
symptoms that were the result of hyperthyroidism, including a hand tremor,
issues with speech, bugged out eyes, sweating, and nausea. According fo
Patient A, Respondent dismissed these symptoms and denied they could
result from the medications he had prescribed her, Patient A reports certain
symptomatic episodes, starting on July 12", during which her symptoms of
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sweating, nausea, and vomiting worsened, and she experienced difficulty
swallowing and breathing, felt her heart racing, and experienced confusian
and disorientation. When she called Respondent with her concerns over
these symptoms, Respondent reportedly discouraged Patient A from going
to the emergency room, and he instead had her discontinue Topamax.
When that alleviated some, but not all of the symptoms, Respondent ;
reportedly denied that the medications could be the cause, and he tried to
get the patient to re-start Topamax. Wlthin a few days, Patient A was In the
emergency roont, and she was ultimately diagnosed with hyperthyroidism,
tachycardia, and possible thyroid {oxicity. Respondent should have heeded
the waming signs of hyperthyroidism and potential toxicity when his patient
first reported her symptoms to him. Instead, he minimized her complaints
and discouraged her from going to the hospital. As a result, he placed
Patient A at risk of severe harm and quite Iikely caused her permanent
injury.

2.3 Respondent went to a hearing before the Commission in September 2006
based on allegations that he was prescribing high doses of Armour Thyroid without
monitoring thyroid levels and was also prescribing high doges of stimulants. Inits
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Final Order of November 8, 2006 (2006 Order),
the Commission determined that Respondent did not meet the standard of care of a
reasonably prudent physician practicing in Washington State. The remedies included that
Respondent was to “continuously implement appropriate prescribing practices for his
thyroid medications”. 2006 Order, 113.1(A). Respondent has violated that order by
continuously prescribing high doses of thyroid medication.

2.4 Respondent started seeing Patient B in February 2002 for medication
management and psychotherapy. Patient B suffers from panic and anxiety disorders. He
was 49 when he started treatment with Respondent and had a history of alcohol
dependency requiring detoxification. Patient B had been in treatment with another mental
health provider, who had tried Patient B on a variety of psychotropic medications. When
he started with Respondent, Patient B was taking a benzodlazepine, Klonopin (generic
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name clonazapam), for anxiety. Because the Klonopin gave Patient B severe
headaches, he was also taking the opioid Norco (hydracodone and acetaminophen).

2.5  In treating Patient B over the next severai years, Respondent prescribed .
increasingly high doses of benzodiazepines and opioids. He replaced Patient B's
Klonopin with Xanax (alprazolam) a few months after he started freatment, and he added
a second hydrocadone-based oplold (at first Lortab, and later Viocoprofen) to the Norco
the patlent was already taking, concluding that the opioids helbed control the patient's
‘anxlety as well as his benzodiazepine-induced headaches. This was in addition to other
medications Reapondani had Patient B try without any success. By the time Respondent
had to stop treating Patient B due to a summary suspension the Commission imposed in
May 2008, he was prescribing daily doses of 28 milligrams of Xanax, twelve 10/325
milligram 1ablets of Norco (he had previously prescribed up to 15 Norco tablets per day),
and nine to twelve 7.5/200 milligram tablets of Vicoprofen per day (up to 210 milligrams of
Hydrocodone-per day). :

2.6 During the time Respondent’s license was suspended (May through
November, 2dos). Patient B saw a different provider, who discontinued Norco and
reduced the Vicoprofen and Xanax prescriptions. Patient B returned to freatment with
Respondent in March 2007, after the suspension was lifted. Respondent continued the
patient on a daily dose of twelve tablets of Vicoprofen 7.5/200 and 24 milligrams of Xanax
per day, and he added 0.9 milligrams of Catapres (clonidine) to the daily regimen.

27  Intreating Patient B, Respondent violated the standard of care in the
following ways: g
271 Patient B was on addicting doses of benzodiazepines and opiolds
when he started seeing Respondent. At that point, Respondent should
have had Patlent B detoxified rather than continue to support his treatment
and, over time, increase the prescribed amounts of addictive medications.
272 Respondent increased Patlent B's already addictive and dangerous
doses of opioids and benzediazepines, In addition, there is no evidence of
much, if any, resulting improvement to the patient's condition.

2.7.3 Respondent's prescriptions of large amounts of oplolds likely caused
Patient B to become addicted to narcotics. Respondent falled to consider
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and try Patient B on non-addictive alternatives to treat his headaches.
Respondent also failed to pursue & recommendation that Patient B see a
neurologlst regarding his headaches.

28 As a result, Respondent harmed, or created an unreasonable risk of harm,
to Patient B. ‘

2.9 Respondent treated Patient C for depression from August 2005 through
May 2008, when he stopped because the Commission suspended Respondent's license.
Patlent C returned to Respondent in May 2008 and continued in treatment through
August 2008, .

2.10 Whén he stopped treating Patient C in 2006, Respondent was prescribing a
daily regimen of 60 to 80 milligrams of Adderall, and one to two milligrams of Niravam
(quickly absorbed alprazolam). The patient transferred his care o another provider, who
weaned him off of his medications, including Adderall although the physician soon
returned the patient to a daily regimen of 30 milligrams of Adderall in addition to two anti-
depressants. -

2.41 When Patient C retumed to Respondent's care In May 2008, Respondent
changed the regimen by prescribing only Adderall and increasing the dose. By the end of
the month, Patient C was taking 120 milligrams of Adderali per day.

2.12 On July 15, 2008, Patient C notified Respondent that he had undergone a
spell of weeping and crying. Respondent called in a prescription for Prozac (fluoxetine) to
improve the patient's mood. Patient C called again that day to report a "panic like
episode”, including numbness and tingling in his hands, and feelings of fear and
nervousness. Respondent responded by calling in a prescription for Xanax.

213 On August 7, 2008, Respondent charted that the patient's Adderall
prescription was excessive and that he needed to taper it down. Because Respondent
was, at that time, subject to a summary restriction which prohibited him from prescribing
such medications, he suggested Patient G seek the care of another provider for
medication management. Patient C went to the emergency room on August 14, 2008,
suffering from panic attacks which likely resulted from the large amount of amphetamine
Respondent had prescribed. '
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214 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient C. He failed to
recognize that Patient C was clinically deteriorating due to the amount of amphetamine
he was taking. In addition, Respondent failed to consider other treatments for the
patient's resistant depression, such as the addition of atypical antipsychotics to the
Prozac,

2.1 On August 28, 2008, the Commission's investigator requested that
Respondent produce his complete medical chart for Patlent C. Respondent falled to
produce records from August 2005 through May 2008.

2.16 Respondent has engaged In a pattern of prescribing high doses and large
amounts of addicting medications, particularly benzodiazepines, to new patiants who
claimed to need ongoing treatment at such doses, but who also provided rationales for
transferring their care to Respondent, such as that they recently moved from ancther
state or part of this state, or that they changed or lost their insurance. Specifically:

2.16.1 Respondent saw Patient D on July 11, 2008. Patient D reported
that he suffered from anxiety, moved from another state three months
before, and was stable on a daily regimen of ten milligrams of alprazolam
that his previous provider prescribed. Respondent planned to prescribe at
that dose for three manths before seeing the patient again. He did not
obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient D's treatment history. Patient
D did not return as requested.

2.16.2 Respondent first saw Patient E on March 21, 2008, Patient E
reported that he suffered from anxiety, was stable on a dally regimen of up
to eight milligrams of Xanax that a psychlatris{ in another state prescribed,
but that he needed to change psychiatrists due to a change in insurance
coverage. Respondent gave PatlentE @ prescription for a three-month
supply, and he asked the patient to return in three months. He did not
obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient E's treatment history. On July
7. 2008, Respondent provided Patient E with three more one-month |
prescriptions for Xanax.

2.18.3 Respondent first saw Patient F on June 11, 2008. Patient F
reported that he suffered from anxiety, had moved from another state the
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month before, and was stable on a daily regimen that his previous provider
prescribed of up to ten milligrams of Xanax and up to 1,400 milligrams of
Soma, the latter for muscle spasms and panic control. Respondent gave
Patient F a prescription for a three-month supply, and he asked the patient
to return in three months. He did not obtain any records or otherwise verify
Patient F's treatment history. When Patient F returned in September 2008,
Respondent prescribed Xanax and Soma for another three months, along
with two other medications.

2.16.4 Respondent first saw Patient G on March 11, 2008, Patient G
reported that she suffered from panic attacks, had recently moved from
another state, and was stable on a daily regimen of eight milligrams of
alprazolam that her previous provider prescribed. Respondent gave Patient
G a prescription for a three-month supply, and he asked the patient to
return in three months. He did not obtain any records or.otherwise verify
Patient G's treatment history. When Patient G returned that June,
Respondent prescribed another three-month supply of Xanax.

2,16.56 Respondent first saw Patient H in early May 2007. PatientH
reported that she sufferad from panic, anxiety and depression, that she had
recently moved from another area, and that her anxiety and panic
symptoms were stable on a dally regimen of up to ten milligrams of Xanax
that her previous provider prescribed. She was also taking Soma for back
pain and an anti-depressant, which she reported was not effective.
Respondert gave Patient H a prescription for a four-month supply of Xanax
and had her continue on Soma. He had her wean off of the anti-
depressant, and he started heron a daily regimen of 180 rnilllgrams of
Armour Thyroid {after taking 90 milligrams per day for two days) and 60
milligrams of Adderall. Respondent did not obtain any records or otherwise
verify Patient H's.treatment history. He continued to see the patient and
prescribe Xanax and Soma, among other medications.

2.16.6 Respondent first saw Patlent | on May 28, 2008. Patient | reported
that she suffered from depression and panic attacks, was referred o
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Respondent after her previous prescribing physician retired two months
before, and was stable on a dally regimen af ten milligrams of Xanax that
her previous prbvlder prescribed. Respondent gave Patient | a prescription
for a three-month supply, and he asked the patient to return in three
months. .He did not obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient I's
prescription history. Respondent prescribed another three-month supply on
August 28, 2008,
2.16.7 Respondent first saw Patient J on February 22, 2008, PatientJ
reported that she suffered from panic attacks, had been in treatment with
another psychiatrist for the preceding eight years, which was intermittent
due to the patient's limited ability to pay for treatment, and had been stable
on a daily regimen of six milfigrams of Xanax, plus up to an additional one
and a half milligrams for breakthrough panic that her previous provider
prescribed. She also reported that Respondent treated and maintained her
on Xanax the previous year, but Respondent was unable to locate her chart.
Respondent gave PatientJ a prescription for a three-month supply and
asked her to retum in three months. He did not obtain any records or
otherwise verify Patient J's treatment history. Respondent continued to
provide the patient with prescriptions every three months. He increased the
dally dose of Xanax to ten milligrams at Patient J's second visit on May 23,
2008.
216.8 Respondent saw Patient K on August 20, 2008. Patlent K reported
that he suffered from panic symptoms, stopped seeing his previous provider
two months before for insurance reasons, and had previously been stable
on a dally regimen of six milligrams of Xanax and six milligrams of Klonopin
" that his previous provider prescribed. The patient also reportedly ran out of
hie medioations and had experienced withdrawal symptoms. Respondent
gave Patient K prescriptions for three-month supplies of each
benzodiazepine, and he asked the patient to retumn in three months. He did
not obtaln any records or otherwise verify Patient K's treatment history.
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216.9 Respondent first saw Patient L on June 12, 2008. The patient
reported that she suffered from anxiety, panic attacks and depression,
stopped seeing her previous provider three months before for insurance
reasons, and had previously been stable on a dally regimen of six
milligrams of Klonopin and up to four milligrams of Xanax for breakthrough
panic, that her previous provider prescribed, although the Klonopin
reportedly made her sleepy. She also reported having run out of her
medications. Respondent gave Patient L prescriptions for three-month
supplies of elght milligrams of Xanax per day and two milligrams of Klonopin
at night, and he asked the patient to return in three months, He did not
obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient L’s treatment history. He re-
prescribed the same regimen on September 5, 2008.
2.16.10 Respondent first saw Patient M on February 22, 2008, Patient M
reported that he suffered from Panic Disorder, had recently moved from
another part of the state, and was stable on a daily regimen of eight
milligrams of Xanax that his previous provider prescribed. Respondent
wrote Patient M one prescription for a three-month supply of Xanax. He
also wrote for a two-month supply of OxyContin, 80 milligrams twice a day,
aven though Respondent did not chart anything about pain in his intake
note (the chart does contain evidence that the patlent suffered from chronic
pain as recently as September 2006). Respondent did not obtain any

" records or otherwise verify Patient M's prescription history. On February 26,
2008, Patient M returned, stating he had lost the prescriptions that
Respondent wrote four days before, and indicating he needed another
three-month supply because he worked on @ fishing boat out of Alaska and
was about to leave for three months. Respondent gave Patlent M another
fhree-month supply of Xanax. Respondent did not chart any other visits
with Patient M. Respondent continued to write prescriptions to Patient M for
eight milligrams per day of Xanax. On May 8, 2008, Respondent wrote for
another 90-day supply of Xanax, even though the prescription Respondent
wrote on February 26" should have lasted through late May, and, according
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to the patient's statement, he should have been away at sea in early May.
On May 30, 2008, Respondent gave Patient M a five-month supply of
Xanax. In just over three months, Respondent wrote Patient M
prescriptions for a one year and two month supply of Xanax.

2.16.11 Respondent first saw Patient N on July 2, 2008. Patlent N
reported that she suffered from panic symptoms, stoppéd geeing her
previous provider two months before because, she lost her insurance, and
had been stable until her insurance lapsed on a daily regimen of eight
milligrams of Xanax. Respondent gave Patient N a prescription for a one-
month supply of Xanax, which he renewed monthly, and he asked her to
return in three months, Respondent also started her on Norco 10/325, two
fablets thlE@‘ times daily, even though the patient did not report pain
symptoms and did indicate that she had previously obtained complete relief
from her panic symptoms with Xanax. Respondent did not obtain any
records or otherwise verify Patient N's treatment history. In October 2008,
someone reported to Respondent that Patient N was selling her “pain
killers" for profit and that her husband was a “meth".

216.12 Respondent saw Patient O on July 25, 2008. Patlent O reported
that she suffered from back pain and refated anxiety, lost her heaith
coverage and moved from a different state two months before, and that she
had relief from pain with the narcotic Vicodin (hydrocodone and
acetimenophen) 7.6/700 that her previous provider prescribed. Respondent
prescribed a three-month supply of Vicodin 7.5/700, four times daily, and
asked the patient to retum In three months. Respondent did not obtain any
records or otherwise verify Patient O's treatment history.

2.16.13 Respondent first saw Patient P on June 10, 2008, Patient P
reported that she suffered from chronic pain and anxiety, discontinued
treatment six months before when she lost her insurance, and had
experienced rellef with Xanax, five milligrams per day and
hydrocodonelacetam[nophen 10/325, Respondent wrote prescriptions fora-
three-month supply of Xanax, five milligrams per day, and Norco 10/325, up
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to three per day as needed. Respondent did not obtain any records of
otherwise verify Patient P's treatment history. In the ensuing months,
through October 16, 2008, Respondent increased Patient P's Norco
prescription to up to six tablets per day, although he refused her request to
Increase it further to eight tablets. He also decreased her Xanax to three
milligrams per day as she was taking less than the prescribed amount.
Respondent alsa accommodated Patient P on September 28, 2008, by
authorizing an early refill of a 15-day prescription for Norco that had been
filed on September 22" based on ihe patient's representation that she had
travel plans. He again accommodated her on October 2" by writing
another 15-day prescription for Norco after Patient P told him someone else
had plckéd up the prescription that was filled on September 20", On
October 16, 2008, Respondent wrote a 15-day prescription for six tablets
per day of Norco with four refilis. He also wrote a 15-day prescription for
1,050 milligrams of Soma per day with four refills. Respondent never
verified Patient P's treatment history.

216.14 Respondent first saw Patlent Q on May 20, 2008. Patient Q
represented thét he suffered from Panic Disorder, had moved from another
state two months before, and that his symptoms were stable on ten
milligrams of Xanax per day that his previous provider prescribed.
Respondent gave Patient Q a prescription for a three-month supply of
Xanax and asked him to return in three months. Respondent did not obtain g
any records or otherwise verify Patient O's treatment history. Patient Q did '
not return as requested. : » .
n16.15 Respondent first saw Patient R on September 23, 2008. Patlent R

reported that she suffered from anxiety, panic disorder, and obsessive

compulsive disorder, that she had lost her insurance, and that although she

generally did well cn a daily regimen of 10 milligrams of Klonopin, eight i
milligrams of Xanax had not helped with breakthrough eplisodes of panic.

Respondent prescribed a daily regimen of 10 milligrams of Klonopin and up

{0 four milligrams of Niravam for panic breakthrough symptoms.
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Respondent did not obtain any records or otherwise verify Patient R's
treatment history. He has continued to treat Patient R, changing the
Niravam to Xanax, and adding Soma. As of September 2008, Respondent
was prescribing a daily regimen that included ten milligrams of Xanax, four
milligrams of Klonopin, and 1,050 milligrams of Soma.

2.17 Respondent violated the standard of care with respect to Patients D through
R by:

9.17.1 Failing to recognize that the patients were on addicting doses of
medications and refer them to an approgriate detoxification facility.

2.17.2 Repeatedly providing new patieﬁts with three-month supplies of high
doses of addictive medications without planning to see the patients for three
months.

2.17.3 Ignoring possible drug-seeking and diversion behaviors, and not
requesting medical records from other providers or otherwise

substantiating the patients’ reported treatment and prescription histories.

As a result, Respondent placed these patients at an unreasonable risk of
harm.

2.18 Respondent also violated the standard of care In treating patients J, K, L N,
and R by prescribing high doses of benzodiazepines and other medications even though,
by the patients’ reports, they had been drug free, rather than starting them at a lower
dose and titrating up if warranted. By restarting them at high doses, Respondent put
them at risk for adverse effects, such' as sedation.

219 In addition to the standard of care violations described In Pafagraphs 2.16
and 2,17, Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient H by starting her
on an unduly high starting dose of Adderall (60 milligrams per day) and an extremely high
and potentially toxic dose of Armour Thyroid (180 milligrams per day after two days at 90
milligrams) in violation of the 2006 Order. '

220 {n addition to the standard of care violations described in Paragraphs 2.16
and 2.17, Respondent violated the standard of care In treating Patient K by prescribing
two benzodiazepines, both at addicting doses.

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT, PAGE 13 OF 24
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND AGREED ORDER :
NO. M2008-117887 . AQ —REV. 207



221 In addition to the standard of care violations described in Paragraphs 2.16
and 2.17, Respondent violated the standard of care in prescribing OxyContin to Patient M
and Norco to Patient N because he did not document that they suffered from current pain
complaints.

222 Patient S first saw Respondent on January 23 2008. Patient S reported
that he suffered from Post Traumatic Stress Disorder and insomnia and that his
symptoms improved when he tried two milligrams of Xanax supplied by “other people”.
Respondent prescribed a daily regimen of eight milligrams of Xanax, wrote for a three-
month supply, and asked the patient to return in three months. The patient returned one
" month early, on March 25", at which time Respondent increased the prescription to ten
milligrams per dgxy and again wrote for a three-month supply. On May 30, 2008, Patient S
told Respondent that he was leaving the area for a summaer job in Alaska and that he
needed a 90-day supply of Xanax to last him for that period. Respondent provided the
requested prescription.

223 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient S. He started
the patient on an unduly high and addictive dose of Xanax instéad of starting ata safer,
lower dose and titrating up if warranted. He also disregarded signs that the patient was
drug-seeking and possibly diverting. In accepting the patient's claim that he needed a 90-
day supply of Xanax because he was going to work in Alaska for the summer,
Respondent accepted at face value a brief note to that effect that the patient provided.
The note was purportedly written by another of Respondent's patients.

2.24 Respondent provided records indicating he resumed traatment of Patient T
on December 29, 2006, after having previously treated her from March 2005 through May
2008, Despite the Commission’s investigator's request, Respondent did not provide
records from the earlier treatment pericd. Patient T complained of depression, fatigue,
sluggishness, and poor atterttion and concentration. Respondent had previously treated
her with a daily regimen of 180 milligrams of Armour Thyroid and 30 milligrams of
Adderall, Respondent returned the patient to those medications at the previous doses,
and he continued to treat her, eventually increasing her daily Adderall to 60 milligrams.

2.25 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient T and placed
her at an unreasonable risk of harm. Respondent reinstituted a high dose of thyroid
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medication without titration. He alse has failed to clinically monitor her for symptoms of
hyperthyroidism. Respondent's treatment of Patient T constitutes a violation of the 2006
Order.

226 Respondent first treated Patient U from January through May 2006. Patient
U reparted that she was depressed, tired, and lacked energy, was slow thinking, had
thinning hair, brittle nalls and puffy eyes, and she had a history of abnormal weight gain
since childhood. She also repérted a family history of borderline hypothymidlsm.
Respondent started Patient U on 90 milligrams of Armour Thyroid, to be increased to 180
milligrams after two days. Less than two weeks later, he increased the dosage to 270
milligrams. He also started the patient on 30 milligrams of Adderall, The patient stopped
seeing Respondent while he was summarily suspended from practice in 2008. After the
Commission entered the 2006 Order and Respondent returned to practice, Patient U
returned fo see Respondent in February 2007, and he re-started her on Armour Thyroid,
this time on a daily regimen of 180 milligrams, as well as 30 milligrams of Adderall.
Patient U then stopped seeing Respondent and discontinued medications until
September 8, 2008, when she returned to Respondent's care, Respondent re-started her
on 180 milligrams of Armour Thyroid and 30 milligrams of Adderall per day.

227 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient U, and he
placed her at an unreasonable risk of harm. Respondent started the patient at an unduly
high dose of thyroid medication, and increased it to an even more dangerous level.
Respondent never screened Patlent U for a thyrold disorder, even though her symptoms
were consistent with hypothyroidism and she reported a family history. He also failed to
dlinically monitor her for potential hyperthyroidism during the time he was treating her.
Respondent further violated the standard of care by starting Patient U on high doses of ;
Armour Thyrold when she returned to his practice in February 2007 and again in
September 2008, after she had been drug free, without any attempt at titration, and
without checking her baseline blood levels for possible thyroid dysfunction. Respondent
also violated the 2006 Order by providing substandard care in prescribing Armour Thyroid
to this patient.

2.28 Patient V first saw seen Reé.pondent from 2005 to 20086, although
Respondent did not produce any fecards from that period despite a request from the
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Commission’s investigator. Patient V complained of depression, fatigue, lack of energy,
poor attention and concentration, and reduced memory. She also reported that her
primary care provider had checked her thyroid function and advised her that it was
"worderline normal,” and she had a family history of hypothyroidism, During the initial
period of treatment, Respondent prescribed Armour Thyrold and Adderall, 30 milligrams.
Respondent did not order any labs to check her thyroid function. PatientV ran out of
medication after she stopped seeing Respondent in 2008, When she returned on March
27, 2007, Respondent prescribed a daily regimen of 180 milligrams of Armour Thyroid
and 80 milligrams of Adderall. He again did not first order blood work to check her thyroid
function. Respondent did have the patient obtain lab work for thyroid function faur
months later, in July. Since then, Respondent has continued Patient V on high doses of
thyroid medication, yet he has not clinically monitored her for possible hyperthyroidism.

* Respondent has continued to see Patient VV, who increased her daily Adderall to 90
milligrams in May 2008 “to cover the awaking period of a day" during the summer.

2.29 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient V, and he
placed her at an unreasonable risk of harm. In March 2007, he started her cn high,
dangerous doses of Armour Thyrold and Adderall without any effort to start at lower
dose and titrate up if warranted. He falled to assess her thyroid function before starting
her on high doses for thyrold medication, and he did not check her blood levels before
starting her on thyroid medication despite the possibility that she suffered from
hypothyroidism. He has not clinically monitored her for possible hyperthyroidism.
Respondent's substandard practices in prescribing Armour Thyroid constitute a violation
of the 2006 Order. In addition, he increased the patient's Adderall to an even more
dangerous dose without a valid basis for doing so.

2,30 Respondent first saw Patient W on June 9, 2008, Patlent W complained of
panic attacks, depression, extreme fatigue, sluggishness and lack of energy. She also
reported rapld weight gain and that her hair was “falling off fast” Respondent started
Patient W on a daily regimen of 90 milligrams of Armour Thyroid, to be Increased to 180
milligrams after three days If tolerated well, and 60 milligrams of Adderall. He also had
the patient try Xanax, three to four milligrams per day. Respondent did not order lab work
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at that time tocheck Patient W's thyroid function. Respondent has continued to treat
Patient W, decreasing her Xanax in October 2008,

' 2.31 Respondent violélgd the standard of care In treating Patient W, and he has
placed her at an unreasonable risk of harm. Respondent started the patient on high and
potentially dangerous doses of Armour Thyroid and Adderall without any effort to try lower
doses and titrate up if warranted. He did not check her thyrold function before starting her
on thyroid medication even though she exhibited clinical signs of possible hypothyroldism.
He has not clinically checked her for thyroid dysfunction on a regular basis. Respondent
violated the 2008 Order by providing substandard care in prescribing thyroid medication
to Patient W. '

232 Respondent initially treated Patient X from March 2003 until Respondent’s
license was summarily suspended in May 2006. During that period, Respondent
diagnosed Patient X with Attention Deficit Disorder, Mood Disorder, and Anxiety
Disorders, and he prescribed a dail'y reQimen of a benzodiazepine, Valium (diazepam) 50
milligrams, and 80 milligrams of Adderall, which Respondent later increased to 180
milligrams per day. Respondent did not produce records from this time period to the
Commission's investigator when asked, Following the 2008 Order and Respondent's
return to practice, Patient X returned to Respondent on December 7, 2008, Patient X had
run out of his medications, and Respondent noted that he suffered from depression
symptoms when not taking Adderall. Respondent restarted the patient on Adderall, 60
milfigrams, and Valium, 30 milligrams, per day. ; '

2.33 Respondent violated the standard of care in treating Patient X, and he
placed him at an unreasonable risk of harm. 'Duﬁng the initial phase of treatment,
Respondent started Patient X at high and dangerous doses of Valium and Adderall, and
he eventually increased the Adderall to an extremely dangerous dose of 180 millllgrams
per day. When Patient X returned to Respondent's care in December 2008, Respondent
restarted him on a high dally regimen of Adderall, 80 milligram, without any effort to titrate
from a lower, safer dose. ‘

]
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3. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
The State and Respondent agree to the entry of the following Conclusions of Law:
3.4 The Commission has jurisdiction over Respondent and over the subject

matter of this proceeding.
3.2 Respondent has committed unprofessional conduct in violation of

RCW 18.130.180(4), (8)(a) and (8).
3.3  The above violations provide grounds for imposing sanctions under

RCW 18.130.160
4. AGREED ORDER

Based on the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Respondent agrees to
entry of the following Agreed Order:

4.1 Disposition of License. The Commission places Respondent's license on
PROBATION. Respondent's license will remain on probation until he successfully
completes the term and conditions of this Agreed Order and any modifications resulting
from the evaluation referenced In Paragraph 4.4, and the Commission enters an order
releasing Respondent,

' 42 Prescribing Restriction. Starting 30 days after the effective date of this
Agreed Order, Respondent shall not prescribe any controlled substances or thyroid
medications (including Armour Thyroid) to anyone. The Commission will not ift this
restriction unless the Center for Personalized Education for Physicians in Denver,
Colorado (CPEP) determines that Respondent can prescribe safely and with reascnable
skill and without posing an unreasonable risk of harm to the public.

4.3 Respondent to Refer Patients to Other Providers. Respondent will have
30 days from the effective date of this Agreed Order to suspend his prescribing practices
pursuant to Paragraph 4.2 and refer patients as necessary to other practitioners so that
Respondent can complete the evaluation process with CPEP,

44 CPEP. Respondent shall commence an gvaluative process with CPEP on
November 30, 2009, which Respondent has alreédy reserved with CPEP for this purpose.
If CPEP cannot proceed on that date, the evaluation will commence on the next available
date. Respondent shall fully cooperate with the evaluation, including any follow-up
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education and preceptor program that CPEP might recommend, and shall provide CPEP
with any charts, documents, and releases that CPEP raquest. . The Commission’s
Medical Consultant shall provide CPEP with excerpts from this file, including copies of the
Amended Statement of Charges, this Agreed Order and any other materials that CPEP,
in consultation with the Medical Consultant, requests in order to complete a thorough
evaluation. The Medical Consultant will notify Respondent, through his counsel, of any
additional materials he provides to CPEP. Respondent may provide additional materials
to CPEP, and he will notify the Medical Consultant if he does so. By signing this Agreed
Order, Respondent releases CPEP representatives to discuss with representatives of the
Commission any matters relating to Respondent’s evaluation and CPEP's conclusions
and recommendations, Respondent waives any privileges or privacy rights he might
otherwise have regarding such matters under federal and state law, Respondent
understands that CPEP wili provide a copy of its evaluation to the Commission’s
representatives and will communicate with those representatives as needed.

4.5 odification Following CPEP Evaluation. Respondent will appear before
the Commission at the next regularly scheduled meeting after CPEP issues Its report,
The parties may continue the matter to the following meeting if the circumstances so
warrant. The purpose of the meeting will be to modify this Agreed Order based on
CPEP's conclusions and recommendations. Respondent agrees to abide by CPEP's
recommendations and understands that he will not be allowed to dispute the CPEP
report. Respondent further understands that if CPEP concludes that Respondent cannot
practice with reasonable skill and safety, and Is not a viable candidate for remediation, the
Commission may revoke his license. Respondent further understands that if CPEP
concludes that he cannot prescribe with reasonable skill and safety, the Commission may
make the restriction in this Agreed Order permanent. If CPEP determines that
Respondent can safely prescribe controlled substances and thyroid, the Commission will
lift the restriction subject to the terms of this Agreed Order, the 2006 Order, and any
further terms CPEP might recommend.

46 Preceptor Program. If Respondent returns to practice following the CPEP
evaluation, a qualified and approved preceptor shall monitor and consult with Respondent
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for five years. This precepter program s in addition o any preceptor requirement thatv

CPEP might recommend except to the extent two such programs might overlap.
461 The Commission's medical consultant will choose the preceptor.
The preceptor must be board certified in psychiatry, licensed to practice
medicine for at least ten years, and actively licensed and in clinical practice
in Washington for at least the past five years. The praceptor must have
experience training and consulting with other psychiatrists with respect to
patient care. The preceptor must not have any prior significant personal or
business refationship with Respondent.
46.2 Respondent shall commence the five-year preceptor program upon
returning to practice. Respondent will provide the preceptor with a copy of
this Agreed Order and any other materials the preceptor requests.
Respondent shall provide the preceplor with any other information the
preceptor requests.
4.8.3 The preceptor will provide oversight with respect to Respondent's
treatment of patients and, If the Commission lifts the prescribing restriction,
his prescribing practices, The preceptor will randomly attend at least two of
Respondent’s office visits with patients per week, and will review the charts
regarding those patients and the progress note entries relating to those
visits. The preceptor will also review the charting for a random selection of
ten percent of Respendent's patients per week. To facilitate this oversight,
Respondent will provide the preceptor with a patient list at the beginning of
every month along with a copy of Respondent's appointment schedule for
that month. Respondent will notify the preceptor of any changes to the list
and the schedule on a weekly basis, The preceptor will decide which office
visits to attend and notify Respendent of the decision before each visit,
Respondent will allow the preceptor full access to his charts to facilitate the
required chart reviews. Respondent and the preceptor shall meet at least
twice every month to discuss and consult on the cases which the preceptor
observed and reviewed.
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4.8.4 The preceptor shall report in writing to the Commission’s Medical
Consultant every three months regarding Respondent's medical skills. The
first report will be due on the first day of the third month after the preceptor
program starts, The Commission may conslder any report that
Respondent’s skills are less than satisfactory to constitute a violation of this
Agreed Order. _

4.6.5 The preceptor shall immediately report to the Medical Consulitant
any concerns the preceptor might have regarding Respondent's ability to
practice with reasonable skill and safety or if, in the preceptor’s opinion,
Respondent Is not compliant with the program.

47 Practice Audits. If Respondent returns to practice, Respondent shall
permit a Commission representative to audit patient records and review practices
* related to Respondent’s assessment and treatment of patients two times per year for
five years, The representative will contact Respondent's office to give advance notice
before each audit. The practice audits will occur sufficiently In advance of each
compliance appearance to allow for a review and evaluation of the audited records
hefore the appearance. - ' '

48 Compliance Appearances. f Respondent Is allowed to return to practice,
until the Commission releases him from this Agreed Order, Respondent shall appear
every six months before the Commisslon for five years and present proof that he Is
complying with Its terms.

49 Fine, Respondent shall pay a fine of $10,000 by paying Installments of
$2,000 per year for five years. The first installment is due one year from the effective
date of this Agreed Order. The fine shall be paid by certified or cashier's check or meney
order, made payable to the Department of Health and mailed to the Department of
Health, Medical Quality Assurance Commisslon, P.Q. Box 1088, Olympia, WA
98507-1099,

/i

i
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4.10 Disposition of Pending Files that the Commission Has Investigated.
There are five files currently before the Commission that have been investigated but are
not included in the Amended Statement of Charges because they were investigated after
those charges were served. Because this Agreed Order resolves any legal issues that
those files raise, the Commission has closed them without taking action. This paragraph
refers to file numbers 2008-132467, 2009-133372, 2009-138070, 2009-138490, and
2009-138749.

4.11 Respondent Must Obey the Law. Respondent shall obey all federal, state
and focal laws and all administrative rules governing the practice of the profession in
Washington,

412 Effect of any Future Violation. If Respondent violates any provision of
this Agreed Order in any respect, the Commission may take further action against
Respondent's license.

413 Compliance Costs. Respondent is responsible for all costs of complying
with this Agreed Order. '

414 Change of Address. Respondent shall inform the Program and the
Adjudicative Service Unit, in writing, of changes in Respondent’s residential and/or
business address within 30 days of the change.

415 Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreed Order is the date the
Adjudicative Service Unit places the signed Agreed Order into the U.S. mail. If required,
Respondent shall not submit any fees or compliance documents until after the effective
date of this Agreed Order.

5. COMPLIANCE WITH SANCTION RULES

The Commission applies WAC 246-16-800, el seq., to determine appropriate
sanctions. Tier B of the “Practice Below Standard of Care schedule, WAC 246-16-810,
applies to cases where a Respondent's conduct places patients at risk of severe harm.
Although the extent to which Respondent may have in fact harmed his patients is not
clear from the evidence, and the Commission therefore cannot conclude that he in fact
caused severe harm under Tier C of the schedule, the evidence does support the
conclusion that he placed his patients at risk of moderate to severe harm. Tier B
therefore applies. Tier B requires the imposition of sanctions ranging from two to five
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* years of oversight, depending on the clrcumstances and any aggravating and mitigating
factors. The aggravating factors in this case include the Commission's 2006 Order
disciplining Respondent for substandard practices. They also Include the number of
instances of substandard care in this case and the fact that this represents a pattern of
misconduct, There are no mitigating circumstances. The Commission is therefore
imposing the maximum number of years of oversight in the Tier B range, The sanctions
are appropriate. They Include a thorough evaluation with CPEP that could resultin a
license revocation or permanent prescribing restrictions, depending on Respondent's
abliity to practice and prascribe with reasonable skill in safety. |f Respondent returns to
practice, he will be subject to five years of significant ove;slght, including a preceptor
program, semiannual practice reviews, semlannual compliance appearances, and any
other terms that the Commission might impose based on CPEP’s recommendations.

8. FAILURETO COMPLY
Protection of the public requires practice under the terms and conditions imposed
in this order. Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this order may result in
sugpension of the license after a show cause hearing. |f Respondent falls to comply with
the terms and conditions of this order, the Commisslon may hold a hearing to require

. Respondent to show cause why the license should not be suspended. Alternatively, the -
Commission may bring additional charges of unprofessional conduct under '

RCW 18.130,180(9). . In elther case, Respondent will be afforded notice and an
opportunity for a hearing on the Issue of non-compliance.
I

i
I
"

#
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7. RESPONDENT'S ACCEPTANCE ‘

I, PATRICK K. CHAU, MD, Respondent, have read, understand and agree to this
Agreed Order, This Agreed Order.may be presented to the Commission without my
appearance. | understand that | will recelve a signed copy if the Commission accepts this
Agregd Order, :

] o O~ A f)
ATRICK KT CHAU, MD DATE ¥

=~ RESPONDENT

0-1-01

SCOTT T, SCHAUERMANN, WSBA #26785  DATE
ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT

8. COMMISSION'S ACCEPTANCE AND ORDER
The Commission accepts and enters this Stipulated Findings of Fact, Conclusions
of Law and Agreed Order.

DATED: Dctote, 5 . 2008.

STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE
COMMISSION

%MWWD

/PANEL CHAIR U -

PETER J. HARRIS, W
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH STAFF ATTORNEY

/0-1(- OF
DATE
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STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH'
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

In the Matter of the License to Practice
as a Physician and Surgeon of: No. M2010-628

PATRICK CHAU, MD STATEMENT OF CHARGES
License No. MD00030053

Respondent

The Disciplinary Manager of the Medical Quality Assurance Commission
(Commission) is authorized to make the allegations below, which are supported by the
evidence contained in files numbered 2010-146643 and 2010-143333. The patients
referred to in this Statement of Charges are identified in the attached Confidential

Schedule.

1. ALLEGED FACTS

1.4 On August 13, 1992, the state of Washington issued Respondent a
license to practice as a physician and surgeon. Respondentis on probation and his
license is restricted under the Commission’s order in case number M2008-117887
(2009 Order), effective October 15, 2009 as modified March 17, 2011. Respondent’s
board-certification in psychiatry lapsed in 2006 so he is not currently board-certified.

12  The 2009 Order required Respondent to suspend his prescribing
practices for controlled substances within thirty (30) days of October 15, 2009, and to
refer patients as necessary to other practitioners so that Respondent.can complete the
evaluation process with the Center for Personalized Education for Physicians in Denver,
Colorado (CPEP). Respondent signed the proposed Agreed Order on October 1, 2009
and was aware of its terms. Respondent completed the CPEP evaluation process on
June 30, 2011. He remains under restriction from prescribing controlled substances
until he successfully completes all aspects of a CPEP Education Intervention plan and
until CPEP determines he can prescribe safely and with reasonable skill and without
posing an unreasonable risk of harm to the public.
i '
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1.3 Respondent's psychiatrist-patient relationship with Patient A began on
June 10, 2009. Respondent's treatment records for Patient A that month are limited to a
treatment contract, a treatment agreement, and an intake note on June 10, 2009
detailing the patient's self-reported history of panic attacks which concludes that her
mental status was normal and not remarkable. Respondent failed to record any details
of a mental status exam. There is no medical record of physical examination, vital
signs, lab tests, blood work, or request to contact collateral sources. Respondent did not
review or request prior medical records, despite the patient’s reported treatment for the
condition beginning three years earlier, including medication regimens, which ceased
one and one-half years later. Except for a cursory self-report by the patient on July 6,
2009 that she felt “normal” again and was functioning well, Respondent's only
subsequent medical records for Patient A are the details of Xanax prescriptions
Respondent issued to Patient A, and notes he made after her deéth. Xanax is a brand
name for alprazolam, a benzodiazepine categorized as a Schedule IV controlled
substance. The prescription records show the following were issued by Respondent to
Patient A:

134 On June 10, 2009: 70 Xanax, 2mg, to be taken in quantities and

frequencies that increased weekly for a thirty (30) day period.

1.3.2 On July 6, 2009: 120 tablets of Xanax, 2 mg, with two (2) refills for

a ninety (90) day period. :

1.3.3 On October 2, 2009: 120 tablets of Xanax, 2 mg, with two (2) refills.

1.3.4 On or about November 4, 2009: a “predated" prescription for Xanax

for a time frame to begin January 1, 2010 and extend through March

2010.

1.4 Respondent signed the proposed 2009 Order on October 1, 2009 and was
aware of the pending restriction on his prescribing of controlled substances and a thirty
day window to refer patients to other practitioners. On October 2, 2009, Respondent
issued a thirty day prescription for Xanax with 2 refills to Patient A, and offered Patient A
the opportunity to come back and pick up a predated Xanax prescription (mentioned
above at paragraph 1.3.4) to start in January 2010 with refills through March of 2010.
On November 4, 2009 Respondent issued this predated prescription to Patient A,
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without making any arrangements for future medical oversight. Patient A died of a
methadone and alprazolam overdose on November 11, 2009.

15 Respondent ‘s psychiatrist-patient relationship with Patient B began on or
about October 13, 2008, when Respondent issued alprazolam ( a Schedule v
controlled substance) and promethazine (an unscheduled antihistamine legend drug)
prescriptions to Patient B, which were filled on the following dates:

1.5.1 11/06/2008 Alprazolam 2 mg #45 for 45 days with 0 refills

152 11/07/2008 Promethazine 50 mg #90 for 30 days with O refills

1.5.3 11/22/2008 Alprazolam 2 mg #45 for 45 days with 1 refill

1.5.4 12/07/2008 Alprazolam 2 mg #45 for 15 days with 2 refills

15.5 12/09/2008 Promethazine 50 mg #14 for 4 days with 1 refill

156 12/24/2008 Alprazolam 2 mg #45 for 15 days with 3 refills

16 Respondent's treatment records for Patient B between October 13,
2008 and December 28, 2008 are limited to an initial treatment contract, a
treatment agreement, and an intake note covering the patient’s self-reported
history which concludes that the patient's mental status was normal and not
remarkable. The records fail to record any details of a mental status exam.
There is no medical record of physical examination, vital signs, lab tests, or blood
work. Respondent did not review or request prior medical records, although the
patient described experiencing several intensive panic attacks that resulted in
emergency room visits. Respondent did not attempt to interview collateral
sources such as the mother and aunt who Patient B mentioned as having shared
medications and urged him to get medical help to assist with his panic attacks.
No follow up treatment or consultations between Respondent and Patient B were
scheduled or conducted between October 13, 2008 and December 29, 2008. On
or about December 29, 2008 Respondem discharged Patient B based upon a
report from a detoxification center that the patient had sought methadone
treatment for heroin abuse.

1.7 Respondent resumed prescribing for Patient B on or about April 27, 2009,
based upon Patient B's representation that he was a different patient with no chemical
dependence history, despite having the same name and date of birth. The patient

claimed to have a twin brother, Again Patient B mentioned his mother had shared her
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medications to calm him. Respondent failed to attempt to consult with collateral
sources such as Patient B's mother, although she could have clarified her son had no
twin brother and had admitted his heroin abuse. Respondent’s treatment records for
Patient B between April 27, 2009 and May 29, 2009 do not Include any details of a
mental status exam, physical examination, vital signs, lab tests, blood work, review or
request for prior medical records, or request to contact collateral sources. Respondent
resumed issuing prescriptions for promethazine and alprazolam to Patient B, which
were filled the same day as written, as follows:

174  4/27/2009 Alprazolam 2 mg #70 for 30 days with 0 refills.

17.2 5/29/2009 Alprazolam 2 mg #120 for 30 days with 0 refills.

1.8  On or about June 3, 2009, Patient B committed suicide.

2. VIOLATIONS
51 Based on the Alleged Facts, Respondent has committed unprofessional
conduct in violation of RCW 18.130.1 80(4), which provide:

RCW 18.130.180 Unprofessional conduct. The following conduct,
acts, or conditions constitute unprofessional conduct for any license
holder or applicant under the jurisdiction of this chapter:

(4) Incompetence, negligence, or malpractice which results in injury
to a patient or which creates an unreasonable risk that a patient may
be harmed. The use of a nontraditional treatment by itself shall not
constitute unprofessional conduct, provided that it does not result in
injury to a patient or create an unreasonable risk that a patient may
be harmed;

22  The above violation provides grounds for imposing sanctions
under RCW 18.130.160.

"
]

I .
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3. NOTICE TO RESPONDENT
The charges in this document affect the public health, safety and welfare. The
Disciplinary Manager of the Commission directs that a notice be issued and served on
* Respondent as provided by law, giving Respondent the opportunity to defend against
these charges. If Respondent fails to defend against these charges, Respondent shall be
subject to discipline and the imposition of sanctions under Chapter 18,130 RCW. )

DATED: Deecembe— 28 2011.

STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

ANI NEWMAN

DISCIPLINARY MANAGER

KIM O'NEAL, WSBA # 12939
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
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CONFIDENTIAL SCHEDULE

This information is confidential and is NOT to be released without the consent of
the individual or individuals named herein. RCW 42.56.240(1)

Patient A

Patient B
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STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

In the Matter of the License to Practice .
as a Physician and Surgeon of: No, M2010-628
PATRICK K. CHAU, MD - STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT,
License No. MD0D030053 CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND
' AGREED ORDER
Respondent '

The Medical Quality Assurance Commission (Commission), through Teresa
Landreau, Department of Health Staff Attorney, and Respondent, represented by counsel,
if any, st|pu|ate and agree to the followmg '

1. PROCEDURAL STIPULATIONS

14 On December 28, 2011, the Commission issued a Statement of Charges
against Respondent. ; y

1,2 Inthe Statement of Charges, the Commission alleges that Respondent
violated RCW 18.130.180(4).

1.3 The Commission is prepared to proceed to a heanng on the allegat!ons in
the Statement of Charges.

1.4  Respondent has the right to defend against the allegations in the Statement
of Charges by presenting evidence at a hearing.

15  The Commission has the authority to impose sanctions pursuant to RCW
18.130.160 [f the allegations are proven at a hearing.

1.6  The parties agree to resolve this matter by means of this Stipulated Fundmgs
of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Agreed Order (Agreed Order).

1.7  Respondent waives the opportumty for a hearing on the Statement of
Charges if the Commission accepts this Agreed Order.

1.8  This Agreed Order is not binding unless it is accepted and signed by the -
Commission. . .

1.9  If the Commission accepts this Agreed Order, it will be reported to the Health
Integrity and Protection Databank (HIPDE)45 CFR Part 61), the Federation of State
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Medical Boards’ Physician Data Center and elsewhere as required by law. HIPDB will
report this Agreed Order to the National Practitioner Data Bank (45 CFR Part 60).

1.10 This Agreed Order is a public document. It will be placed on the Department
of Health s website, disseminated via the Commission's electronic mailing list, and
disseminated according to the Uniform Disciplln-ary Act (Chapter 18.130 RCW). It may be
disclosed to the public upon request pursuant to the Public Records Act (Chapter 42.56
RCW). It will remain part of Respondent's file according to the state’s records' retention
law and cannot be expunged. _

1.11 If the Commission rejects this Agreed Order, Respondent walves any
objection to the participation at hearing of any Commission members who heard the |
Agjre'ed Order presentation. ' '

2. FINDINGS OF FACT

Respondent and the Commission acknowledge that the evidence is sufficient to
justify the following tindings, and the Commission makes the following tindings of fact.

2.1  OnAugust 13, 1992, the state of Washington issued Respondent a license
to practice as a physician and surgeon. Respondent is on probation and his license Is
restricted under the Commission's orders in case numbers M2006-61927 (2006 Ordar -

| 06-04-A-1014MD) and M2008-117887 (2009 Order) as moditied March 17, 2011,
Respondent's board-certitication in psychlatry lapsed in 2006 so he is not currently board-
certitied, Respondent's Department of Justice Drug Enforcement Administration Certificate

" of Registration was revoked on June 5, 2012, effective July 16, 2012.

22 The 2009 Order required Respondent to suspend his prescribing practices
for controlled substances within thirty (30) days of October 15, 2009, and to refer patients
as necessary to other practition'ers so that Respondent can complete the evaluation
process with the Center for Personalized-Education for Physicians in Denver, Colorado
(CPEP). Respondent signed the proposed Agreed Order on October 1, 2009 and was
aware of Its terms. Respondent completed the CPEP evaluation process on June 30,
2011. He remains under restriction from prescribing controlled substances until he
successfully completes all aspects of a CPEP Education Intervention plan and until CPEP
determines he can prescribe safely and with reasonable-skill and without posing an

unreasonable risk of harm to the public. '
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2.3 Respondent's psychiatrist—patier;t relationship with Pétient A began on June
10, 2009. Respohdent’s treatment records for Patient A that month are limited to a
treatment contract, a treatment agreement, and an intake note on June 10, 2009 detailing
the patient's self-reported history of panic attacks which concludes that her mental status
was normal and not remarkable. Respondent failed to record any details of a mental
status exam. There is no medical record of physical examination vital signs, lab tests,
hlood work or request to contact collateral sources. Respondent did not review or request
prior medmal records, despite the patient's reported treatment for the condition beginning
three years earlier, including medication regimens, which ceased one and one-half years
later, Except for a cursory self-report by the patient on July 8, 2009 that she felt ‘normal” -
again and was functioning well; ReSpondents only subsequent medlcal records for
Patient A are the details of Xanax prescriptions Respondent lssued to Patient A, and
notes he made after her death., Xanax is a brand name for alprazolam, a benzodiazepi'ne
categorized as a Schedule IV controlled substance. The prescription records show the
fc:l lowing were issued by Respondent to Patient A
2.3.1. On June 10, 2009: 70 Xanax, 2mg, to be taken in quantities and
frequencies that increased weekly for a thirty (30) day period.
232 OnJuly 6, 2009: 120 tablets of Xanax, 2 mg, with two (2) retills for a
ninety (20) day period.
2.3.3 On October 2, 2009: 120 tablets of Xanax, 2 mg, with two (2) refills.
234 On or about November 4, 2009: a “predated” prescription for Xanax
for atime frame to begin January 1, 2010 and extend through March 2010,
2.4 Respondent signed the proposed 2009 Order on October 1, 2009 and was
aware of the pending restriction.on his prescribing of controlled substances and a thirty
.day window to refer patients to other practitioners. On October 2, 2009, Respondent
issued a thirty day prescription for Xanax with 2 refills to Patient A, and offered Patient A
the opportunity to come back and pick up a predated Xanax prescription (mentioned
above at paragraph 1.3.4) to start in January 2010 with refills through March of 2010. On
November 4, 2009 Respondent issued this predated prescription to Patient A, without
making any arrangements for future medical oversight. Patient A died of a. mgthadone and

. alprazolam overdose on November.11, 2009,
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2.5 Respondent's psych iatrist-patient relationship with Patient B began on or
about October 13, 2008, when Respondent issued alprazolam (a Schedule IV controlled
substance) and promethazine (an unscheduled antihistamine legend drug) prescriptions
to Patient B, which were filled on the following dates:

2.6.1 11/06/2008 Alprazolam 2 mg #45 for 45 days with 0 refills,
2592 11/07/2008 Promethazine 50 mg #90 for 30 days with 0

retills, ; ;

. 253 11/22/2008 Alprazolam 2 mg #45 for 45 days with 1 refill,
2.5.4 12/07/2008 Alprazélam 2 mg #45 for 15 days with 2 refills,
2.5.5 12/09/2008 Promethazine 50 mg #14 for 4 days with 1 retill;

256 12/24/2008 Alprazolam 2 mg #45 for 15 days with 3 retills.

2.6 Respondent's treatment records for Patient B between October 13,
2008 and December 28, 2008 are limited to an-initial treatment contract, a
treatment agreement, and an intake note cov'ering the patient's self-reported history
which concludes that the patient's mental status was normal and not remarkable,
The records fail to record any details of a mental status exam. There is no medical
record of physical examination, vital signs, lab tests, or blood work. Respondent did
not review or request prior medical records, although the patient described .
experiencing several intensive panic attacks that resulted in emergency room visits.
Respondent did not attempt to interview collateral sources such as the mother and
aunt who Patient B mentioned as having shared medications and urged him to get
medical help to assist with his panic attacks: No follow up treatment or
consultations between Respondent and Patient B were scheduled or conducted
between October 13, 2008 and December 29, 2008. On or about December 29,
2008 Respondent d|scharged Patient B based upon a report froma detoxification
center that the patient had sought methadone treatment for heroin abuse.

2.7  Respondent resumed pr_éscribing for Patient B on or about April 27, 2009;
hased upon Patient B's representation that he was a different patient with no chemical
dependences history, despite having the same name and date of birth. The patient claimed
to have a twin brother, Again Paltient B mentioned his motherhad shared her medications

to calm him, Respondent failed to attempt to consult with coi[ateral sources such as
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Patient B's mother, although she could have clarified her son had no twin brother and had
admitted his heroin abuse. Respondent's treatment records for Patient B between April
27,2009 and May 29, 2009 do not include any details of a mental status exam, physical
examination, vital sighs lab tests, blood work, review ér request for prior medical records,
or request to contact collateral sources. Respondent resurned Isaumg prescrlptlons for
promethazine and alprazolam to Patient B, which were filled the same day as written, as
follows:
2.7 4/27/2009 Alprazolam 2 mg #70 for 30 days with 0 refills.
, 2.7.2 5/29/2009 Alprazolam 2 mg #120 for 30 days with 0 réfills.
28  Onorabout June 3, 2009, Pafient B committed suicide.

3. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The Commission and Respondent agree to the entry of the following Conclusions
of Law. . )
3.1 The Commission has jurisdiction over Respondent and over the subject
matter of this proceedlng ' ' g |

3.2 Respondent has committed unprofessional conduct in. violation of
RCW 18.130.180(4).

33 The above violations provide grounds for imposing sanctions under
RCW 18.130.160

| 4. AGREED ORDER

Based on the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Respondent agrees to
entry of the following Agreed Order. ' | .

41 License Status: Probation. The Commission continues Respondent’s
license on PROBATION. Respondent's license will remain on probation unfil he
successfully completes all requirements of this Agreed Order, successfully comp|etes any
‘modifications resulting from the evaluation referenced in Paragraph 4.7 below, and untll
the Commission enters an order in its discrefion releasing Respondent from probation.

4.2 Restrictions on Prescribing. Respondent is aBsqutely restricted from
" prescribing-any controlled substance or thyroid medlcation (including Armour Thyroid) to

anyone.,
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43  Practice Restriction. Respondent shall not practice forensic medicine or
provide evaluations for court-related proceedings.
44 Preceptor Requirement. Respondent shall not practice medicine in

Washington State except under the active supervision of a preceptor physician in
compliance with the foliowing requirements: _

4.4.1 Respondent shall arrange for a qualified preceptor who is pre-

- approved by the Commission to mon itor Respondent's practice of medicine and to
consult with Respondent for a period of at least tive (5) years from the effective date
of this Agreed Order. This preceptor program is in addition to the preceptor
requirement that the Center for Personalized Education for Physicians (CPEP)
located in Denver, Colorado has recommended, or may recommend, except to the
extent two such programs may overlap. The preceptor shall report in writing to the
Gommissmn s Medical COnsultant every three months regarding Respondant'
medlcal skills. The Preceptor shall immediately report to the Medical Consultant
any concerns the preceptor has regarding Respondent’s ability to practice with_
reasonable skill and safety, or if Respondent is not compliant with requirements of
the CPEP program or this order.

4.4.2 Respondent shall ensure that his preceptor has tlmely reviewed the
following documents, as well as any other Information the Preceptor requests.

4.4.2.1 Orders from the Commission to Respondent issued

November 8, 2008; October 19, 2009; March 17, 2011, and this Agreed

Order.

4.4.2.2 All written reports from Respondent's prior preceptors.
4,4.2.3 The March 2010 CPEP program evaluation of Respondent,
and all subsequent wntten CPEP progress reports for Respondent.

4.4.3 The Commission’ s medical consultant will approve the preceptor,
who must be board certified in psychiatry, licensed to practice medicine for at least
ten years, and actively licensed and in clinical practice for at least the past five
years. Geographic proximity shall be taken into account i in determining whether a
preceptor is appropriate. The preceptor must have expenence training and
consulting with other psychiatrists with respect to patient care. The preceptor must
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_not have any prior significant peréonal or business relationship with Respondent

before entering into the approved preceptor relationship. L

4.4.4 The preceptor will provide ovérsightwith respect to Respondent's

- treatment of patients and his prescribing practices, if any. The preceptor will
randomly attend at least two of Respondent's office visits with patients per week,
and will review the charts regarding those patients and the progress note entries
relating to those visits. The preceptor will also review the charting for a random
selection of ten percent of Respondent’s patients per week. To facilitate this
oversight, Respond ent will provide the preceptor with a patient list at the beginning
of every month along with a copy of Respondent's appaintment schedule for that
month. Respondent will notify the preceptor of any changes to the list and the
schedule on a weekly basis, The preceptor will decide which office visits to attend
and notify Respondent of the decision before each visit. Respsndent will allow the
preceptor full access to his charts to facilitate the required chart reviews

Respondent and the preceptor shall meet at least twice every monthto discuss and

consult on the cases which the preceptor observed and reviewed. Adjustments to

these preceptolr requirements may be pre-approved by the Commission's Medical

Consultant in writing. ‘

4.4.5 Respondent began a preceptor program approved by the

Commission in July 2011, and is currently in compliance. The preceptor program

now in place may. be continued so long as requirements are met to the satisfaction

of the Commission. '

4.5  Ethics Course. Respondent will attend a two-day ethics course approved
by the Commission Medical Consultant. The ProBE course offered by the Center for
Personalized Education for Physicians (CPEP) in Denver, Colorado is pre-approved.
Respondent will complete the course within six months of the effective date of this Agreed
Order unless otherwise allowed in writing by the Commission Medical Consultant.
Respondent will provide the course instructors with a copy of this Agreed Order prior to the
course. Respondent will sign all necessary waivers to allow the Department staff to
communicate with the course instrug'gors'as needed. Respondent will submit proof of the

satisféctory completion of the course to the Commission. If the course requires
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Respondent to complete a written report, Respondent will assure that the Commission
receives a copy of Respondent's written report. If the course instructors inform the
Commission that Respondent did not receive an “unconditional pass” or otherwise

satisfactorily complete the course, the Commission may require Respondent to re-take the

. course.

46 Physician Education Course. Respondentis currently in compliance
with a Center for Personalized Education for Phy‘sloions (CPEPj Educational Intervention
Plan developed for Respondent in June 2011, Respondent shall follow the
recommendations and requirements of CPEP for this plan and for any revisions to the

plan. Respondent shall successfully complete all aspects of the June 2011 CPEP
_Educational Interventional Plan.

47 CPEP Re-Evaluation, In the event Respondent completes the CPEP
'Educational Intervention Plan; he shall then schedule within four (4) months a follow-up
clinical assessment at CPEP to re-evaluate nis medical knowledge, patient care, clinical

judgment, medical fecord keeping, reasoning ability, and communication skills.
Respondent's awareness of the larger context and system of health care and his ability to
effectively call on system resources to provide optimum care shall also be addressed.
Respondent shall fully cooperate with this re-evaluation, and shall provide CPEP with any
charts, documents, and releases that CPEP requests for this reassessment. The
Commission's Medical Consultant will provide CPEP with pertinent documents, including
records relating to Respondent's compliance with Commission Orders. The Medical
Consultant will notify Respondent of any additional materials prowded to CPEP.
'Respondent may provide additional materials to CPEP, and will notify the Medical
Consultant if he does so. By signing this Agreed Order, Respondent releases CPEP’
representatives to discuss with representatives of the Commission any matters relating to
Respondent's evaluation and CPEP's conclusions and recommendations. Respondent
waives any privileges or privacy rights he might otherwise have regardlng such matters
under federal and state [aw. Respondent understands that CPEP will provide a copy of its
re-evaluation to the Commission’s representatives and will communicate with those

representatives as needed.
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. 48 Modification Consideration after CPEP Re-Evaluation. Respondent will
appear before the Commission at the next regulariy scheduled meeting after CPEP issues
its re-evaluatlon report. The parties may continue the matter to the following meetlng if the

circumstances so warrant. The purpose of this appearance will be to consider
modifications to Respondent's license status under paragraph 4.1 of this Agreed Order in -
light of CPEP' s re-evaluation findings and any other relevant evidence, The Commission
. will have full discretion in modifying paragraph 4.1, ranging from removal of probation
status to suspension or revocation of licensure. ‘

49 Practice Reviews. In order to monitor compliance with this Agreed Order,

Respondent will submit to semi-annual practice reviews at Respondent's office for the
duration of probation. The Commission’s representative will inspect office records, rewew
patient records, Interview Respondent and interview any professional staff, partners, and
employees and preceptors associated with Respondent's practice. The representative will
contact Respondent's office to give advance notice before, each practice review.

410 Compliance appearances. Respondent shall appear before the -
Commission on an annual basis and present proof of full compliance with this Agreed
Order Respondent shall continue to appear annually unl:ass otherwise instructed in

writlng by the Commission or its representative:

411 Obey laws. Respondent shall obey all federal, state and local laws and all
administrative rules governing the practice of the medical profession in Washlngton

- 412 Termination, Respondent may file a petition for termination of this Agreed
Order after five (5) years if Resbondent-has been in full compliance during that period.
Respondent shall appear in person ata heanng on the petition. At the hearing, evidence
in opposition may be considered by the Commission. After considering the petition and
the evidence presented, the Commission will have sole discretion to grant or deny

Respondent's petition. ' "o

' 413 RBSPOI’\SlbIhW for costs of com_phance Respondent is responsible foral!

costs he may incur in the course of complying with this Agreed Order.
414 Consequences of Violation. If Respondent violates any provision of this
Agreed Order In any respect, the Commission may initiate further action against

Respondent's license.
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415 'Ugdated Address. Reépmndent shall inform the Program and the
Adjlﬁdicative Clerk Office, .in writing, of changes in Respondent's residential and/or -
business address within thirty (30) days of the change.

4,16 Sanctions Supercede Fr:or Sanction Orders, The provisions of Section 4
of this Agreed Order shall replace and supercede the sanction provisions of prior orders;:

4.17 Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreed Order is the date the
Adjudlcatwe Clerk Office places the signed Agreed Order into the U.S. mail. If required,
Respondent shall not submit any fees or compliance documents until after the effective
date of this Agreed Order. | |

5. COMPLIANCE WITH SANCTION RULES

51  The Commission applies WAC 246-16-800, ef seq., to determine
appropriate sanctions, Tier B of the "Practice Below Standard of Care" schedule, WAC -
246-16-810, applies to cases wh,ere' substandard practiées caused moderate patient harm’
or risked moderate to severe patient harm. Although two unrelated patient deaths
occurred in these cases, neither patient died directiy from an overdose of medications
prescribed by Respondent. Therefore, the evidence does not establish by élear and
convincing evidence that Respondent's substandard practices actually caused either
~ death. However, Respondent's care of each patient c:leérly risked moderate to severe:
patient harm, because Respondent limited treatment to prescribing of controlled
substances, without providing meaningful psychiatric treatment of the patients. Schedule
B therefore applies. ,

5.2  Tier B requires the |mpos|tlon of sanctions ranging from two years of
oversight to tive years of oversight, unless revocation. Under WAC 246-16-800(3)(d), the
starting point for the duration of the sanctions is the middle of the range. The Commission
uses aggravating and mitigating factors to move towards the maximum or minimum ends
of the range.

53  The aggravating and mitigating factors in this case, listed below, justify
moving to the maximum end of the range. In the judgment of the Commission, the serious
nature and magnitude of Respondent's prior disciplinary history, together with the tragic
' outcomes for Patients A and B, substantially outweigh the mitigating factors. The
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sanctions in th'is case include probation, prescribing restricfions, practice rgstrictio'ns. a
- preceptor requirement, ethics course, physician education course, re-evaluation of
. Réspondeni's clinical skills after completion of the education courses, practice reviews,
and compliance appearances. Respondent has been on probation since October 2009
under case- M2008 117887. The behavior in this case occurred before the effective date
of the MZOOB 117887 order, and Respondent is in substantial compliance with the
sanctions in that order which also address the standard of care issues raised in this case..
While the license status of probation may_be subject to moditication in the future under
paragraph 4.8, above, the oversight of the Commission and other provisions will not be
subject to termination until five (5) years from the effective date of th;s Agreed Order under
paragraph 4.12.
5.4 These sanctions are appropriate within the Tier B range given the facts of the
case and the following aggravating and mitigating factors:
5.4.1. As an aggravating factor, Patient A died of a drug overdose during a
time when she was relying on Respondent's inadequate psychiatric treatment. |
54.2 As an aggravating factor, Patient B inifiated a violent confrontation
with police officers, resulting in his death, during a time when he was relying on
Respondent's ihadequate psychiatric treatment.
5.4.3 As an aggravating factor, Respondent has a significant history of prior
disciplinary actions, described in paragraph 2.1. '
5.4.4 As amitigating factor, Respondent is in substantial compliance with
the CPEP educational intervention program, and has received satisfactory reports

from his preceptors.

; 6 FAILURE TO COMPLY.

" Protection of the public requires practice under the terms and conditions imposed in
this order. Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of th is order may result in
suspension of the license after a show cause hearing. If Respondent' fails to comply with ;
the terms and c0ndmons of this order, the Commission may hold a hearing to require
Respondent to show cause why the license should not be suspended. Alternatively, the

Commission may bring additional charges of unprofessional conduct under
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RCW 18.130.180(9). In either case, Respondent will be afforded notice and an
opportunity for a hearing on the issue of non-compliance. :
- 4 RESPONDENT‘& ACCEPTANCE
|, Patrick K. Chau, Respondent, have read, understand and agree to this Agreed
Order. This Agreed Order may be presented to the Commission without my appearance.
| understand that | will receive a signed copy if {ha Commission accepts this Agreed Order. .

/@% MD | Doy 1 775 2002

 PATRICK K. CHAU, MD . DATE
- RESPONDENT

e

, WSBA#- DATE
" ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT : '
[/}

i

M
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8. COMMISSION’S ACCEPTANCE AND ORDER
The Commission accepts and enters this Stipulated Findings of Fact, Conclusions

of Law and Agreéd Order.

. ; o
DATED: %ﬁv 15 2012,

STATE OF WASHINGTON |
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

CAudly (L Mosiy
EANEL CHAIR (]

PRESENTED BY:

TERESA I/ANDREAU, WSBA#9591
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH STAFF ATTORNEY

Hisouudivr )5, 2OIT
DATE ¥

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT | : PAGE 13 OF 13
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~~» STATE OF WASHINGTON
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

In the'IVIatter of the License to Practice '
as a Physician and Surgeon of: No. M2010-628

PATRICK K. CHAU, MD ORDER OF TERMINATION
License No..MD00030053 :

b | Respondent.

This matter comes before the Medical Quality Assurance Commission (Commission),
on the petition of Patrick K. Chau, MD, Respondent, to terminate the Stipulated Findings of
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Modifled Agreed Order (Modified Ag reed Order) In this case.

: PROCEDURAL HISTORY

11 OnAugust 13, 1992, the state of Washington issued Respondent a license
to practice as a physician and surgeon. Respondents license is currently acttve

1.2  On December 28, 2010, the Comimission offered a Strpulatlon to Informal
Discipline to Respondent. Respondent failed to sign the Stipulation.

1.3  OnJanuary 3, 2012, the Commission served a Statement of Charges to
Respondent’s last known adgiress‘ on file. On or about November 20, 2012, the
Commission entered the Stipulated Flnding;s of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Agreed
Order in this case. On September B, 2015 the Commiission.entered the Modified Agreed
‘Order in this case. |

14  On or about, October 27, 2017, the Ccmmrsslon received Respondent's
written petition to terminate the Modified Agreed Drder. Respondent has complied with all
the terms and conditions of the Modified Agreed Order, |

15  If the Commission enters this Order of Terminatlon it will be reported to the

National Pf:aptltioner Data Bank (45 CFR Part 60), the Federation of State Medical Boards'
Physician Data Center and elsewhere as required by law. ;

1.8  This Order of Termination is a pﬁbllc document. It will be placed on the
Departmént of Health's website, disseminated via the Commission’s listserv, and
disseminated according to the Uniform Disciplinary Act (Chapter-18.130 RCW). It may be
discloséd to the public upon request pursuant to the Public Records Act (Chapter 42.56 |

ORDER OF TERMINATION PAGE 1 QOF 3
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RCW). It will remain part of Respondent's file according to the state’s récords retention
law and cannot be expunged.

: 2. FINDINGS OF FACT

The Commission makes the following Findings of Fact:

21 OnAugust 13, 1992, the state-of Washington issued Respondent a license
to practice as a physician and surgeon. Resbondent's license is currently active. o

22 On becember 28, 2010, the Commission offered a Stipulation to
Respondent. Respondent failed to sign the Stipulation.

2.3 OnJanuary 3, 2012, the Commission issued a Statement of Charges
against Respondent. The Statement of Charges was resolved by Stipulated Findings of
Fact, Conclusions of Law and Agreed Order entered on November 20, 2012, A Modified
Agreed Order was entered on September 8, 2015.

24  The Modified Agi’eed Order placed Respondent on probation for 5 years,
imposed prescribing and practice restrictions, required an ethics course and continued |
enrolmentina Ci_?EP course, practice reviews and a practice plan.

2.5  The Modified Agreed Order also provided that Respondent could bgtition the
Commission to terminate the Modified Agreed Order after all conditions were met and five
(5) years had passed from the date of the original Agreed Order. -

26 The Commission has reviewed all relevant materials and finds that
Re_spondent has fully complied with all conditions in the Modified Agreed Order and that.
the five (5) year period will end on November 20, 2017,

3. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
. The Commission makes the following Conclusions of Law based on the Findings of
Fact. ‘ ; ' :
3.1 The Commission has jurisdiction over Respondent and over the subject
matter of this proceeding. |

3.2  Respondent’s petition to terminate the Modified Agreed Order is properly
before the Commission. s § :

3'.3 . Respondent has fully complied with all conditions in the Modified Agreed
Order, ' ' '

ORDER OF TERMINATION PAGE 2 OF 3
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34  Respondent's request to termihate the Modified Agreed Order should be
granted and take effect on November 20, 2017.
4. ORDER

Based on the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the Commission ORDERS:
' 44 . Respondent's request to terminate the Modified Agreed Order is GRANTED.

This Order is to take effect on November 20, 2017.

DATED: . /3 | 2017,

® 0 . STATE OF WASHINGTON
i MEDICAL QUALITY ASSU RANCE COMMISSION

G et

PANEL CHAIR

PRESENTED BY:

GORDON WRIGHT, WSBA#32887 .
COMMISSION STAFF ATTORKEY

ORDER OF TERMINATION “PAGE 3 OF 3
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1 | BILLLOCKYER, Atomey Gera ' . APPLICATION
of the State of California ‘ ORI u g ?
2 || JOSE R. GUERRERO . ATTACHMENT
. { Supervising Deputy Attorney General . . :
3 || SUSAN K. MEADOWS, Stato Bar No. 115052 h STATE OF CALIFORNIA™ - |
eputy Attorney Genet DICAL BOARD OF CAL ‘ g
4 || California Department of Justice. SACRA 'ENTO D: M ﬂ'! A ;Fzﬂgglml \\3
- || 455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000 ' B e -Q \
5 || San Francisco, CA 94103-7004 Ylﬂi@m&iﬂﬂw _ ANAD N
Telephone; (415) 703-5552 . o L . iy
6 Faqsimile: (415) 703-5480 . \
7 || Attorneys for Complainant %
8 BEFORE THE .
DIVISION OF MEDICAL QUALITY
9 MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA "
-« . DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS o ;
0 30 o STATE OF CALIFORNIA 0 o
11 i ; i i . ’ i K ) .
In the Matter of the First Amended Accusation Case No, 16-2006-175852 :
12 | Apainst: &
13 | BATRICK KIN-YER CHAU, M.D, R ; ‘
5501 NE 109th Court, Suite L-1 FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION
14, || Vancouver, WA 98662 ) - Coin : :
15 Pmrsi'cim's and Surgeon's Centificate
. It No. G 68517
16. -
‘ ' Respondent,
171
184 _
. 19 . The Cf;mplainant alleges: «
2 | | DARTIES _
, 21 1, . Comiplainant David T. Thornton 15 the Executive Director of the Medical Board of '

22 Cﬂlifél‘pih (hereinafter the "Board") and brings this First Amended Aconsatiop solely in his
23 ,: gfﬂgfsl ca?ﬁcity. ‘

. 24 | . 2., Onor about May 7, §990,_Phyuieian and Surgeon's Certificate No,
. E 25 || G 68517 was lssued by the Board to Patrick Kin-Yee Chav, M,D. (herelnafter "respondent™).
26 { 'This certificate expires on July 31, 2007, On July 12, 2006, puts'uant  Section 2310(a) of the
27 || Business and Professions Code, a full out of‘staw suspansio;l order of no practice was issued by

28 || the Board, On December 8, 2006, respondent’s license to practice was fully restored,
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JURISDICTION .

3, This accusation is brought before the Division of ivisdical Quality of the Medical -

Board of California, i)epartmant of Consumer Affairs (hereinafter the "Division"), under the .

authority of the following sections of the California Business and Prc:fsssions Code (l'iersinsfter

"Code") and/or other relevant statutory cns.ctmcnt.

A. Section 2227 of the Code prov1des in part that the Board may revoke,

" suspend for a period of not to exceed one year, or place’on probation, the licénse of any

licensee who has been found guilty under the Medical Practice Act, and may recover the '

costs of probation momtormg if probation is unposed

B. Secticm 2305 of the Code providas in part, 'ehat the revocation, suspsnsmn,

or other disclpime restriction or Jimitation miposed by anothsr state upon a hcensc to'

practice medicine issued by t_hat stats, that wouid havs been grounds for discipline in -

unprofessional conduct.

California under the Msd.iszil Practice Act, constimtes grounds for discipline fsr

e - Section 141 of ths Cods prowdss

"(a) For any licensee holdmg a license 1ssued bya bosrd under the

Jurisdictmn of 2 depar‘nnent, a dismpima,ry action taken by another state, by sny agency of

' the federal govsrmnent or by anothsr country for any act substantialiy related to the

practice regulated by ths California license, may bs a ground for. disciplmary sctmn by the

respective state licensing board, A certified copy of the record of the disciplinary action

taken against the licensee by another state, an agency of the federal government, OF by

" another country shall be

conoluswe evtdence of the events related therein.”

" () Nothing in this section shall preclude a bus:rd from applying a

spsciﬁo statutory prov:smn in the licensing act administered by the board that provides

* for dlsmplms based upon a disciplinary action taken against the licensee by another state,

an agency of tbe federal govemment or another country."‘

4, Rsspondent is subject to discipimc within the meaning of section 2305-and/or

_section 141of the Code as mote

particularly set forth herein below.

2
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DIS CIPLINE
(Dlsciplme, Restnetnon, or Limitation Imposed by Another State)

5. . OnMay 25, 2006, the Washington Department of Health Medical Quality

Assurance Commission (hereinafter ‘Comlmsswn”) issued a- summary suspenswn of

respondent 3 medxoal hoense. After a hearmg, which oonvened on or about September 29 30,

2006, the Conumssmn issued an order dated November 8, 2006, whmh reinstated respondent’s

license to practice medieine, and placed his license on probation for two years including, but not -

lirnited to, the following conditions: Respondent must implement appropnate presoribing

practices for his thyroid medications to include, but not be limited to, permdlc laboratory testing

to avmd hypexthyrmdlsm, respondent s practice is subjeot to periodic reviews and inspection by -

the Commmsxon or its desxgnee and respondent must pay a $2 500.00 fine, The basis for this
actlon was respondent’s mappropnate care and treatment of 5 pa’nents who he d1e.gnosed with
thyrmd dysfuncnon The respondent treated these five pahents by presonbmg Amour Thyrmd
(desioeated thyroid), and for one patient, in addition to the Amour 'I‘hyrmd he preeonbed |

Addeeall-(amphetamme), as therapy for hypothyroldlsm Respondent 5 preson‘omg precuees w1th 2

respect to these five patients placed them at significant risk of ha:m
6. Attached hereto as Ex.l'nbxt A, ond made a part hereof, is & cerhfied copy of the
Commission’s Findings of Fact, Conelusmns of Law, and Final Order. '

7. The action by the Comrmsemn regerdmg respondent s license t0 practice

medicine, as set forth above, constitutes unprofesemnal conduct end/or grounds for disciplinary

action within the meaning of section 2305 of the Code and/or sec’uon 141(&) of the Code.

Therefore, cause for discipline exists.

PRAYER
WHEREFORE, the eompla.inent requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein '
'alleged and that following the hearing the Division issue a decision: ' '

N7 Revoking Or suspending Physician and Surgeon's Certificate Number G 68517

heretofore issued to respondent;

2 Ordering respondent to pay the Division the costs of probation monitoringlupon

3
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order of the Division; ﬁﬁd,’ ‘ _
3, . Revoking, suspending or denying approval of the respondent's authoﬂty to -

'supcfvise physician assistants; and,

4, Taking such other and further action as the Division deems- necessaty and proper.

DATED: December 27, 2006,

DAVID T. THORNTON
Executive Director -
Medical Boatd of California
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California . ;

Complainant:

‘Chau.1st Amended Acc

T X T T
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STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ABSURANGE commzssuon

In the Matter of the License to Practica

)
as a Physiclan and Surgeon of: )~ Docket No. 06-04 A- 1014MD
)
) PATRICK CHAU, M.D,, N ) FlNDINGS OF FACT, CONGLUSiDNS
License No. MD00030053, - ) "OF LAW AND FINAL ORDER
: ) ¢ :
- Respondent. )
. ' )

APPEARANCES:
Respondent, Patrick Chau, M.D,, by
. Hoffman Hart Wagner LLP, per .-
Michael Hoﬁman, Attorney at Law
| Dapartmant of Health Medical Program, by
Office of the Attomay General, per
Susan L. Plarini, Assistant Attorney General
PRES!DENG OFFICER: Michaal Ti Goncannon. Health Law Judge I
J COMMISSION PANEL: Judith Tobin, public Member, Pansl Ohair
Everardo Espiriosa, M.D. . ’
Willilam Gotthold, M.D.
: .Jamca Paxton, PA-C :
The Medical Quallty Assuranoe Commlsslcm (the Oommnssion) conveneda
| hearing over a two-day period in SaaTac, Washington on Saplember 29-30, 20086, The
IDepartmant of Health (the Depariment) had lssuad a Etaiement of Charges alleging that
. the Respondent had vialated tha Unlforrn Dlsclpunary Act with respact {o eight patlents
named in aconﬂdantlal schedule (hereafter, Patlents A, B, C...H), and the
Respondent had been summarlly suspanded as of May 25, 2006, pending this hearing.

“The Commission flnds unprofessional ccmduct with respect o several patients' and,

FINDINGS OF FACT, -
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW ;
AND FINAL ORDER . Page 10f22
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orders the imposition of PHOBA_TIONA!'-‘\Y GDNDIT!ONS on tha Respondent's license

* to practice medicine.

ISSUES

. Whether any of the Respondant's freatment of elght patients constitutes . ,
unprofessional conduct within the meaning of RCW 18.130.180(4). . Q

s e e T

If the Depariment proveé'unpfofessldnal conduct, what are the appropriate
~sanctions under RCW 18.130.1607 '

SUMMARY OF THE PROCEEDING
N The Depaﬂment'presented testimony from the followlngthfee Mtnesses:
4, The Respondent, .
2, Dn Edward upkip (Expert)
3, Dr. Joseph Bloom (Expert) — video perpetuation d_eposinon'.
Deg'aﬂnianlt's Exh ibits. 'l."ha.'fonowlng numbered exhiblts by‘the Department
| were admlttéd 1_o'becbnjel- pén 'of.tﬁa'.rec‘brd at the hearing: . |
D-1. - Medical R'ecc::srds‘-v Patient A.
-2, Medical Records = Ratiént B,
b3, Medioal Recdrds — PallentC.
D-4. Medical Records — Péﬁant B,
" b5, Medical Records pationt E.
| D-6. Medical Records — Patient F. |
D-7. Modical Records ~ _Paﬁari't a.

D-8. Madical Records = patientH. .

D-9.° Medical Records - patient H (exhibit numbered pgs- 7183 only).

FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIQNS OF LAW
© AND FINAL ORDER o ] Page 2 of 22
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D-10. Assessment of Dr. Edward Lkain dated Octdbsr.21 2005-. :

D-11. Assassmentof Dr, Edward Llpkin dated March1 2006.

D-12. Additional Msdlcal Records ~ Patient B, recelved on July? 2006.

D-13, Additional Medlcal Records -~ Patlentc racelved on July F 2006.

The Hespondent presentad tesﬁmony fmm the iollowlng 4 wltnasses

1,
2
3 .
4

il

_ The Raspondent

~ Paul Leung. M.D. (Expert) ~video parpetuaﬂon deposllion

Abraharr'\ Perlstein, M D. ‘(Expert) ~video perpetuation dpposlt'ion*.

Lance Brigman, M D.~ perpatuﬁthn deposi_ﬂon — transcript read Into the-

“record,”

He g nggnts Exhibits. The followlng numbsred exhibits by 1he Respondent'

were admltted to become part of tha racord at the hearlng

R-1.

R-2.

R-7.
R8.
R-9.

Madlcal Racords Patlents A through H ( ana exhlbit)

Jnurnal Art\ule Gaby, Alan, Alternative Mad!clne Hevfaw, Vol 9, No. 2
pga 167-179 on Hypothyroldlsm :

. Letterfrom Dr. Abraham Perlsteln

Letter from Dr. David Laa.

_Letter from Dr, Daniel Moynihan.

. Letter from Dr, Lance Brig man.

Letter from Dr, Blaine Tolby.:

. Letter from Warren Cowell.

Letter from Brenda Nilson.

" The video, and the writien transoript of the deposition, ase past of the record in this procoeding

FINDINGS OF FACT
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AND FINAL ORDER - Page 3 of 22
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| R-10. Letter from Chérlaé. Mas-o-n.
R-11.’ Le'ster from Flhonc!a Hanson,
; R-1.2 Lat'lar from Jamle Huﬂ
- R-13. Letter from Sherry McDor_uald-._
R-14. Letler from L.C. Perry.
R-15. Letter from.Pamela Graham,
R-16. Letler from Katherine Kiser.
B-17. Letter from Didne Howlett.
- R-18, Letter from Kathi High: |
R-19. Letter from Cheryl Royal.
R-20. Letter from Tom Bohna.
R-21. Lettar from Evan Cummln'gs
R-22. Redacted emall, dated May 25, 2006 from Mr. Berg to Dr. Bioom
' Based upon the evidance prasanted the Commission makes the following
3 ﬂndlngs by clear and convinctng evidence. |
FINDINGE OF FAGT

1.4  The Respondent was issued a license to practlca as a physician and

‘surgeon by the State of Washlngton in 1992. His license s active, but has bean aub\ect ‘

to a summary suspension since May 25, 2008. The Respondent is board certified as a
psychiatrist, and was. most recently re-certified in September 2006.

1,2 . The Respondent did his residency at the University. of South Alabama
Hospital In Moblla. Alabama In the late 19_80 s, The residency included a combined
F\ND!NGS OF FACT,

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW -
AND FINAL ORDER . Pagedoiz2

Docket No, 06-04-A-1014MD

PRI S 5



' program in géneral and adult paychiatry over a four year penod and he was the chief
5 resldent ln child psyuhiatry Aﬂer vartous contract or Dther positions Into.the mid=1990's

In the Vancouvar!Pomand/Longviaw araa. mostly Invelvlng children and chi\d "3 § . 4 ‘E
psyohlatry. the Respondent has had a full-time offlca practlce asa psychia\:rlst Qinca {
1998. Presently, his maln office s in Vancouver, Washington with a satelllte omca i
' practicé In Longview, "

13 Asa psychlatrist the Respondent does not take patlents that present wlth '
physical allmants only. Hls current patient population: Is approximately 50% chlld ren,
All of the Respondent's patlents have psychlatrlc or mood dlsorde rs, and his lpatlam
population consist of word-of-mouth referrals and (mostly) referrals by primary care
physiclans. In addition to the man‘y difficult méntél health symptoms presente& by
patients for his psychlatrlc tre atment many of the Hespondent’ patlanté also have
presslng physical allmante. They are. usually on medications prior to seelng the
| Haspondent and many. have excasalve welght or sufier from obesity.-
1.4‘- The Hespondant has adcptad a 5ometlmes unique, but generally
accepted, alternative treatmant regimen with some of his patients With other
practitioners, these. paﬂems may receive only the standard or "front line" range of .
7 medlcations for depression. Inthe Respondent's practice, because of the difflculty of
| the céées he treats, he may be more likely to try attarnatlves If he concludes that

standard antl- dapressant treatment has not been totany able to reduce the patient's

depressive symptoms. Most significant, for purposes of this disciplinary actlon, Is the

FINDINGS OF FACT,
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- Respondent's use of thyroid medications, Including Armour Thyrold, and stimulants as

an adjunct to his psychlatnc treatment of particular pat&ents |

15 The Commnssion does not find the Respondent to be a welght Joss or “diet '

| doctor"; rather, the Respondent Is a practicing psychiatrist, and any ‘welght Ioss “benefit’
to a particular patient is incidental to the.Haspondent‘a primary treatment goal, l.e. the
. psychlatrlo well- belng of t the pauent.

1 6 Armour Thyroid Is the trada name of a prescription’ medlcat!on and is.

. made from desiccated (dried) pork thyroid glands Deslccatad thyrold is prescribed to

treat thyrold dystunctlon known as hypothyroldlam Armour Thyrold 1herapy is usually
-instltutad ln low dosas, with lncrements that depend on clinical avaluatlons the
' .cardiovascu[ar status of the patient, and periodic laboratory- tasting The usual

rnaxlmum recommended dosa of Armour Thyrold |s 180 mglday

1,7 Adderall Is the trade name of a preseription madlcation contalnlng

amphetarnlné ‘which ls a stimulant. Amphetamine [s not an appropriate mad[catnon for '

'wa1ght loaa. lt may prod uce. sarlous and llfe-threatanlng cardlac aﬂ‘acts The usual

maximum rec:ommanded dosa of Adderall ls 60 mg/day. If prescribed In conjunc:non , A

wllh Armour Thyroid, the patient s progress and reaction to such a stlmuiant must ba
closely monitored. - -
1.8 Dysthymla isa Iong-term. chronic'depregsion that Is not disabling as an

acute/major depression, but can result In & notable decrease of 1unctional activity.

FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONGLUSIONS OF LAW
~ AND FINAL ORDER Page 6 of 22

Dockst No, 06-04-A-1014MD




Eﬁrlant A
1,9 - . Patient A was a 30 year old female, seen by the Respondent on three

_ occaslons over a five waak perlod from JanUary 23 to March 3, 2004 On her lnltla!
| vlail the Heapondant dlagnosed Patient A as parhaps having’ “Dysthymia and a little tow
; thyrolr! " The Haspondent took a history from Patrentl-\ onthe first visit and his
diagnosis ﬂows from his inter\rlew. symploms and his own analysis | |

. 130 The Haspondent prescribed Armour Thyrold to Patient A on January 23,
. 2004, .'Tha “rigl” dose of Armour Thyro‘ld was 90 mg/day for two days and, If-the patient
felt "OK," then Patlent A was. directad to take 180 mgfdarr far Erné rrreek Aﬂar one |
week, the dosage was to be increasad to 270 mg/day wlth 21 return vislt of Patient A
4 sphedrrled for February B 2004. On February 6, 2004, the Hespondent conﬂrmad the

270 mg/day dosage for anothpr week and, If "OK," to 360 mg/day. O February 6,

2004, the Respondent also prescribed Desoxyn 10 mg-t_wlrre.dally_ to P_atlant _A. A raturn

' vislt was scheduted for March 3, 2004

1,41 As It umed out, Patlarrt A mls’rakenly !ncraased her dosage before the
March 3. 2004 office visit to 720 mg/day of Armour Thyrold and repurted that to the'
Hespondent ‘The Haspondent dld not note any adverse eﬁects from the 720 rng!day
. ragirnen Patient A had put herself on, and therefore the Haspondent dld not racommend
a decrease in the dosage. In fact, since Patient A reported no desired Increase in her
energy level belrneen thé morning and 4 p.m., the Respondent conlemplated whether
ano‘rher 90 rnglday of Armour Thyroid would turther assist Patlent A. The H'asponc_laht
dlri not see Paﬂant A agaln after the March 3, 2004 visit. |
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112 Onor abﬁut March 11 2004 F‘atIeni A cunsulted wlth her pﬂmary care
physician, Dr Susan Hughsa for her annual physical. Noting that PaﬂantA was cn an

“gxtremely high dose of 1hyrold medication,” Dr. Hughes ordarad lab work, an

immediate consult wlth 8 cardlo\ogist, and further stated that Paﬂam A was’ tn

"‘oongestlva heart fallura with tachyoardia and Is at high risk for a myopathy as well as

rhythm disturbance.” | L
1.13 Based onthe repons of the cardlologlst (Dr. Slh'aun D. Harba_f),

Dr. Hughes, and the dosage levels of Armour Thyrold approvad by the Respondent for

, “Patlent A, the Gommlsslon finds the prssc:rlbing of Armour Thyrold far ln excess of the

maximum racommended dally dosage causad a hypaﬁhyrold gtate In Patient A. Tha

; Haspondant s Armour Thyrold regimen with Patlent A placed herin great risk of harm.
As such; the Bespundant's treatmani of Patlenit A falls below the standard of care of a

| rqaéonably pfudent physician practicing in ‘_,Na_sh}ngton.

Patient D " | |

| 1.14 PatientD was a22 year old male'who presented to the Fiaépdn'dent on .

‘November 26, 2003, havlng had multiple hospltallzatlons for, psychlatric tréatmant,

; recurrent dapresslon and sulcidal ideation dating back 10 chndhood. The lﬁaspondan'l.
in his capaclty asa chlld paych\atﬂst, had seen Patient D &l sor:ne time in the pastwhen
Patient D was & child and the Haspendent was at Columbia River Assoclates Clinle,
His.most rfacant hospltalization for depression was for a two week perlod that had ended
in mlc_l-Novémbar, 2003.' Oon November 06, 2003, prior fo any treatment by the

: Hesponﬁent, Patient D was taking Lamictal, Lexapro, and Atlve.n. Over the years, he
FIND1NGS OF FACT,
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had been treatad with Prozac. Paxll, Celexa, Lithium, Zyprext;t, and other médlcﬁtlons In

an attempt to daa| with his depresslonlpsychtatrlc illness. .

1.16 On November 26, 2003, the Respondent dtagnesed Patient D as balng
bi- polar with deprasstan and panic disorder. The Respondant altered some of Patient
D's antl -deprassant medications prescribad on his recant hospital dlscharge substituted
" Xanax on a trlal basis for the Attvan and also prescrtbad 30 mg/day of Adderall He
also prescribed Seroquel {which ts an atyptcal anttpsychotic agent or mood stabl!lzer)

for Pattenl Don Nov:ambar 28, 2003.

146" Further, In that initial November 26, 2008 st thé'Fteépondant prascribed

ArmourTrtyroId to Patient D The Initial dose of Armour Thyrold was 90 mg!day for two
. days and then to be Increased to 180 mg/day. There were interim weekly oﬁtce visits
‘ prtcr to December 18, 2003, On December 16, 2003, the Ftaspondent Increaaed
' Patiant D's dosage of Armour Thyrold to 360 mg/day. Thara were several changea.
| substttuﬁons and altaratluns to Pattant D's antl- dapressant madlcattons in tha weeks
" between November 26; 200 and January 14, 2004 L

117 Dn January 14, 2004, tha Hespondent incraased Patiént D s dosaga of

- -Armour Thyrotd to 450 mg/day forone week, t’nan to 540 rnglday Pattant D davatopad. ;

syrhptorns ct}nsistant with hyparthyrotdlsm (excessive hormones), lncludlng agitattan

and lack of concentration, There are patlent records indicating normal thyrold functions

for Patie nt Din 1995. On March 8, 2004, Patient D's primary care provider, F'hyslclan

Assistant Mlchaa| Pastick, obtatned a TSH test (Exhibit D-4, p. 83) that was consistent '

wlth overdoses of thyrold hormone. A TSH test shows a pitultary hormone secrated o
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stimulate thyroid f‘uncﬂon and 'Ié Important for analyilng pot_en't'lall hypérfhyrold cbndltion

because a low TSH mdlcates an excess of thyrold hormone In the system.

—

1.18 The dosage levels of Armour Thyrold approvacl by the Flaspondent for

patient D, beyond the 180mg/day racommended maximum, caused a hyparthyrold state

(1.e. an excess of thyrold hormone) In Patient D, The Respondapt's Armour Thyroid
“regimen with. Patlant D p\acad him at a slgnificant risk-of harm.‘ The Respondent's
treatment of F'atlent D falls below the standard of care ol a reasonably prudent
| _physlcilan practicing In Washington. ' '

Patient E | ‘ |
| 119, Patlont E was a 48 year old female on her inftial vislt to the Respondent

for treatment on March 26 2004 The Respondent dlagncsed Patlent E with dysth‘ym la
' ,(long: term, chronlc depresslnn), basing his diagnosis on physlcai abservatlons, ’

‘patient !nterview and'a mental status exam On the first visit, the Flespandant started

N Patlent E on Armour Thyroid at 90 mg!day for two days, with an anﬂc;lpated lncraasa to

1BD mg/day for ona week, then 270 mglday for one week, and then 360 mglday. Dne

month |atar. after an April 23 2004 u'rfica visit, the Respondent further increased the

dosaga of Armour Thyroid to 450 mgfday for two- weaks then to 540 rnglday |
1.20 On or about May 28 2004 patient E consulted with Dr. Maw Shepard at

‘ Kaléer _Fo‘u_ndatlon Haalth Plan with a comptalnt of tachycardia (rapid heart beat).

Dr. Shaparddrdered laboratory tests that resulted In & report of TSH so low lt s almost

‘not detectable (l.e. Less than .01 with a normal range of . g — 5. 00) Such a lab rasult
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ls consistent with hyberthyroldlsm. Dr. Shepard adQ!sed Paﬂeni‘E to s:top‘tﬁklng Ar;hour
Thyrold. | hE
_ 1.21 Three days later, on Juna 1 2004 Patient E complained tn the
Flaspondant about her tachycardla attack and symptoms of hyperthyroid and réported

that she was still experlanclng a fluttering heart rate, The He'spondant recommanded

_ that patlent E decrease her dosage from 540 mg/day io 450 mg/day, and if that doasnt

resolve the tachycardia, then to 360 mg/day. Patlent E again called the Hespundant on
June 1, 2004 to report the labaratary test results previously noted by Dr. Shapard The
Heapondsnt “assured” Patient E ihat ‘the Armour Thyrold mtght have distorted tha TSH
reéults and for her to décrease,-tha Armour Thyroid until comfortable” ) :
" (Exhlbit D-5, pg. 4): | |
1.22 The mega- dosage Ievels of Armour Thyrold approvad by the Respondent '
‘for_ Patient E.of 540 mg/day caused a hyperthyrotd state fn Patlent E Even with the
rapo.ftl df the laburatory test, the Haspondem ‘falled to recognlza the tast's conslstency
1 with the clinical symptoms then present in Patlent E. The Hespondent's ArmowThyro\d
-reglman with Patlent-E placed her ata signi!icant risk of harm Accordlngly, the
"Hespondant's treatment of Patiant E ialls baluw the standard of care of a raasonably
prudent physiclan practlc‘mg In Washlngton. ' ]
Patient F R
1,23 Patient F was a 46 .ya.ar old female when presenting 16r treatment by the
- Hes;.)ondent on October 19, 2004. Intake notes by the Rqspondlant on the patient

interview Indicated a prior dlagrosls of depresslon of “mild'to moderate severity” In
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years past, significant weight gain over the years, prlor use of Prozao. PaxII and
Wellbutrin for'daorasalon without effective results, and a tamtly hlstory of obaslty
dlabetoo. and hypotoy}roldlom. .

" 1,24. On October 19, 2004, the Respondent diagnosed Patient F with
"dysthyntta and 7 borderline hypothyroid but has not'boon dotéo_tod by current lab."
- There is no recard of the Ftespondent ordortng any taboratory- tests 'to'aosls'l_ Ina
hypothyrotd diagnosis of Patient . H |
_ 1 25 Tha Ftespondont kept F‘ationt Fon Wellbutrln and Zoloft whloh are
* anti- dopressanta He then prescrlbed Addarall XH 30 mg twice dalty (] c:ontrol Pationt

s F's appattte The Respondent also prescrlbed Armour Thyrold to Patient F on

.'Octob'or- 19, 2004. The inttial dose of Armour Thyrold was 90 rng!day for two days, then -

' tncroased to 180 rr_tg/doy for ane WGek then 270 mg!day for another week and then o
360 mg/day. ” |
126 As opined by an axpart (Dr. Leung) for the Ftospondoht'Faitiant F was a
"dtﬁtcult pattont' glvan her twelve year history of depression various medications that
. had not beon effective, steep deprtvatlon, efc. The: Haspondent Is attempting in his
| | anatysls and proscrtblng. in the opinion of Dr. Lounq “to do somathlng to help Patlant

F Although there is No Indtoatlon of actual harrn to Patlont-F'from the Armour Thyrotd

. dosage, the excess Arrnour Thyrold placed Patient F ata rlsk of harm. As such, the .

Respondent's ireatment of Patient F falls below the standard of care of-a reasonably

prudent physiclan practicing in Washington.
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Pat ent G

.27 Patlent G was a 23 year old temale when treeted by the Heepdndem

beglnnlng August 31 2004 The Fleependent dlegneeed Patlent (3 with "meod disorder,

non-epeclf!c. maybe from eub ¢linical hypethyrold " The Heepondent erdered Iaberatory
tests that indlicated normal thyroid function and commented they were not conclusive.
He determined thet Parlent G should be treated based on his clinical observations end
.patlent intervlew |

| 1 28 The Heependent preecr%bed Armour Thyrold to Paﬂent G on Auguet 31
_ '2004 The initial dose of ArmourThyrold wee 90 mg/day Ior two daye -and then

‘ Increased to 180 mgldey One week later, on Septembera 2004, the ArmourThyroid

- dosage was increased to. 270 mg!day The Heependent noted on September-8, 2004,

that Patient G had only then been on Amour Thyrold for 4 deye as the pharmeey had to-

order it but there had been no adverse eﬁects Also on September B, 2004 the

Heepondent added Adderall XR 30 mg once dally.
1,29 On September 24, 2004, the dosage of Armeur Thyroid was increased to

- 360 mgldey On November 12, 2004, the.-Heependent Increased Patlent @’s dosage of

Addereu 30 mg to twlee dally, and then on December 3, 2004, the Respondant
| epproved an lncreeee In her doeege of Adderall 30 mg to three times dally, perhalpe as
a result of welght gern by Petient G. | o

j 1.30 Wl\h respect 10 the jast doea.e recommended for Adderall, the usual
maxlmum recommended dose of Adderall is 80 mg/day, and by Dacember 3, 2004 the
Reeponden! was recommending up to 90 mg/day of Adderall. With such a dosage, the
" _FINDINGS OF FACT,
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patlent Is at risk for central nervous'systam over stimulation, {achycardi'a, and'
hybartansion The excess Addarall did place Patient G at a risk of harm. Similarly, the

360'mg/day dosage of Armour Thyrold p!aced Patlant G at a risk of harm as it exceeds

' - the recommended maximum of 150 mg}day ‘With respact to the F!espondent‘

prescribing reglman for both of these medications, his treatment of F’atlent G falls below

the syandard of care of a raasonably prudant physlclan practiclng in Washington

* Other Findings
- 1,31 Although there can be dlfﬂculty In readfng the F\espc:ndent‘s handwriﬁen

-:patient racords in terms of laglbllity. the Commission does not find thosa rec;ords below §

‘the standard of care given the dlfflculty in deciphering many ‘physiclans’ handwrlting.
The'Cnmmlaslon also does not find the completeness or organlzaﬂon of the examinad
patient records in this matter to create a standard of care [ssue. Given Its own

perlanca and the tesﬂmony of the psychlatrist expans on the practlca of psychlatrists
in their racord-keeplng, aspeclally In nowinstttutiona‘ sattlngs such as the |

- Hespondam‘s. the Gommlssion does not find thelr format or complateness fall below 1he

standard of care

1.32 Based onthe lastimony of the Hespondent the expert witnass;es, and the

record, the Gummlssion recogmzes and finds that thara may be apprcprlata
circumstances to use sﬁmulants and thyroid madlcatlnn in a treatment regimen
lncc:rﬁorated by psychlatrists, especially in those clrcumstances whara the traditional,
“'fr‘ont-line," drugs have been trled and not been successful with Iunu-terrr},_chronlcaﬂy
depreésed patients, Clearly, the Respondent is a believer in such alternative
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approachas for some of his patlants But thyrold medication and stlmulants can not be
used without the necessary foundatlon and monitoring for the aﬁects that can oceur,
such as cardiomyopathy, nardlac rhythm dlsturbancas. tramors and hypertension. The
use of these medlcatluns requlres a more caraful and vlgorous approach and ”
laboratory tesling, than what occurred In the Hespondant’s care of the patlants noted in
these ﬂndlngs While thyrold supplementation to antidapressanl medication s &
recognized treatment, the doses of thyrold medlcatton used by the Raspondent were
greatly In excess of what Is usually considered safe. ‘
S (.I:ON‘CLUISlDNS OF LAW

2.1 A\ all times matertal to the Staternant of Gharges the Respondent has
~ been licensed to pracﬂca medicine in the state of Washlngton The Commission has
jurlsdlc:tlon to hear this matter, pursuant tu Chapter 18 71 RCW - Physlclans, and
" Chapter 18.130 RCW - the Unlform Disciplinary Act. '
| 22 The Washlngton Supreme Court has held that the standard of prcmf n

dlsc:lplmary proceedings against physlmans before the Gommission Is pr.oof by clear and -

convincing evidence. Nguyan V. Depan‘mentof Health 144 Wn 2d 516 534 cert.
‘denled, 635 U S, 904 (2002). ln all flnd:ngs forming the basis of this urdar, the y
Commisslon.has applied the clear and convinclng standard il

2.3 ' The Commission reviewed the admitted exhibits and cnnsldared the
testimony, including thé demaanor of all withesses. Further, tha Gommission used its

experlence, competency, and speclalized knowledge to evaluate the pvidence

p.resented in this case. ACW 34.05.461(5). There was substantial expert testimony on -
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this m‘a'tter from both the Respondent and the Department. Expert tastimony Is
- sometimes haip'ru'l but not essential, for the Commission In considering a case and in
detarmlnln; tha standard of care, .Johnston V. Wash!ngron State Msdica! D!saipnnary
Board, 99 Wn.2d 486 (1983); Brown v. State Dapartmanr of Hea!th Medical D!sclplinaiy
Board, 94 Wn. App. 7, r;eviaw denied 138 Wn Ed 1010 (1999)
2.4 The Uniform Dlsmpﬁnary Act (tha UDA) defines what cunduct acts or
ndt‘dons constiiute unprofessional conduct. With respect to his care of each of the
sight patients noted in the Statemant of Charges, the Hespondent has been charged
with violating HGW 18.130.180(4 ) Any such violaﬂc}n cunstltutes unprnfessional
conduct under the UDA. FlCW 18.130. 180(4) provides as foﬂuws. '
(4) Incompetence, negligence; or malpractice which: reaulta in injury to
a patient or which creates an unreasonable risk that a patient may be
harmed. The useofa nontraditional treatment by ltsalf shall not constitute -

unprofessional conduct, provided that it does not result in injury to a
patlent or create an unreasnnabla rigk that & patlent may be harmed.

. 25 Basedon Finding of ‘Fact 1,82 which Is generally applicable to the

. Raspondent's practlce and Ftndlngs ot Fact: () Paragraphs1 .9 through 118for -

: Patlem.A: (1) Paragraphs1 14throuqh1 18 for PatiantD (ill) Paragfaphs 1.19 through ©

1.22 for'Paﬂent E; (W) Paragraphs1 23 through 1.26 for PatientF and (v) Paragraphs- '

j‘i 27 thrm';g-h'tao for Patient G, the Dapartmam proved by clear and convlnclng

- evidence that the Respondent's 6onduqt constitutes unproiasslonal conduct as deflned
in RCW 18.130.180(4). The Hespo_ndent‘a conduct in those cases, for tha reasons _
stated, does not meet the standard of care of a reasonably prudent physiclan prgdtlc'.ng
in _Wa'shm'gton State.
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2.6 Upon a finding of unprofessional conduct, the Commission may lssue an

order pfoviding for one or a combination of sanctions including, inter alia, revocatloh of

the physiclan's license, suspenslon; probation, censure, and flnes. See generally

ACW 16.130.160.  © | |
In 'datermlnlr‘:g what action Is appropriate, the disciplinary authority must
first consider what sanctions are necassary fo protect or compensate the
public. Only after such provislons have been made may the disciplining - -

authority consider and include in the order requirements designed to
rehabliitate the license holder. Id. (smphasis added) ' '

.27 The Respohdant requested the Comm_lssion not to find unprofessional

conduct. After concading on multiple occasions during the hearing the need for

laboratory testing on & going-forward basls to ﬁsslst In monltoring the potentlally harmful

affects (including a hyparthyrdl_d state) of Armour Thyroid dosages, the Respondent

desired to avold the stigma and financlal effect which could be imposed by third-party

péyaré (managed ‘caré,'insup'ance companies) on his practice in the‘qvent of a finding of

unprofessional conduct and sanctions: The Respondent claims the Statement of

Charges, the summary: suspension Im poéed on his practice on May 25;‘2006._.’&:16 'tha

'Depar'tmaht's' case at hearing are 'mllsgulded (bayond tha -ﬁaad-for lab _tasi'ing). Inany

ovant, the Respondent claims to have become more enlightened since the 2003:2004
' pétl'eh c'are; that was the sublacf of thls-prcic-eadlng.: and he should be trusied without
required.sanction of mo,n'ltorlng at th\s-étage. Given his dangerous use 61 Arm_ouf
Thyroid, at times, the prdmise of the Respondent to do betier in the futuré doas not-
addreés the Commission's requirement t0 arrive ai‘ a sanction that can protect the
public. X
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2 B Dn the other hand the Deparlment raquaétad one or.more of a variety of

posslble sanctions, lncluding a full assessment by 1he Gan‘ter for Paraonallzed :

_Educatlon for Physiclans (CPEP) In Colorado other intensive trainlng, "mantm" of the

Hespondent‘s practice jor some period fines, and prescriptive prachce monllorlng

29 The Commlsaton concludea a certain degree of monltcring by and
reponing to the Oommlssion durlng a probathnary period, aspecially on the
; Hespondant's prescriptive practlces. is necassary to arrive at a just sanction that
protacts the public. Howevar, the Cummlsslon does not belleve a CF'EP assassmenf of
other intensive tralning s necaasary to assure the Hespcndant's c_:omp(_atency. |

540 Inaddition, RCW 18.130.160(B) provides the Commission may levy a fine
for each unprofessional condum vlolatlon not to exceed $5 000 par vlnlation, and this
addresses what sanctimn is nacasaar.y to compensate the pubﬂc Tha Commisslon flnds
'_ that alsomewhat minimal fine agalnst the Raspondentof $2, 500 is appropriate. Given

the number of vialations wlth raspact to the noted patlents, tha law would perrntt a more

substéntlal ﬂna ihan the $2,500 lrnposed.

I OFIDEHS :

Based 6_n the foregoling, the Commlsslon hereby lssues In thls case the foliowlng

ORDERS:
3.1 Tha license of the Respondent, Patrick Chau, o prac:tica as a physiclan
| and surgeon Is hereby | REINSTATED FROM THE SUMMARY SUSPENSION and is

\nstaad p|aced on PROBAT!ON for two yee.ra sub]ect to the following requireme nts:
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| (Ay I net elreedy in place, the Heependent muat inetltute and -
cenltnuouely 1mplement appropﬂete prescribing praetlcee for his thyrold medlcatlone to
Include but not r:re limited to periedlc laboratory testing to aveid hyperrhyroldlem and
other harmful effects of such thyreld use. '
| (B) Nolessthan three practice reviews shall be performed by the
' Cemmleelen of Its designee on the Respondent's practice, with the_ﬂret one to accur
within slx months of the date of this Order, and then at the twalve montlr and twenty-four

menth Intervele dating from this Drder. Each such revlew shall prowde a general

evervlew of the Heependent‘e preeﬂee with special emphasls on the Respondents . .

| preecrlptlen-pretecol fer thyrold medieetlens and stimulants, and the documentation ef g

thyrold Ieb testing, In his peyoh!etrlc preeﬂce Further, the Commleelon representative
shall Inepeet ofﬂee recorde. medlcetlen iege and medical reeorde ae nieeded and
Interview 1he Reependent any’ prefeeelonel staff or pennere. end oﬂ‘lce staff.

e (C) Upon written tequest from the Cemmleelen, the Heeponden‘t shall
' appear before the Commission at six month Intervals durtng the first year e! this Order
(after the required practice revlew(e) have been completed) to demonetre.te his
compliance wlth the terms of this Order, wlth the flrst compllenee appearance in

Mey 2007 or as soon thereeﬁer as the Commission's schedule permlte At any’ tlme

-~ beginning efter \he eecend practice review required by this Order hee occurred {i.e. after

' epprexlmetely 12 months from the date hereof), the Respondent may file a written
petition to appear before the Commission to request a modification or termination of the
prebetlenery conditions of this Order. Any modification or sarly termination of this Order
FINDINGS OF FACT,
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ghall ocour at the com misslon s sole discretion. The third pracﬂce raview shall occur

. after the Fiespondent has been undar probation for two years (If not Bariler terminated). ' E

B 2 Tha Respondent ls hereby flnad the amount of § 2, 500. DO payable on or ‘
| before May 1, 2007, The ﬂne ahall be pald by ce riifled or cashler's check or money
order, made payable to the Departrnent of Heatth and malled to the Dapaﬂmem of
'Health._lMadlcﬁl Quality Assurance’ Commisslon P 0. Box 1089, DIympia, Washbngton‘
08507-1099. | | |
8.3 Thecharges in this matter with respect to Patients B, C, and H, as set |
“forth In'the St'atéma}n of Charges Paragraphs 1.14,1.15,and 1 28-29 (respectively),
are hereby DlSMiSSED. - ' ' '
3 4 The Respondent shall be responslbla and shall pay for any and éu costs |
lnvnlved In his compliance with any and all conditions in this Ordar. and comp\y with afl
federall,.stata, and local !aws, and-all adminlatratlve rles governing the practlce ofthe
medibat pnl:;fesaion in Waghlngton. A3
.85 : The Respondent s_h'é.ll inform the Commlsslo_n; In w&itihg, of émy changes
in his résldenﬂa_il ﬁr professlonﬂi préct!ce(sj addresses within twenty (20) days of the
chahge. | Ty .
| 3.6 Pe riods of elther residency (without a pfact_llb'e) or prant;ding outside the

- state of_W ashingtonishall ﬁpt apply tﬁ the reduction of the two yaér' period of pro!;a‘;loﬁ
._ contempiatacj’_ by this Order. : '
Y |

/l

FINDINGS OF FACT,

CONGLUSIONS OF LAW ,
AND FINAL ORDER ' Page 20 of 22

Docket No, 06-04-A-1014MD




" V. EAILURE TO COMPLY '

Protecucm of the piblic requires practice under the tarms and condlllons Imponed

In this.Order, Fallure fo comply with the terms and cond!llons of this C;‘)rder may rasult in

* suspension of the credential after & show cause hearing. I the F!aspondant fails to

compiy with the terms and condltions of this Order, the Commission may hold a heatlng

1o raqmre the Raapondenl to show calss why the credaritial should not be suspandad

Allamative!y, the Commission-may bring add|tional charges of unprofessional conduct

undcasr RCW.18,130. 180(8), ln either uase. the Heapandem wﬂl be affurdad noﬂce and

_an npponunhy fora haarlng on the lssue of nnn-compllance. L b

Daled this .0 day of Novambar, 200&
Madlr.af Qu.smy Assurance Commigsion

Ok s

JUDITH TOBIN, Public Mai’nber
Panal Ch Ir £

(lnternal tracking numbars)

Program Nos, 2004-03-0048, eoon—oa—owa.zom -08-0036, 2004—0&-0001,204:@4.'11-6025..& -

2005-07-0030

CLERK'S SUMMARY

Charges _ Actlon '
RCW 18.180,180(4)  Violated

FINDINGS OF FACT,
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‘ | 'NOTICE TO PARTIES § o
This order Is subject to the reporting requirements of RCW 18.,130.110, Section E
. 1128E of the Social Security Act, and any other applicable interstate/national reporting

requirements, If adverse action s taken, it must ba reported to the Healthcare Integrity
Protection Data Bank. - ' ' : ;

Elther party may file a petition for reconsideration. RCW 34.05.461 (é);
| 34.05,470, The petition must be fllad within 10 days of service of this Order with:.

Adjudicative Service Unit
P.O, Box 47879 g
Olympia, WA 98504-7879

and a copy must be sent to:

M‘adlcal Quallty. Assurance Commission
P.0O. Box 47866
Olympla, WA 98504-7886

The petition must state the specific grounds upon which reconsideration s requested
~ and the rellef requested. The patition for raconsideration Is considered denied 20 days
- after the petition Is filed if the Adjudicative Service Unit has not responded to the petition
or served written notice of the date by which action will be taken on the petitlon.

‘A petition for Judiclal review must be flled and served within 30 days after
service of this order. RCW 34.05.542. The procedures are identified In.
. chapter 34,05 RCW, Part'V, Judicial Review and Clvil Enforcéement. A petition for
reconsideration is not required before seeking judicial review. if a petition for
reconslderation Is filed, however, the 30-day period will begin to run upon the rasolution
of that petition, RCW 34.05.470(3). AR e ' ;

~ This order remains in effect even If a petition for reconsidaration or petition for
review Is filed, “Fiiing" means actual receipt of the document by the Adjudicative
Service Unit. RCW 34.05.010(8). This order was ugerved” upon you on the day it was
deposited In the United States mail. RCW 84.05.010(19).

FINDINGS OF FACT,
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- AND FINAL ORDER Page 22 of 22
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| SUSAN K. MEADOWS

Deputy Attorney General [115092] -
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- || Address of Record

Attorneys for Complainant.

BEFORE THE -
DIVISION OF MEDICAL QUALITY
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

1 1l In the Matter of the Amended Accusation Against: "~ ) Case No. _16'—20"06-17'5852

Patrick Kin-Yee Chau, M.D.
550] NE 109" Court, Suite L-1
Vancouver, WA 98662

STIPULATION FOR SURRENDER
OF LICENSE ' -

Physician and Surgeon's ‘
Certificate No.G 68517

Respondent.

e S S S S ‘--J‘-/"-—-""\_f\-/v

'In the interest of a prompt-and speedy Irésolution of the above entitled action that

|l is consisteﬁt with the public interest and the responsibility of the Medicfﬂ Board of California

(heréinaﬁar the "Board"), the parties hereby aé;rec ;(o the fullnfving Sti'pul‘ated Surrender of
License and Orderl("Stipulation") which willl‘de submitted to fhe Board for approval and
adop_ti;)n as the final disposition of First Amended Accﬁsaﬁon No, 16-2006-175852 (hcreinéﬁer'
"AI;lendcd Accusation") pending in this matter. | ’

_ 1. David T. Thémtor;,-(Complainant) is the Executive Director of the
Medical Board of California. He brought this action solely in his official capacity and is

re:p;:esented in this matter by Bdmund G. Brown Jr., Attorney General of the State of California,
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Oregon 97203.

and by’ Susan K. Meadows, Deputy Attorney General. A true a.nd corre,ct copy of the Amcnded
Accus ation is attached herato and made a part hereof as Exhﬂ:ﬂt A.

‘ 2. Respondent, Patrick Kin-Yee Chau, M.D. (hcreinaﬂer "respondent”) is
reprcsapted in this proceeding by his attomney, Stephen R, Rasmussen, of Hoffman, Hart &
Wagn@r, LLP, whose address of record is Twentieth Floor, 1000 S.W. Brcadway, Portland

'3, . Onorabout May 7, 1990, the Medical Board of Cahfomla issued
Physician’s and. Surgeon’s Certlﬁcate No. G 68517 to respondent Rc:spondent's license is

renewed and current with an expuahon date of July 31, 2007

ADVISEMENT AND WA[VEILS

4, Respondent has carefully read, fully d1scussed with counsel, and -
understands the charges and allega t1ons in the Amended Accusauon Respondent also has

carefully read fully discussed with counsgl and understands the effects of this Stlpulated

'Surrender of License and Order.

5

5. Respondent is fully aware of his lega.l nghts in thlS matter, including the
right to a hearing on the charges and allegations in the A.rnended Accusatmn, t.he right to be
re:prescnted by counsel, at his own expense; the nght to conﬂ'ont and cross- -examine the w1tnesses
aga.inst him; the nght to present e:wdence and to tes‘ufy on hxs own behalf the right to the

issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents;

‘the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all -other rights accorded

by the Cahfnmm Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

6.  Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, an and intelligently waives and gives up -

each and every right set forth above. |

7 ~ For the purpnse of this proceeding, respondent admits that cause exists to
impose discipline on his medical license pursuant to Busmess and Professmns Code sections
141(a) and 2305, _ |

8.  This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Division of Medical

e P R AT
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_Qualrty Respondent understands and agrees that counsel for Comﬁlainant and the staff of the |

Medical Board of California may communicate directly with the Division regarding this

stipulation and settlement without notice to or partlcrpatron by respondent or his oounsel By

signing the stipulation, respondent understands and agrees that he ‘may not withdraw his
agreement or seek to rescind the strpulatron prior to the’ trme the Dtvrsron considers and acts upon

it. If the Division fails to adopt this stipulation &s. 1ts Decision and Order the strpulatron shall be

of no force or effect, except for th1s paragraph, it shall be madnnssrble in any. legal action, - |

between the parties, and the Dwrsron shall not be drsquahﬁed from further aotron by having
considered this matter.

9,  The partres understand and agree thst facsrmrle copies-of this stipulation,

including faosimite signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effeot as the originals.

10,  This stipulation is intended by the parties herein to be an integrated writing |

representing the complete, final and exclusive embodiment of the agreements of the parties.

11, In eonsrderatron of the foregomg adrnrssmns and strpulatrons, the partres
a‘greel that the Division may, wrthout further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the .
following Drscrphnmy Order: ‘

IT 1S BEREBY ORDERED that Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certiﬁcate No.G .

68517 issued to respondent, Patrick Kin-Yee Chau, M.D., is surrendered and accepted by the

12’ | Upon acceptance ot ttle strpulation by the Board respondent understands
fhat he will no longer be permitted to prachce as a physroran and surgeon in California, and |
agrees to sun'ender and cause to be nmnedrately delivered to the Board or its designee both his
license and wallet certificate before the effeetwe ‘date of the decision. _

13. - Respondent fully understands and agrees that if he ever files an application
for licensure or a petition for remstatement of his license in the State of California, the Board
shall ‘treat jtasa pentron for- remstatement ofa revoked license. Respondent must comoly with

all the laws, regulations and procedures for reinstatement of a revoked license in effect at the
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time the ﬁetition is filed. For pmposes of the rcmstatement proceedmg only, and not for
purposes of any other proceeding, all of the charges and allegatmns contained in tha Amended
Accusatiorr shall be deemed to be true, correct, and admitted by rgSpqndant when the Board
determines whether to é;rant or deny the petition. . B

- ACCEPTANCE ‘

1 have carefully read the above Stlpulated Surrender of chcnse rxhd have fully

diacusscd it with my attorney. [ understand the strpulatmn and the effect it will have on my
hcansc By sugmng this stipulation, 1 recognize that upon its fonnal acceptanca by the Board, I

will lose all rights and privileges to practice as a physmran and surgeon in the State of California.

1 entet into this Stipulation for Surrender of License volumanly, knowingly, and intelligently, .and -

agree to be bound by the Decision and Order of the Board 1 wxll cause to be deliverr;{i to the .

‘Board both my license and wallet certificate before the sffective date of the decision.

DATED: _ Tasss 254

ok .
-YEFTC% M :.D. s

[ have read and fully discussed with respondent the terms and conditions and other

matters contained in this Stipulntibn For Surrender of License, approve its form and content

DATED: %M o 24 decT

STEPHﬂN R. RASMUS SEN
HOFFMAN, HART &WAGNER, LLP
Attorneys for Respondent
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E SEMENT -

The foregoing Stipulation For Surrender of License is hereby ‘rcspectﬁ;lly

submitted for consideration by the Board.

. DATED: /-~ L0~ 07

. BROWN JR., Attorney General

EDMUND ¢

 of the Statgof California
,&é 4
FUJAN K. MEA S

gputy Attorney eneral

Attorneys for Complainant,
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.Bl,{nz.oéc?m{, ;.tt;r-n;ylﬁcnbfn;. a APPLICATION

of the State of California
JOSE R, GUERRERO ATTACHMENT .
Supervising Deputy Attorney Gonoral . ‘
SUSAN K. MEADOWS, State Bar No, 115092 ' STATE OF CALIFORNIA -
Deputy Attorney Genoral MEDlCAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

California Department of Justice. [: L0 g! I
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000 ' §$ CRAMENTO 21,20 -Q-‘
8an Franclseo, CA 94102-7004 —Mﬂi@ﬂu _ ANAU

Telephone; (415) 703-5552
Facs}’mxlc (415) 703-5480

Attorneys for Complaipant

BEFORETHE .
DIVISION OF MEDICAL QUALITY '
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Flrgt Amended Accusation ; Case No, i6;2|006-175352 d
Against: S A
PATRICK KIN-YER CHAU, M.D, R - ;
5501 NE 109th Court, Suite L1 FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION

Vancouver, WA 98662

Physiman's and Surgeon's Certificate

Respondent,

The C:'nmplainant alleges: -
' PARTIES

L

1, . Complainant David T. Thornton is the Exeoutive Director of the Medical Board of '

Califbmiét (hereinafter the "Board") and brings this First Amended Acwsatlm'm solely in his
gfﬁglal capécity. .

| . 2., Onor about May 7, i990,_'Phynin{an and Surgeon's Cetlificate No,

G 6.851? was Issued by the Board to Patriok Kin-Yee Chau, M,D, (hereinafter "respondent”),
‘This certificate expires oi July 31, 2007, On July 12, 2006, pursﬁant ﬁ:‘ Section 2310(a) of the
Business and Professions Code, a full out oflstate suspensioln order of no practice was issued by

the Board, On December B, 2006, respondent’s license to practice was fully restored.

4

eo-17-2/



T
2 ‘ 3, 'This accus'ation is brought before the Division olt' Medical Quality‘qtl‘ the Medical -
,: 3 |f Board o‘f Ca.llﬂ':mi&. bapa:hnant of,"C!onSumgr Affairs (hereinafter the "Division"), under the ,
4, ﬁt.;thori;:y of the following sections of the California Business and Profééslor;s Code (hﬁreina'fter
5 "Code") and/or other.relevant statutory cnactmcnt. ' | | . :
.6 A. Seotion 2227 of the Code provides in part that the Board i may revoke,
7. . suspenld for a period of not to exceed one year, or place onprobation, the licénse of any
'8 licensee who has been found guilty nnder thl; Medical Pn;etico Act, and may recover the
9 costs of probation munitoring if probation is impnsed - | '
1;0 ' j B. Santion 2305 of the Code pmvides, in part, ﬂ1at the ravncaﬁnn, suspe.nslon
. 3 or uther disciplim: restriction or limitation :mposud by anothcr state upun a licensa to’
iﬁ practiae medmim issued by that state ﬂmt wouid hava been gmundu for dlsc.iplme in -
13 4. | California under the Medloal Pmotioa Act, eonstitutas gmu.nds i’or disaiplma for
BT mlprnfussionﬂl conduet, ' (
¥ '15' . C. - Section 141.0f the Coda providas. _
'16 ! . o "(a) For any Tioensee huld[ng a Iiccnsc issued by & board uncle.r the *
_1'7‘ L9 | jurisdiution of a department a dlsaiplmary autiun taken by another stafe, by nny agency of
'.18 ,I ‘the t‘edarul govmmuent or 'by another country for any act aubstantm]ly‘relatcd to the " ‘
A " practice regulated by the California Jicense, may be & ground for. dismplinary action by the
20 ' respacnve state licensing board, A cextified uopy of the record of the disciplinary action
21| _ talcen against the licensee by another state, an agency of the federal government, or by
' 22l| - . ' gnother country shall be.oonclu'slive cvidenc.q of the events related therein.” -
23 | ,I " (b)  Nothing in this section shall preciude a board from applying a
24 - specific statutory provision in the licensing act administered bj; the board that provkies
|25 " for disciplinvs based upon a disaiplinnry action taken against the licensee by another state,
26 * anagehey of thc federal govemmcm. ot another country, " ‘
271 4, Respundcnt is subject to dlsmplme. within the meaning of section 2305: and/m: |
28 | section 141of the Code as more particularly set forth herein below.
| 2
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(Dfﬂeipllnn, thrlction, or Limitation Impused hy Amthm Statn)
5. . On May 25 2006, the Waahing‘ton Depaert:nt of Health Mcdmal Quality

‘Assurance Commigsion (heteinafter “Cnmnission") {ssued a- surnmary suspens{on of

! mspondent‘s madlt.al license, After a hca.rmg, whmh cunvanﬁd on 01' uhﬁut Septamber 29-30

2006, the Conmmssion issued an order dated November 8, 2006, which mmstated respondent’s

Jeense to practice medicina, and placed his leense on probation for fwo years Including, but not -

limited to, the following conditions: Respondent must implement appropriate presoribing

practices for his thyroid medications to include, but not be limited to, periodic )abalratory testing

10 a‘vmd hypenhyroldism, respondent’a practice is' auhjact to pmlodm I'BVIE-WS and 1napentinn by .

the Co:mmssmn or its dcsignee, and respondent must pay & $2 500, ;JO ﬁna The basis for this

actiop was respondent’s mappropriatu-caxc and treatmpntlaf 5 pationts v‘*ho he diagnosed with

thyroid dysfunction, The respondont treated these five paﬂeﬁts'i':y preseribifig Amour Thyroid
1 (destceated thyroid), and for dne patlent, in addition.to the Amour Thyroid he prcscrihad . _
Adda::all (amphetamine), as therapy for hypothyroidism., Raﬁpondent‘s prusuribing prantices wlth :

respect to these five patients placad them ata gigmﬁcemt risk of harm, -
6. Attachéd hereto as Exhxblt A, aud made a part hereof, is a ccﬂ:ﬁed copy of the
Comumission’s Findings of Fact, Conelusions of Law, and Fial Order, |
7. " Theaction by the Commission regardmg reapondant‘ s license to prachcc
medicine, s st forth above, constitutes unpmfesamnal ounduut und}or grounds for dlsuipllnm-y

action w1thm the meaning of section 2305 of thn Code and/or section 141 (8) of the Code,

‘Thetefore, cause for discipline exists.

ERAYER ,
~ WHEREFORY, the complainant requests that hcar‘ing be held on the matters' herein -
nllaged and that following the hearing the Division fssue dac-[sion.
s Revoking or suspending Physicmn and Surgcona Ccriiﬁcatﬁ: Number G 68517

heretofore issued to respondent;

2 Ordering respondaﬁt to pay the Division the costs of probation iﬁonitorlng_upon

3




order of tha Division, and

3. Revolcmg, suspending or dcnykng approval ¢f thc ruspondmt'a a.uthmlty to .

supewlae; physician usmta.nts, and, ;
‘4, /Taling such other and furthar action Bs the Diwsion deetns: necasaary and proper,

DATED:  December 27, 2006,

Chav, st Amended Aco

DA D T. THORNTON
Executive Director -
Medical Board of California
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of Gahformq :

Cumplainant‘~




BEFORE THE
DIVISION OF MEDICAL QUALITY
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Amended )
Accusation Against: )
)

PATRICK KIN-YEE CHAU, M.D. - ) File No. 16-2006-175852
: )
Physician's and Surgeon's )
Certificate No. G 68517 )
)
Respondent. )
=)

DECISION

The attached Stipulation for Surrender of License is hereby adopted as the Decision,

and Order of the Division of Medical Quality of the Medical Board of California,
Department of Consumer Affairs, State of California. ' '

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on __March 8, 2007

IT 1S SO ORDERED March 1, 2007

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

o

' _ ¢ .. Cesar A. Aristeiguieta,
= Panel A _ '
Division of Medical Quality

MQ
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1 In the Matter of the Amcndad Accusatmn Against

EDMUND G, BROWN, JR., Attomey Oenerel | APPLICATION' :

of the State of California,

JOSE R. GUERRERO AT
Supervising Deputy. Attomesy Gencral [97276] ATTACHMENT

|| SUSAN XK. MEADOWS

Deputy Attorney General [1 15092]
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 1 1000

.San Francisco, California 94102 -

Telephone: (415) 703-5552
Facsimile: (415) 703-5480

Attorneys for Complainant. :

BEFORE THE
DIVISION OF MEDICAL QUALITY
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STA’I‘E OF CALIFORNIA -

Case No. 16—2006 175852

STIPULATION FOR SURRENDER
DF LICENSE

Patrick Kin-Yee Chau, M.D.
5501 NE 109" Court, Suite L-1
Vancouver, WA 98662
Address of Record

Physician and Surgeon's
Certificate No.G 68517

Respondent.

VVU\JWUWVW\J

'In the interest of a prompt and speedy resolution of the above entitled action that
is c,onsmtent with the public interest and’ the rcsponsxblllty of the M¢d1ca] Board of Cahfornm
(hcremaﬁcr the "Board"), the parties hereby agrcc to the ﬂﬂlowwg Stxpulatcd Surrender of
License and Order (“Stnpulanon") which will be subrmtted to the Board for approval and
adop_tion as the final disposition of First Amended Acc:usatmn No 16-2006-175852 (heremaﬂer‘
"Amended Accusation") pending in this matter. '

L, David T. Thorntcm {(Complainant) is the Executive Director of the
Medical Board of California. He brought this action solely in his ofﬁom] ca.paclty and is

reprcsentcd in this matter by Edmund G. Brown Jr., Attorney General of the State of California,
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and by’ Susan K. Meadows, Deputy Attorney Gsneral A true and correct copy of the Amsnded
ACcusatlon is a.ttached hereto and made a part hsrcof as Exh1b1t A.

2. Respondent, Patrick Km-Yee Chau, M.D. (hereinaﬂer "respondent") is
reprsscntcd in this proceeding by his attorney, Stephen R. Rasmussen, of Hoffman, Hart &
Wagner, LLP, whose address of record is Twentieth Floor, 1000 S, W. Broadway, Port]and,

'3, . Onorabout May 7, 1990, the Medical Board of Cslifbrnia issued
Physxclan s and Surgeon’s Cemﬁcate No. G 68517 to rcspondent Respondent’s license is

renewed and current with an cxp1rat1on date of July 31, 2007.

QY!&EMENT AND WAIVEE&

4, | Respondent has carefully read, ful]y dlscussed with counsel, and -
understands the charges and alleganons in the Amended Accusatxon Respondent also has
carefully read fully discussed with counsel, and understsnﬁs thc effects of this St1pu1ated
Surrsnder of License and Order. ‘

. 5. Respondent is fully aware of his 1e:ga1 mghts in t'rus matter, including the
right to a hearing on the. charges and allegations in thc Amended Accusatmn, the right to bc
rcpresented by counsel, at his OWn EXpense, the rlght to confront and cross—sxammc the w:tnesses
agamst him; the nght to present ev1dence and to tesnfy on hlS own behalf the right to thie

issuance of subpoenas to compel the atte:ndance of witnesses and the production of documents;

‘the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all -other nghts accorded'

by thc Cahfonna Adm1mstratwe Procadure Act and other applicable laws.

6. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and mtelhgently waives a.nd givesup -

each and every nght set forth above. '

9 - For the purpose of this proceeding, respondent admits that cause exists to |
impose discipline on his medmal license pursuant to Busmess and Profess:ons Code sections.
141(a) and 2305. |

8.  This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Division of Medical

e i W 2
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Board. .

‘Qualrty Respondcnt understands and agrees that counsel for Cornplmnant and the staff of the iR

Medical Board of California may communicate directly with the Dwxsmn regarding this
stipulation and snrtiernent without notice to or partrcrpatmn by raspondent or his counse.l By
srgmng the strpu]atron, respondent understanda and ngrees that he may not withdraw his ‘
agreement or seek to rescind the shpulanon prior to the nmc the Divisibn considers and acts upon
it, If the Division fails to adopt this stipulation as. ns Decision nnd Order, the stipulation shall be
of no forée or gffect, except for this paragraph, it shall be madrnrsarble in any. legal action
between the parties, and the Dwrsmn shall not be drsquahﬁed from further actron by hnvrng

considered this matter.

9,  The partms understand and agree that facsrmrle copies-of this strpulatxon, _

including fncsimile. signatures thereto, shall have the same force and cffect as the originals.

10.  This stipulation is intended by the partrcs herem to be an integrated _wnting
representing the complete final and exclusive embodiment of the ag;rccmnnts of the parties. 5
11, In consrderatron of the forcgurng adrnrssrons and stmnlatmns, the parnes
agrae- that the Division may, wrthout further notice or formal proceeding, issue and antsr the .
following Drscrphnary Order:
_ IT IS HEREBY URDERED that Physrcran s and Surgeon 8 Certrﬁcate Nn G.
68517 insubd to respondent, Patrick I{rn—Yce Chnu, M.D., i surrendercd and ac.cepted by the

12 | Upon acceptaice of the stipulation by the-BoEu'd respondent understands
that he will no longer be permrttf:d to practwe as a physician and surgcnn 1n California, and |
agrees {0 surrender and cause to be 1nnnedrately delivered to the Board or its designee both hrs
license nnd wallet certificate trefora the effective date of the decision. 4 .

13. - Respondent fully understands and agrees that if he ever files an application
for licensure or a petition for reinstatement of his license in the State of California, the Board
shall treat it as & petrtron for rernstatemcnt ofa revokcd license. Respondent must comply with

all the laws, regulations and procedures for reinstatement of a revoked license in effect at the




10
. 23
12
13

14

g B

16

17

18

19 |

20

21

5 58

.23

24

25
26

27

time the pctmon is filed. For purposes of the remstate:ment proceeding only, and not for
purposes of any other proceeding, all of the charges and allagatmns contained in the Amended
Accusation shall be dcemcd to be true, correct, and adrmttcd by respondent when the Board
determines whether to grant or deny the petition. . K
o ' ACCEPTANCE _ ‘
1 have. carefully read the above Stxpulnted Surrcnde;r of Lme.nse and have fully

dlsc.usscd it with my attorney. [ understand the stlpulatmn and the effect it will have on my

: hcense By s:gnmg this stipulation, I recognize that upon its formal ac:captance by the Board, I

will lose all rights and privileges to practice as a physlclan and surgeon in the State of California.’
1 entet into this Stipulation for Surrender of License voluntanly, knowmgly and. mtclhgenﬂy, and i I
agree to be bound by the Decision and Order of the Board, 1 will cause fo be delivered to the .
Board both my license and wallet certificate before the effective date of the décisio_n.

DATED:  Tassssrsy 253

Respondent

I have rcad and fully dlscussed with respondent the terms and ¢onditions and other

matters contained in this Stipulauon For Surrender of mesc 1 approve its form and conteﬁt.

DATED: %ﬁﬁx‘r’"gél 267
~ F

 STEPHEN R, RASMUSSEN
HOFFMAN, HART &WAGNER, LLP
Attorneys for Respondent
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The foregoing Stipulation For Surrender of Lmense is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the Board.

|| DATED:

-,Z'D 07

EDMUND . BROWN JR., Attorney General
. of the Stat of California

Attorneys for Complainant
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APPLICATION

BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General

of the State of California e
JOSE R, GUERRERO | ATT ACI-!!MENT |
Supervising Deputy Attorney General - .
SUSAN K. MEADOWS, State Bar No. 115092 s STATE OF CALIFORNIA™
. H%el:-;l:‘w é;toar:;g Gtenferjal ’ MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
alifornia Department of Justice - ME D'ECQ!ég 1 :
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000 : §¢ CRAMENTO - 21,20
San Francisco, CA 94102-7004 J.M_Q ML, ANAL
Telephone: (415) 703-5552 : T TR
Faqsimilc: (415) 703-5480
Attorneys for Complainant
BEFORETHE .
DIVISION OF MEDICAL QUALITY |
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA '

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA -
In the Matter of the First Amended Accusation : Case No. 16-2006-175852
Against: O R
PATRICK KIN-YEE CHAU, M.D. ; = / ' ; i
5501 NE 109th Court, Suite L-1 FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION

Vancouver, WA 98662

Physibian‘s and Surgeon's Cerfiﬁaafo

Il No. G 68517
Respondent.
The Cémplainant alleges: -
PARTIES ‘
1. . Coniplainant David T. Thornton is the Executive Director of the Medical Board of

Califér_nié (hereinafter the "Board") and brings this First Amended Accusation solely in his
Qfﬁcial capécity. |

| 2. Onor about May 7, 1990, Physician and Surgeon's Certificate No.

G 6.35 17 was issued by the Board to Patrick Kin-Yee Chau, M.D. (hereinafter "respondent").
This certificate expires on July 31, 2007. On July 12, 2006, pursﬁant to Section 2310(a) of the
Business and Professions Code, a full out of state suspensioﬁ order of no practice was issued by

the Board. On December 8, 2006, respondent’s license to practice was fully restored.

1

01T £l
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‘ 3. - 'This accusation is brought before the Division of Madical Quality-qf the Medical -
oard of Callfonua, Department of. Consumer Affairs (hereinafter the "Division"), under the
éuthority of the following sections of the California Business and Professmns Code (ﬁarciﬂaftm
"Code") and/or other relevant statutory nnactmcnt ‘ '
A. Section 2227 of the Code provides in part that the Board 1 may revoke,

 suspend for a period of not fo exceed one year, or place on probation, the license of any

licensee who has been found guilty under the Medical Practice Act, and may recover the

costs of probatmn momtormg if probation is unposcd
B. Sectlon 2305 of the Code pmvuies in part, that the revocation, suspensmn
or nth& disclplmc, restriction or limitation 1mpnsed by anothar state upon a llcense to
practice medicine issued by that state, that would havc been grounds for dmmphne in
Califomia under the Madwgl Practwe Act, constlmtcs gmunds for dmmplme for
unprofessmnal conduct. '
c. - Sectmn 141 of the Codc prowdes
“(a) For any licensee holdmg a hcense 1ssued by & board utider the "
| Jurlsdictton ofa departmant a dlsclplmary actlon taken by anothe.r state, by any agency of
'_ the federal govemment ot by another country for any act substantxaliy related to the
practice regulated by the California license, may be a ground for. dxsclphnary action by the
rlespcctive state licensing board. A certified copy of the record of the disciplinary action
taken against the licensee by another state, an agency of the federal govetnment, or by
- another comtry shall be concluswe evxdence of the events related therein.”
" "(b) Nothing in this section shall preclude a board from applying a
specific statutory provision in the licensing act administered by the board that provicies
- for disciplinc based uponﬁ disciplinary action taken aghinst the licensee by another state,
an agency of thc federal govemmcnt or another country." |

4. Rsspondcnt is subject to dxsmp]me within the meaning of section 2305° and/or

_section 1410of the Code as more particularly set forth herein below.
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FIR AUSE F DI CIPLIN
(Disclpline, Restriction, or Limitation Impused by Anothar Stata)

‘ 5, On May 25 2006, the Was}ungton Department of Health Mcdlcal Quahty

-Assurance Commxsslon (hereinafter “Connmsmon“) issued a 3ummary buapﬁnSlon of

: mspondﬁnt;s qulcal- license. After a hearmg, whlch convenad on or about September 29-30

2006, the Commission issued an order dated November 8, 2006, which reinstated respondent’s

license to practice medmme, and placed his license on probation for two years including, but not -

limited to, the following conditions: Respondent must implement appropnate prescnbmg

practices for his thyroid medications to include, but not be limited to, periodic 1ab0ratury testing

to avoid hyperthyro;dlsm, respondent s practice is subject: to pcnodw rcvmws and inspection by

the Comrmssmn or its des:gnee and respondent must pay a $2 500. 00 fme The basis for this

action was respondent’s inappropriate care and trea.tmcnt of 5 patlents who he dmgnased with

thyrmd dysﬁ.matmn The respondent treated these five patxcnts by prescnbmg Amour Thyrmd

(deswcated thyroid), and for one patient, in addition to the Amour Thyrmd he prescnbed
Adderall (amphstamme), as therapy for hypothyrmdxsm Respondent s prescnbmg prachces w1th
respect to these five patients placed them ata mgmﬁcant risk of harm

6. Attached hereto as Ex}nblt A, and made a part hereof, is a certlﬁed copy of the
Commission’s Findings of Fact, Conclusmns of Law, and Final Order. '

7. " The action by the Commission re:gardmg rf;spondent s license to practme

medicine, as sét forth above, constitutes unpmfcssmnal c:cmduct andfor grounds for dxscxplmary

action within the meaning of section 2305 of the Code and/or section 141(&) of the Code.

‘Therefore, cause for discipline exists.

_ WHEREFORE, the compla.inént requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein -
allcged and that following the hearing the Division issue a demsmn

8 Revoking or suspending Physician and Surgeon s Ce:ruﬂcata Number G 68517

heretofore issued to respondent;

2i Ordering respondcnt to pay the Division the costs of probation momtormg upon

3




otder of the Division, and

3. Rcvokmg, suspendmg or denymg approval of the respondent 8 authomty to -

supemse physician assmtants and,

DATED: December 27, 2006,

DAVIDT. 'I‘HORNTON
Executive Director -
Medical Board of California
Department of Consumer Affmrs
State of Cahfornm 8 i

Complainant‘-

Chau.1st Amended Acc

4, Taking such other and further actmn as the Dmsmn deems necessary and proper.




